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PART |

ITEM 1. IDENTITY OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND ADVISERS
Not applicable.

ITEM 2. OFFER STATISTICS AND EXPECTED TIMETABLE
Not applicable.

ITEM 3. KEY INFORMATION

A. Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial data of PartnerRe Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the Company or PartnerRe) below should be
read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements, and the accompéatgisgo the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 18 and with other information contained in this report, including Operating and Financial Review acid Prosp
in Item 5 of this report.

The selected consolidated financial data for 2017, 2016, 2013, and 2013 (in millions of United States (U.S.) dollars) is as
follows:

For the years ended Decembe31,

Statement of Operations Data 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Net premiums earned $ 5028 $ 497C $ 526¢ $ 560¢ $ 5,19¢
Net investment income 40z 411 45C 48C 484
Net realized and unrealized investment gains (losses) 23z 26 (297) 372 (167)
Other income 15 15 9 16 17
Total revenues $ 567t $ 542 $ 5431 $ 6477 $ 5,53¢
Net income $ 264 % 447 % 107 $ 1,066 $ 672
Net income attributable to PartnerRe Ltd. common
shareholders $ 218 $ 387 $ 47 $ 99%¢ $ 597
At December 31,
Balance Sheet Data 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Total assets $ 2298 $ 2193¢ $ 21,40¢ $ 2227( $ 23,03¢
Total sharehol ders6 equity $ 6748 $ 668 $ 6901 $ 7,04 $ 6,71(
Common sharefWol derso6 equit $ 604 $ 598 $ 6047 $ 6,198 $ 5,85¢

(1) Common shareholders' equity is calculated as Total shareholders' equity attributable to PartnerRe Ltd. less preferred
shareholders' equity of $704 million, the liquidation value of preferred shares.

On March 18, 2016 the Companydés common shares were acqu
N.V.). As a result, al | of the Companyds publicly traded c
2017 and 2016, EXORederland N.V. holds 100% of the 100 million common shares of $0.00000001 par value each (Class A
shares) for a total share capital of $1.00, included in Share capital on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Accordinglyjqgerisha
no longer meaningfulral is no longer presented by the Company.

In 2017, the Company issued Class B shares to certain executives of the Company (see also Share Ownership section in Ite
and Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report).
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B. Capitalization and Indebtedness
Not applicable.

C. Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceeds
Not applicable.

D. Risk Factors

Introduction

Managing risk effectively is paramount to our success, and our organization is built around intelligent risk assumptions and
careful risk management, as evidenced by our development of the Company's enterprise risk management framework, which
provides anritegrated approach to risk across the entire organization. We have identified what we believe reflects key significant
risks to the organization, and, in turn, the common and preferred shareholders, debt holders, and our policyholders.

In order to achievan appropriate growth in book value over the reinsurance cycle, we believe we must be able to generate al
appropriate return on average common sharehol derdéds cequity
cycle is dependent arur individual performance, but also on industry factors that impact the level of competition and the price of
risk. The level of competition is determined by supply of and demand for reinsurance capacity. Demand is determined by client
buying behaviorbwhch varies based on the clientés perception of thi
and the cost of risk transfer. Supply is determined by t he
introductionof capacity from new statips or capital markets. Significant new capacity or significant reduction in demand will
depress industry profitability until the supply/demand balance is redressed. Extended periods of imbalance could dsfpyess indu
profitability to a point where we would fail to meet returns in line with our cost of capital.

We knowingly expose ourselves to significant volatility in our net income. We create shareholder value by assuming risk from
the insurance and capital markets. This expaseto volatile earnings as untoward events happen to our clients and in the capital
markets. Examples of potential large loss events include, without limitation:

A Natural catastrophes including but not limited to hurricanes, windstorms, floods, torremtbessthquakes;
Man-made disasters such as terrorism and acts of war;
Declines in the equity, real estate and fixed income markets;

Systemic increases in the frequency or severity of casualty or mortality losses; and

Do > > e

New mass tort actions or reemergenteld mass tort actions such as cases related to asbestos.

We manage large loss events through evaluation processes designed to enable proper pricing of these risks over ime, and,
result, shorterm earnings volatility may be experienced. Earnirgatility is dampened through diversification, by building a
portfolio of uncorrelated risks and through the purchase of retrocessional coverage to optimize a portfolio.

We expose ourselves to significant risks that can impact our financial strengthsasedday United States generally
accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP) or regulatory and rating agencies' capital requirements. Risk sources for which
management has established key risk limits approved by the Board of Directors (Board) and thapetated limits and actual
limits deployed at Decemb@&d, 2017 and 2016 are presented in the Risk Management section below.

The following risks should be read in conjunction with the Safe Harbor Statement in Item 5.G of this report, Operating and
Finandal Review and Prospects and the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report. These risks may
affect our operating results and, individually or in the aggregate, could cause our actual results to differ materjzist faoch
projected future results. Some of these risks and uncertainties could affect particular business operations or segnhesswhil
could affect all of our businesses. Although risks are discussed separately, many are interrelated.

Except as may be remed by law, we undertake no obligation to publicly update forviaoking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events, or otherwise. It is impossible to predict or identify all risk factors and,extthsehe
following factors sbuld not be construed as a complete discussion of risks and uncertainties that may affect us.

As used in these Risk Factors, the terms fAthe Companyo,
refer solely to the Company,tooneoome of the Companyds consolidated subsidi
terms EXOR and Exor Group relate to the Companyds ulti mat e
the Company in Item 4 of this report).
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Risks Related to Our Company

The catastrophe business that we underwrite will result in volatility of our earnings and could impair our financial comditio

Catastrophic losses result from events such as windstorms, hurricanes, tsunamis, earthquakes, floods, hailstorms, tornadoes
severe winter weather, fires, drought, explosions and other natural anthadandisasters, the incidence and severity of which are
inherently unpredictable. Because catastrophe reinsurance accumulates large aggregate exposuregiooandmatural
disasters, our loss experience in this line of business could be characterized as low frequency and high severity. e may hav
substaril exposure to unexpected, large losses resulting from futuremadea catastrophic events, such as acts of terrorism, acts
of war, nuclear accidents and political instability, or from other perils. Although we may attempt to exclude lossesdiriem ter
and certain other similar risks from some coverage we write, we may continue to have exposure to such unforeseen ablenpredict
events. This may be because, irrespective of the clarity and inclusiveness of policy language, there can be no asawaude that
or arbitration panel will not limit enforceability of policy language or otherwise issue a ruling adverse to us.

This is likely to result in substantial volatility in our financial results significant net losses to shareholders, arsb mesui
in a material decline of our book value or common shareholder's equity that may limit our ability to make dividend pagiments a
payments of interest and principal on our debt securities and limit the funds available to make payments on policytmslder clai

Should we incur a very large catastrophic loss or a series of catastrophic losses, our ability to write future busieess may b
adversely impacted if we are unable to replenish our capital.

We believe, and recent scientific studies have indicated hbdtaquency of Atlantic basin hurricanes has increased and may
change further in the future relative to the historical experience over the past 100 years. As a result of changingndlitivais, c
such as global warming, there may be increases inghjaéncy and severity of natural catastrophes and the losses that result from
them. We monitor and adjust, as we believe appropriate, our risk management models to reflect our judgment of howt to interpre
current developments and information, such as tbeskes. We believe that factors including increases in the value and geographic
concentration of insured property, particularly along coastal regions, the increasing risk of extreme weather evemgs reflecti
changes in climate and ocean temperaturesttendffects of inflation may continue to increase the severity of claims from
catastrophic events in the future.

It is also difficult to predict the timing of such events with statistical certainty, or estimate the amount of lossrany give
occurrence wilgenerate. Under U.S. GAAP, we are not permitted to establish reserves for potential losses associated with man
made or other catastrophic events until an event that may give rise to such losses occurs. If such an event werertepocigd ou
income wauld decrease in the affected period. In particular, unforeseen large losses could reduce our profitability or impair our
financial condition.

Given the inherent uncertainty of models, the usefulness of such models as a tool to evaluate risk is subjeigthalegree of
uncertainty that could result in actual losses that are materially different than our estimates, including probable maxioased
(PMLs), and our financial results may be adversely impacted, perhaps significantly.

In addition to our own mprietary catastrophe models, we use tpiadty vendor analytic and modeling capabilities to provide
us with objective risk assessment relating to other risks in our reinsurance portfolio. We use these models to helrigk contro
accumulation and infon management and other stakeholders of capital requirements and to improve the risk/return profile.
However, given the inherent uncertainty of modeling techniques and the application of such techniques, these mode&sand datab
may not accurately addreas/ariety of matters which might be deemed to impact certain of our coverages.

For example, catastrophe models that simulate loss estimates based on a set of assumptions are important tools used by us
estimate our PMLs. These assumptions address aerwhkactors that impact loss potential including, but not limited to, the
characteristics of the natural catastrophe event; demand surge resulting from an event; the types, function, location and
characteristics of exposed risks; susceptibility of expasks to damage from an event with specific characteristics; and the
financial and contractual provisions of the reinsurance contracts that cover losses arising from an event. We run many model
simulations in order to understand the impact of these ge&ma on its catastrophe loss potential. Furthermore, there are risks
associated with catastrophic events, which are either poorly represented or not represented at all by catastrophelmodels. Eac
modeling assumption or umodeled risk introduces uncerigy into PML estimates that management must consider. These
uncertainties can include, but are not limited to, the following:

A The models do not address all the possible hazard characteristics of a catastrophe peril (e.g., the precise path and wind
speed of hurricane);

A The models may not accurately reflect the true frequency of events;

A The models may not accurately reflect a riskods vulnera
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A The models may not accurately represent loss fiatéa reinsurance contract coverage limits, terms and conditions; and

A The models may not accurately reflect the impact on the economy of the area affected or the financial, judicial, political, o
regulatory impact on insurance claim payments duringltoviing a catastrophe event.

Our PMLs are selected after assessment of multiple third party vendor model output, internally constructed independent
model s, includi ng Ctsiiteof Boaispanchoyhér gualitative &nd guansitative assetssimemanagement,
including assessments of exposure not typically modeled in vendor or internal models. Our methodology for estimating PMLs may
differ from methods used by other companies and external parties given the various assumptions and judgineehts esgimate
a PML.

As a result of these factors and contingencies, our reliance on assumptions and data used to evaluate our entire reinsurance
portfolio, and specifically to estimate a PML, is subject to a high degree of uncertainty that couliech eestubl losses that are
materially different from our PML estimates and, as a result, our financial results may be adversely impacted, perltapglgignif

Our net income may be volatile because certain Life products expose us to reserve and Gailiasility changes that are
directly affected by market and other factors and assumptions.

The establishment of reserves for future policy benefits and the valuation of life insurance and annuity products in our Life
and Health segment are based upoiouarassumptions, including but not limited to market changes, mortality rates, morbidity
rates and policyholder behavior. The process of establishing reserves for future policy benefits relies on our ahilistaty acc
estimate insured events that han yet occurred but that are expected to occur in future periods. Significant deviations in actual
experience from assumptions used for pricing and for reserves for future policy benefits could have an adverse effect on the
profitability of our product@nd our business.

Under reinsurance programs covering variable annuity guarantees we assume the risk of guaranteed minimum death benefit
(GMDB). Our net income is directly impacted by changes in the reserves calculated in connection with the reirf<GMB&: o
liabilities. Reported liabilities for GMDB reinsurance are determined using internal valuation models. Such valuatians requir
considerable judgment and are subject to significant uncertainty. The valuation of these products is subject to$§l @ctsiaigp
from, among other factors, changes in interest rates, changes in equity markets, changes in credit markets, changestionthe al
of the investments wunderlying annuitantds ac c orlAdversechanhgease s ,
in market factors and policyholder behavior will have an impact on both life underwriting income and net income. For further
information see Business OvervidvwiReserves in ltem of this report.

If actual losses exceed our estimated losserves, our net income and capital position will be reduced.

Our success depends upon our ability to accurately assess the risks associated with the businesses that we reinsure. We
establish loss reserves to cover our estimated liability for the payrhalhiosses and loss expenses incurred with respect to
premiums earned on the contracts that we write. Loss reserves are estimates involving actuarial and statistical drajgotems a
time to reflect our expectation of the costs of the ultimatéesetnt and administration of claims. Although we use actuarial models
as well as historical reinsurance and insurance industry loss statistics, we also rely heavily on data provided bytmsuatetpar
on management 6s e xper indhe eswmblishmaht of appidogriate claims &nd cladsespersd reserves. Because
of the many assumptions and estimates involved in establishing reserves, the reserving process is inherently uncertain. Our
estimates and judgments are based on numerous fatdrejay be revised as additional experience and other data become
available and are reviewed as new or improved methodologies are developed, as loss trends and claims inflation impact future
payments, or as current laws or interpretations thereof change.

Estimates of losses are based on, among other things, a review of potentially exposed contracts, information reported by anc
discussions with counterparties, and our estimate of losses related to those contracts and are subject to changeramatitore info
is reported and becomes available. Losses for casualty and liability lines often take a long time to be reported, alycciradueen
impacted by lengthy, unpredictable litigation and by the inflation of loss costs over time. Changes in the l8agbofaiso result
in an increased level of uncertainty in our estimation of loss reserves, particularly féaildimges of business. As a consequence,
actual losses and loss expenses paid may deviate substantially from the reserve estimatesreflefiteehcial statements.
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Although we did not operate prior to 1993, we assumed certain asbestos and environmental exposures through our
acquisitions. Our nofife reserves include an estimate of our ultimate liability for asbestos and environmaintal for which we
cannot estimate the ultimate value using traditional reserving techniques, and for which there are significant ungertainties
estimating the amount of our potential losses. These liabilities are especially hard to estimate for masyimeagling the long
delays between exposure and manifestation of any bodily injury or property damage, difficulty in identifying the soarce of th
asbestos or environmental contamination, long reporting delays and difficulty in properly allocatiitg ficalihe asbestos or
environmental damage. Certain of our subsidiaries have received and continue to receive notices of potential reinsusance clai
from ceding insurance companies, which have in turn received claims asserting asbestos and eralifossesninder primary
insurance policies, in part reinsured by us. Such claims notices are often precautionary in nature and are generaflyantspecif
the primary insurers often do not attempt to quantify the amount, timing or nature of the expogméahe lack of specificity in
some of these notices, and the legal and tort environment that affects the development of claims reserves, the unberimnties
in valuing asbestos and environmental claims are not likely to be resolved in thetaear f

In addition, the reserves that we have established may be inadequate. If ultimate losses and loss expenses excesad the reser
currently established, we will be required to increase loss reserves in the period in which we identify the defictesecyatoy
such claims. As a result, even when losses are identified and reserves are established for any line of businesssekiarade los
loss expenses may deviate, perhaps substantially, from estimates reflected in loss reserves in our fieams Stériations
between our loss reserve estimates and actual emergence of losses could be material and could have a material aztverse effect
results of operations and financial condition.

Since we rely on a few reinsurance brokers for a large percentage of our business, loss of business provided by these brokers
could reduce our premium volume and net income.

We produce our business both through brokers and through direct relationshipsuiéince company clients. For the year
ended Decembedl, 2017, more than 70% of our gross premiums written were produced through brokers. In 2017, we had two
brokers that accounted for 47% of our gross premiums written. Because-pro#taced business concentrated with a small
number of brokers, we are exposed to concentration risk. A significant reduction in the business produced by theseilatokers co
potentially reduce our premium volume and net income.

We are exposed to credit risk relating toroeinsurance brokers and cedants.

In accordance with industry practice, we may pay amounts owed under our reinsurance policies to brokers, and they in turn
pay these amounts to the ceding insurer. In some jurisdictions, if the broker fails to make sushranpayment, we might remain
liable to the ceding insurer for the deficiency. Conversely, the ceding insurer may pay premiums to the broker, for pmeatd pa
to us in respect of reinsurance policies issued by us. In certain jurisdictions, thesenwam@ considered to have been paid to us
at the time that payment is made to the broker, and the ceding insurer will no longer be liable to us for those ambentsy whet
not we have actually received the premiums. We may not be able to collectralimpeereceivable due from any particular broker
at any given time. We also assume credit risk by writing business on avithtield basis. Under such arrangements, the cedant
retains the premium they would otherwise pay to us to cover future loss payment

If we are downgraded by rating agencies, our standing with brokers and customers could be negatively impacted and may
adversely impact our results of operations.

Third-party rating agencies assess and rate the cladtyisig ability and financial strerigbf insurers and reinsurers, such as
the Companyds principal operating subsidiaries. Thieagee r at.
become an important factor in establishing our competitive position in the markeednsisurers, ceding insurers and
intermediaries use these ratings as one measure by which to assess the financial strength and quality of insurersrand reinsur
These ratings are not an evaluation directed to investors of our preferred shares audiébssand are not a recommendation to
buy, sell or hold our preferred shares or debt securities.

Our financial strength ratings are subject to periodic review as rating agencies evaluate us to confirm that we coeghue to m
their criteria for ratingsssigned to us by them. Such ratings may be revised downward or revoked at the sole discretion of such
ratings agencies in response to a variety of factors, including capital adequacy, management strategy, operating e@skings and
profile. In additionfrom time to time, one or more rating agencies may effect changes in their capital models and rating
methodologies that could have a detrimental impact on our ratings. It is also possible that rating agencies may irhtigHtenre
the level of scrutiy they apply when analyzing companies in our industry, may increase the frequency and scope of their reviews,
may request additional information from the companies that they rate, and may adjust upward the capital and other equirement
employed in theimodels for maintenance of certain rating levels. We can offer no assurances that our ratings will remain at their
current levels.
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If our ratings were downgraded, our competitive position in the reinsurance industry may suffer, and it could result in a
redwction in demand for our products. In addition, certain business that we write contains terms that give the ceding company or
derivative counterparty the right to terminate cover and/or require collateral if our ratings are downgraded.

See Liquidity and Cdfal Resources in Item 5 of this report for our current financial strength ratings. The status of any further
changes to ratings or outlooks will depend on various factors.

We may require additional capital in the future, which may not be available or roaly be available on unfavorable terms.

Our future capital requirements depend on many factors, including regulatory requirements, our ability to write new business
successfully, the frequency and severity of catastrophic events, and our ability talegtebtiium rates and reserves at levels
sufficient to cover losses. We may need to raise additional funds through financings or curtail our growth and redets. duryass
equity or debt financing, if available at all, may be on terms that are not idedoaus. Financings could result in the issuance of
securities that have rights, preferences and privileges that are senior to those of our other securities. Disruptiamaiahe f
markets may limit our ability to access capital required to operatbusiness and we may be forced to delay raising capital or bear
a higher cost of capital, which could decrease our profitability and significantly reduce our financial flexibility. ionadfdite
experience a credit rating downgrade, withdrawalegrative watch/outlook in the future, we could incur higher borrowing costs
and may have more limited means to access capital. If we cannot obtain adequate capital on favorable terms or atredgspur bus
operating results and financial condition coutddalversely affected. In such a severe event, the Company may be reliant on the
parent company, EXOR N.V., to provide a further capital injection or contribution to the Company. However, all EXOR Group
portfolio companies are managed independently andchantously, and there can be no guarantee that EXOR will provide any
additional capital.

The exposure of our investments to interest rate, credit, equity and real estate related risks may limit our net incomayand m
affect the adequacy of our capital.

We invest the net premiums we receive unless, or until such time as, we pay out losses and/or until they are made available f
distribution to common and preferred shareholders, to pay interest on or redemption of debt and preferred shares eounsgderwis
for general corporate purposes. Investment results comprise a substantial portion of our income. For the year ende8December
2017, we had net investment income of $402 million, which represented approximately 7% of total revenues. In addition, we
recorced net realized and unrealized gains on investments of $232 million during 2017, which are recognized in net income. While
the Board has implemented what it believes to be prudent risk management and investment asset allocation practices, we are
exposed tasignificant financial and capital market risks, including changes in interest rates, credit spreads, equity and real estate
prices, foreign exchange rates, market volatility, the performance of the economy in general, and other factors owtsid#. our ¢

Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors, including fiscal and monetary policies of major economies, inflation,
economic and political conditions and other factors outside our control. Changes in interest rates can negativelyaffect us i
ways. In a declining interest rate environment, we will be required to invest our funds at lower rates, which would detireea ne
impact on investment income. We may be forced to liquidate investments prior to maturity at a loss in order to cdiee:. linlaili
rising interest rate environment, the market value of our fixed income portfolio will decline.

Our fixed maturity portfolio is primarily invested in high quality, investment grade securities. However, we invest agbortion
the portfolio in secrities that are below investment grade. We also invest a portion of our portfolio in other investments such as
fixed income type mutual funds, notes receivable, loans receivable, private placement bond investments, derivative exposure
assumed and other gpalty asset classes. These securities generally pay a higher rate of interest and have a higher degree of cred
or default risk. These securities may also be less liquid in times of economic weakness or market disruptions.

We also invest a portion of oportfolio in preferred and common stocks or eqllikg securities. The value of these assets
fluctuates with equity markets. In times of economic weakness, the market value and liquidity of these assets maydiewine, an
impact net income and capitslile use the term equiike investments to describe our investments that have market risk
characteristics similar to equities and are not investment grade fixed maturity securities. This category inchyikdd higyih
convertible fixed maturity investrmés and private placement equity investments. Fluctuations in the fair value of ousliguity
investments may reduce our income in any period or year and cause a reduction in our capital. Our equity risk hadunicrgased
2017 due to an increase mvestments in equities from $39 million at December 31, 2016 to $639 million at December 31, 2017.
As global equity markets are at historically high levels, there can be no assurance that olikegoigstments will maintain
their current levels.

In addition, we invest directly and indirectly in real estate assets, which are subject to overall market conditiongnmoaddit
investments in real estate investment trusts, real estate limited partnerships and an investment in a privately ta¢gdd real es
investment and development group, Almacantar Group S.A.(Almacantar), the Company during 2017 also invested directly in
residential real estate (see Item 4.D and Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). These real estate asssds@re exp
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various risks, including the supply and demand of leasable commercial and residential space and fluctuations in nés¢€state p
globally.

Foreign currency fluctuations may reduce our net income and our capital levels.

Through our multinational reinsurance operations, we conduct business in a variety of foreignnaurrencies, the
principal exposures being the Euro, British pound, Canadian dollar and Swiss Franc. Assets and liabilities denomieéded in for
currencies are exposed to changes in currency exchange rates, which may be material. Our reporting currency is the UcB. dollar, ¢
exchange rate fluctuations relative to the U.S. dollar may materially impact our results and financial position. We eioygoy va
strategies (including hedging) to manage our exposure to foreign currency exchange risk. To the extent that theserexposures a
fully hedged or the hedges are ineffective, our rcuwencyl ts or
exchange rates.

We may suffer losses due to defaults by others, including issuers of investment securities, reinsurance and derivative
counterpatrties.

Issuers or borrowers whose securities we hold, reinsurers, clearing agents, clearing hotisestyo¢ partners, derivative
instrument counterparties and other financial intermediaries may default on their obligations to us due to bankrugogyinsolv
lack of liquidity, adverse economic conditions, operational failure, fraud or other resensf we are entitled to collateral when
a counterparty defaults, such collateral may be illiquid or proceeds from such collateral when liquidated may not beteufficie
recover the full amount of the obligation. All or any of these types of defaulll tave a material adverse effect on our results of
operations, financial condition and liquidity.

Our debt, credit and International Swap Dealers Association (ISDA) agreements may limit our financial and operational
flexibility, which may affect our abity to conduct our business.

We have incurred indebtedness, and may incur additional indebtedness in the future. Additionally, we have entered into credi
facilities and ISDA agreements with various institutions. Under these credit facilities, theiorsifrtovide revolving lines of
credit to us and our major operating subsidiaries and issue letters of credit to our clients in the ordinary coursesof busine

The agreements relating to our debt, credit facilities and ISDA agreements contain varioastsotfeat may limit our ability,
among other things, to borrow money, make particular types of investments or other restricted payments, sell assets, merge or
consolidate. Some of these agreements also require us to maintain specified ratings andréiiasciacluding a minimum net
worth covenant. If we fail to comply with these covenants or meet required financial ratios, the lenders or countegertiessen
agreements could declare a default and demand immediate repayment of all amountstiberadSee Liquidity and Capital
Resource8 Shar ehol dersé Equity and Ceditpgraemdnts iR likem 6 of this emort. Manage me n 't

If we are in default under the terms of these agreements, then we would also be restricted in our abilite tor geestany
dividends, redeem, purchase or acquire any shares or make a liquidation payment.

If any one of the financial institutions that we use in our operations, including those that participate in our credit fes|ifails
or is otherwise unablea meet their commitments, we could incur substantial losses and reduced liquidity.

We maintain cash balances significantly in excess of the U.S. Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limiss at vario
depository institutions. We also have funding commitments from a number of banks and financial institutions that piarticipate
credit facilities. See Liquidity and Capital Resouté&sh ar ehol der s Equity andCeagitpi t al Re:
Agreements in Item 5 of this report. Access to funds under these existing credit facilities is dependent on the abitignksé titia

are parties to the facilities to meet their funding requirements. Those banks may not be able to meet their fundingitedfuireme

they experience shortages of capital and liquidity or if they experience excessive volumes of borrowing requestshaithin a

period of time, and we might be forced to replace credit sources in a difficult market. If we cannot obtain adequatgdinancin
sources of credit on favorable terms, or at all, our business, operating results and financial condition couldebeiaghzarted.

Strategic investments and merger and acquisition (M&A) activities could disrupt the Company's ongoing business and present
risks not originally contemplated.

The Company has made, and in the future may make, strategic investments oii@tsjUisit example, on April 3, 2017,
the Company completed the acquisition of Aurigen Capital Limited (Aurigen), a North American life reinsurance company. Such
endeavors may involve significant risks and uncertainties, including distraction of manaffemerurrent operations, greater than
expected |iabilities and expenses, inadequate return of cze
diligence. In addition, the integration of any acquired companies may place significant deamand management, systems,
internal controls and financial and physical resources. These new ventures or M&A activities are inherently risky andenay not
successful.
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Operational risks, including human or systems failures, are inherent in our business.

Operational risks and losses can result from many sources including fraud, errors by employees, failure to document
transactions properly or to obtain proper internal authorization, failure to comply with regulatory requirements or amformati
technologyfailures.

We believe our modeling, underwriting and information technology and application systems are critical to our business and
reputation. Moreover, our technology and applications have been an important part of our underwriting process angltour abilit
compete successfully. Such technology is and will continue to be a very important part of our underwriting process.¥¢e have a
licensed certain systems and data from third parties. We cannot be certain that we will have access to these, o semjmarabl
providers, or that our technology or applications will continue to operate as intended. In addition, we cannot be tartain tha
would be able to replace these service providers or consultants without slowing our underwriting response finelefecteor
failure in our internal controls or information technology and application systems could result in management distnatton, ha
our reputation, a loss or delay of revenues or increased expense.

Cybersecurity events could disrupt busineggemations, result in the loss of critical and confidential information, and adversely
impact our reputation and results of operations.

We are dependent upon the effective functioning and availability of our information technology and application systems
platforms. These platforms include, but are not limited to, our proprietary software programs such as catastrophe mddeals as wel
those licensed from thirdarty vendors including data storage, analytic and modeling systems. We rely on the security of such
platforms for the secure processing, storage and transmission of confidential information. Examples of cybersecur#yairgcident
unauthorized access, computer viruses, deceptive communications (phishing), malware or other malicious code or cyber attack,
destructive attack, system failures and disruptions and other events that could have security consequences (eachyigyCybersecu
Incident). A Cybersecurity Incident could materially impact our ability to adequately price products and services, estables)
provide efficient and secure services to our clients, brokers, vendors and regulators, value our investments and tb timely an
accurately report our financial results. Although we have implemented controls and have taken protective meatuceshe re
risk of Cybersecurity Incidents, we cannot reasonably anticipate or prevent all Cybersecurity Incidents. Cybersecurity Incide
could expose us to a risk of loss or misuse of our information, litigation, reputational damage, violations dflegpliccy and
other laws, fines, penalties or losses that are either not insured against or not fully covered by insurance maintaaydoe We m
required to expend significant additional resources to modify our protective measures or to investigatedider vulnerabilities.

The loss of key management personnel could adversely affect us.

Our success has depended, and will continue to depend, partly upon our ability to attract and retain management personnel.
any of these key management employeesee to continue in their present role, we could be adversely affected.

We believe there are only a limited number of available qualified executives in the business lines in which we compete. Our
ability to execute our business strategy is dependent oabdlity to attract and retain a staff of qualified executive officers,
underwriters, actuaries and other key personnel. The skills, experience and knowledge of the reinsurance industry of our
management team constitute important competitive strengtsemié or all of these managers leave their positions, and even if we
were able to find persons with suitable skills to replace them, our operations could be adversely affected.

We may be adversely impacted by inflation.

Deficit spending by governmentsirth Company 6s maj or mar kets and monetary s
the Company to a heightened risk of inflation. We monitor the risk that the principal markets in which we operate coettttexper
increased inflationary conditions, which wd, among other things, cause policyholder loss costs to increase, and negatively impact
the performance of our investment portfolio. Inflation related to medical costs, construction costs and tort issuadan ipgrct
the property and casualty iastry, and broader market inflation has the potential risk of increasing overall loss costs. The impact of
inflation on loss costs could be more pronounced for those lines of business that are considered-taibmIpatyre, as they
require a relatigly long period of time to finalize and settle claims. Changes in the level of inflation also result in an increased level
of uncertainty in our estimation of loss reserves, particularly for-taitdines of business. The onset, duration and severiy of
inflationary period cannot be estimated with precision.

Risks Related to Our Industry
Our profitability is affected by the cyclical nature of the reinsurance industry.

Historically, the reinsurance industry has experienced significant fluctuationsiatimg results due to competition, levels of
available capacity, trends in cash flows and losses, general economic conditions and other factors, particularly-lifiehi@dson
of business. Demand for reinsurance is influenced significantly by untieganesults of primary insurers, including catastrophe
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losses, and prevailing general economic conditions. The supply of reinsurance is related directly to prevailing prieds ahd le
capacity that, in turn, may fluctuate in response to changesmahteturn on investments being realized in the reinsurance
industry. If any of these factors were to result in a decline in the demand for reinsurance or an overall increasaiteeinsur
capacity, our profitability could be impacted. In recent yeaeshave experienced a generally softening market cycle, with
increased competition, surplus underwriting capacity, deteriorating rates and less favorable terms and conditionsaall having
impact on our ability to write business.

Currently, the Company experiencing improving market conditions with increased pricing in mostlikoclasses,
primarily in those markets that have been exposed to the catastrophe losses in 2017. As a result of the persisting eochpetitio
excess capacity in the industryistnot possible to forecast if improving pricing conditions will continue in the future.

In spite of the current positive trends in the markets, competition, pricing pressure and any other negative factooveoted ab
may adversely affect our profitabiliand results of operations in future periods, and the impact may be material.

We operate in a highly competitive environment.

The reinsurance industry is highly competitive and we compete with a number of worldwide reinsurance companies,
including, Muincheer RiickversicherungSesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft (Munich Re), Swiss Re Ltd. (Swiss Re), Hannover Riick
SE (Hannover Re), SCOR SE, Transatlantic Reinsurance Company Inc. (Transatlantic), General Reinsurance Corporation (GenR
Reinsurance Group of Aniea, Incorporated (RGA), Everest Re Group, Ltd. (Everest Re), RenaissanceRe Holdings Ltd. (RenRe)
and Validus Holdings, Ltd. (Validus).

The lack of strong barriers to entry into the reinsurance business means that we may also compete with new companies tha
may be formed to enter the reinsurance market. In addition, we may experience increased competition as a result of the
consolidation in the insurance and reinsurance industry. These consolidated entities may try to use their enhancedemnarict pow
relationships to negotiate price reductions for our products and services and/or obtain a larger market share througlniecreased
sizes. Consolidated companies may also purchase less reinsurance product and services, due to increased levels of capital.

Competition in the types of reinsurance that we underwrite is based on many factors, including the perceived and relative
financial strength, pricing and other terms and conditions, services provided, ratings assigned by independent ratingp@egshcie
of claims payment, geographic scope of business, client and broker relationships, reputation and experience in thesiness of b
to be written. If competitive pressures reduce our prices, we would expect to write less business. In addition, cdampetition
customers would become more intense and we could incur additional expenses relating to customer acquisition and retention,
further reducing our operating margins.

Further, insurancéinked securities, derivatives and other ricaditional risk transfemechanisms and alternative vehicles are
being developed and offered by other parties, which could impact the demand for traditional insurance or reinsuranceof numbe
new, proposed or potential industry or legislative developments could furthers@a@apetition in our industry. New competition
from these developments could cause the demand for reinsurance and/or prices to fall or the expense of customer agquisition a
retention to increase, either of which could have a material adverse effaat growth and profitability.

All of the above factors may adversely affect our profitability and results of operations in future periods, the impitt of wh
may be material, and may adversely affect our ability to successfully execute our strategybas divgrsified reinsurance
company.

Legal and Regulatory Risks
Political, regulatory, governmental and industry initiatives could adversely affect our business.

Our reinsurance operations are subject to extensive laws and regulations that are adhanidtenéorced by a number of
different governmental and naggovernmental selfegulatory authorities and associations in each of their respective jurisdictions
and internationally. Our businesses in each jurisdiction are subject to varying degreetatibregnd supervision. The laws and
regulations of the jurisdictions in which our reinsurance subsidiaries are domiciled require, among other things, maihtenance
minimum levels of statutory capital, surplus, and liquidity; various solvency standards;ap er i odi ¢ exami nati o
financial condition. In some jurisdictions, laws and regulations also restrict payments of dividends and reductions of capita
Applicable statutes, regulations, and policies may also restrict the ability oftiiesidiaries to write insurance and reinsurance
policies, to make certain investments, and to distribute funds.

Some of these authorities regularly consider enhanced or new regulatory requirements intended to prevent future crises or
otherwise assure théability of institutions under their supervision. These authorities may also seek to exercise their supervisory
authority in new and more robust ways, and new regulators could become authorized to oversee parts of our business.
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It is not possible to prediall future impacts of these types of changes but they could affect the way we conduct our business
and manage our capital, and may require us to satisfy increased capital requirements, any of which, in turn, couldesftétst our
of operations, finarnical condi ti on and | iquidity. Our material subsi di
Business Overvied Regulation in Iltem 4 of this report. For example, our regulated reinsurance subsidiaries across the European
Union (EU) are subjado the Directive 2009/138/EC (EU directive) of the European Parliament and of the Council on thepaking
and pursuit of the business of Insurance and Reinsurance (Solvency Il). Bermuda's commercial reinsurance regime that our
regulated Bermuda reinsance subsidiaries operates within has achieved Solvency Il equivalence with the EU directive. Solvency
Il covers capital adequacy, risk management and regulatory reporting for insurers, and came into effect on Januaryeln2916. W
not be able to complully with, or obtain appropriate exemptions from, such requirements or similar regulations, in their current
form or as they may be amended in the future, which may have a material adverse effect on our business. We are glsmdurrently
may in the futwe be, subject to regulatory investigation (see Regulation in Iltem 5.B of this report). If our compliance with Solvency
Il or any other regulatory regime is challenged, we may be subject to monetary or other penalties. In addition, innsider to e
compiance with applicable regulatory requirements or as a result of any investigation, including remediation efforts, we could be
required to incur significant expenses and undertake additional work, which in turn may divert resources from our theseess.
and other regulations relating to each of our maytewriieal sut
new business, to make certain investments and to distribute funds or assets to us.

Recent government intervention ame possibility of future government intervention have created uncertainty in the
insurance and reinsurance markets. Government regulators are generally concerned with the protection of policyholders to the
exclusion of other interested parties, includihgreholders and debt holders of reinsurers. We believe it is likely there will continue
to be increased regulation of, and other forms of government participation in, our industry in the future, which coely advers
affect our business by, among othengs:

A Providing reinsurance capacity in markets and to clients that we target or requiring our participation in industry pools and
guaranty associations;

Further restricting our operational or capital flexibility;
Expanding the scope of coverage under existing policies;

Regulating the terms of reinsurance policies;

Do P > e

Adopting further or changing compliance requirements which may result in additional costs which may adversely impact
our results of operation; or

A Disproportionately benefiting the companies domiciled in one country over those domiciled in another.

Legislative and regulatory activity in healthcare may affect our profitability as a provider of accident and health reinsaran
benefit products.

We derive reveues from the provision of accident and health premiums in the U.S., by providing reinsurance to institutions
that participate in the U.S. healthcare delivery infrastructure. The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010 (the
Healthcare Act) madsignificant changes to the regulation of health insurance and may negatively affect our healthcare liability
reinsurance business including, but not limited to, the healthcare delivery system and the healthcare cost reimbursenecint stru
the U.S. In ddition, the Company may be subject to regulations, guidance or determinations emanating from the various regulaton
authorities authorized under the Healthcare Act. It is difficult to predict the effect that the Healthcare Act, anyyegulator
pronouncemeimade thereunder or changes to the Healthcare Act, will have on its results of operations or financial condition. In
addition, it is not possible to predict whether new legislation, rules or regulatory changes will be adopted or enadigdria th
what impact, if any, such legislation, rules or changes could have on our business, financial condition or result®atoperati

Legal and enforcement activities relating to the insurance industry could affect our business and our industry.

The insurancéndustry has experienced substantial volatility as a result of litigation, investigations and regulatory activity by
various insurance, governmental and enforcement authorities concerning certain practices within the insurance industry.

These investigatianhave resulted in changes in the insurance and reinsurance markets and industry business practices. Whil
at this time, none of these changes have caused an adverse effect on our business, we are unable to predict theqgtsténtial eff
any, that futue investigations may have upon our industry. As noted above, because we frequently assume the credit risk of the
counterparties with whom we do business throughout our insurance and reinsurance operations, our results of operagons could
adversely affeted if the credit quality of these counterparties is severely impacted by investigations in the reinsurance or insurance
industry or by changes to industry practices.
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Emerging claim and coverage issues could adversely affect our business.

Unanticipated developments in the law, as well as changes in social and environmental conditions could potentially result in
unexpected claims for coverage under our reinsurance and other contracts. These developments and changes may adversely affe
our husiness by either extending coverage beyond our underwriting intent or by increasing the number or size of claims. With
respect to our casualty businesses, these legal, social and environmental changes may not become apparent until sometime afte
their ocairrence. Our exposure to these uncertainties could be exacerbated by an increase in insurance and reinsurance contract
disputes, arbitration and litigation.

The full effects of these and other unforeseen emerging claim and coverage issues are extihoghyddict. As a result,
the full extent of our liability under our coverages, and in particular, our casualty reinsurance contracts, may not fog kmewyn
years after a contract is issued.

The reinsurance industry is also affected by political giatiand legal developments that may create new and expanded
theories of liability, which may result in unexpected claim frequency and severity and delays or cancellations of prbducts an
services we provide, which could adversely affect our business.

Our international business is subject to applicable laws and regulations relating to sanctions, foreign corrupt practices and
money laundering, the violation of which could adversely affect our operations.

Our activities are subject to applicable economictaade sanctions, artiribery and money laundering laws and regulations
in the jurisdictions where we operate including the U.S. and the European Union (EU), among others. Compliance with these
regulations may impose significant costs, limit or restrictatility to do business or engage in certain activities, or subject us to
the possibility of civil or criminal actions or proceedings. Although we have policies and controls in place designeditaitbmp
applicable laws and regulations, it is possihkgt we, or an employee or agent acting on our behalf could fail to comply with
applicable laws and regulations as interpreted by the relevant authorities and, given the complex nature of the rigks, it may
always be possible for us to attain complianith such laws and regulations. The implementation of the Joint Comprehensive Plan
of Action, and the resulting divergence of regulatory requirements between U.S. and EU entities and persons regarding busines
with Iran, has increased these risks. Faitoraccurately interpret or comply with or obtain appropriate authorizations and/or
exemptions under such laws or regulations could expose us to civil penalties, criminal penalties and other sanctioggjresudi
or other punitive actions. In additipsuch violations could damage our business and/or our reputation. Such criminal or civil
sanctions, penalties, other sanctions, and damage to our business and/or reputation could have a material adverse effect on o
financial condition and results of agions.

Our international business is subject to applicable laws and regulations relating to data privacy and protection and cybigrsec
the changes or the violation of which could affect our operations.

Regulatory authorities around the world havelenpented or are considering a number of legislative changes or regulations
concerning data protection and cybersecurity. Existing cybersecurity regulations vary by region or country in which PartnerRe
operates and cover different aspects of business apexat).S. regulation provide a basis for operations while the EU has created a
more tailored regulation for businesses operating specifically within the EU.

The General Data Protection Regulation, which regulates data protection for all individualgheitBld, including foreign
companies processing data of EU residents, becomes eackef ecti
complex and fareaching company obligations and increases penalties significantly in case tiéwidlae interpretation and
application of data protection laws in the U.S., Europe and elsewhere are developing and are often uncertain anigin flux. It
possible that these laws or cybersecurity regulations may be interpreted and applied in a misriactmsistent with our data
protection or security practices. If so, in addition to the possibility of fines, this will result in an order requiring tetnge our
data practices, which could have an adverse effect on our business and repdtataires. Complying with these various laws will
cause us to incur substantial costs and require us to change our business practices.

As a group operating worldwide, we strive to comply with all applicable data protection laws and regulations. Ité& howev
possible that we fail to comply with applicable laws and regulations. The failure or perceived failure to comply may result i
inquiries and other proceedings or actions against us by government entities or others, or could cause us to losetcieots whi
potentially have an adverse effect on our business.
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Changes in current accounting practices and future pronouncements may materially impact our reported financial results.

Developments in accounting practices may require considerable additio@and cost to comply, particularly if we are
required to prepare information relating to prior periods for comparative purposes or to apply the new requirement&hgtroacti
The impact of changes in current accounting practices and future pronoutsemagrbe significant. The impact may affect the
results of our operations, including among other things, the calculation of net income, and may affect our financial position
including among other things, the calculation of unpaid losses and loss exparisgenefits for life and annuity contracts and
total sharehol derso6 equity.

We are subject to cybersecurity risks and may incur increasing costs in an effort to manage those risks.

The cybersecurity regulatory environment is evolving, and the detatsts and resources required for complying with new
or developing regulatory requirements will increase. For example, in February 2017, the NYDFS issued final Cybersecurity
Requirements for Financial Service Companies that will require regulated aotiéigtablish and maintain a cybersecurity program
designed to protect consumers and ensure the safety and sc
requirements are the maintenance of a cybersecurity program with governance asiioésed minimum data security standards
for technology systems, cyber breach preparedness and response requirements, including reporting obligations, venilor oversigh
training, and program record keeping and certification obligations. The regulataméeffective on March 1, 2017, subject to
certainphase n peri ods. Depending on the regulationds i mplementa
Partner Reinsurance Company of the U.S. (PartnerRe U.S). We may be required tgmificergi expense in order to meet its
requirements. We also operate in a number of jurisdictions with strict data privacy and other related laws, which acdatddmvi
the event of a significant cybersecurity incident, or by our personnel. Failcoengly with these obligations can give rise to
monetary fines and other penalties, which could be significant.

Risks Related to Our Preferred Shares

PartnerRe Ltd. is a holding company, and if our subsidiaries do not pay dividends or make other distrisut us, we may not
be able to pay dividends on our preferred shares or settle principal payments as they become due.

PartnerRe Ltd. is a holding company with no operations to generate income to provide liquidity other than the cash received
for issuancef common shares and preferred shares. We have cash outflows in the form of other expenses and dividends to both
common and preferred shareholders. We rely primarily on cash dividends and payments from our subsidiaries to meet our cash
outflows. We expeduture dividends and other permitted payments from our subsidiaries to be the principal source of funds to pay
expenses and dividends. The ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends or to advance or repay funds to us is subjatt to gen
economic, finacial, competitive, regulatory and other factors beyond our control. In particular, the payment of dividends by our
reinsurance subsidiaries is limited under Bermuda and Irish laws and certain statutes of various U.S. states in which our U.S
subsidiariesre licensed to transact business and include minimum solvency and liquidity thresholds. In 2016, EXOR S.p.A.
(subsequently renamed EXOR N.V.) and the Company agreed, as part of the terms of the preferred share exchange (see Note 11
the Consolidated Fancial Statements in Item 18 of this report), that the payment of dividends on common shares be restricted to a
amount not exceeding 67% of net income per fiscal quarter until December 31, 2020. In addition, as a condition of tie& acquisi
by Exor N.V.(subsequently renamed EXOR Nederland N.V.), PartnerRe U.S. and PartnerRe America Insurance Company
committed that it would not take any action to pay any dividend for theygé&o period from March 18, 2016 to March 18, 2018
without the prior approval ohe New York State Department of Financial Services and the Delaware Commissioner of Insurance,
respectively. At Decemb& 1, 2017, there were no other restrictions on t
sharehol der sé died eathiags,dsepffor cerainiregudatonry and statutory restrictions on dividend payments
applicable to our reinsurance subsidiaries (see Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Iltem 18 of thia report fo
description of these restriction8ecause we are a holding company, our right, and hence the right of our creditors and
shareholders, to participate in any distribution of assets by any of our subsidiaries, upon our liquidation or reorganization
otherwise, is subject to the prior claiwfspolicyholders and creditors of these subsidiaries.

Our controlling shareholder owns a significant majority of our common shares, and its interest may differ from the interests
our preferred shareholders.

EXOR Nederland N.V. owns 100% of the outstanding Class A shares of the Company. As a result, EXOR Nederland N.V.
has power to elect our directors and to determine trhag out c
differfromthe i nterests of the holders of our preferred shares &
Company, circumstances may arise under which EXOR Nederland N.V. may exercise its control in a manner that is notdavorable
the inerests of the holders of the preferred shares.
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Preferred shareholders may encounter difficulties in service of process and enforcement of judgments against us in the United
States.

We are a Bermuda company and some of our directors and officers aretsesfdamious jurisdictions outside the U.S. All,
or a substantial portion, of the assets of our officers and directors and of our assets are or may be located injuigdidgotne
U.S. Although we have appointed an agent and irrevocably agredtategent may be served with process in New York with
respect to actions against us arising out of violations of the U.S. Federal securities laws in any Federal or stateeddi8t,iit
could be difficult for investors to effect service of procedthin the U.S. on our directors and officers who reside outside the U.S. It
could also be difficult for investors to enforce against us or our directors and officers judgments of a U.S. courthupdicate
civil liability provisions of U.S. Federal secties laws.

There is no treaty in force between the U.S. and Bermuda providing for the reciprocal recognition and enforcement of
judgments in civil and commercial matters. As a result, whether a U.S. judgment would be enforceable in Bermuda agaimst us or
directors and officers depends on whether the U.S. court that entered the judgment is recognized by the Bermuda cgurt as havi
jurisdiction over us or our directors and officers, as determined by reference to Bermuda conflict of law rules. A jdelginfiexmh
a U.S. court that is final and for a sum certain based on U.S. Federal securities laws will not be enforceable in Bessuka unl
judgment debtor had submitted to the jurisdiction of the U.S. court, and the issue of submission and juissdiatiater of
Bermuda law and not U.S. law.

In addition to and irrespective of jurisdictional issues, Bermuda courts will not enforce a U.S. Federal securitiesslaw that
either penal or contrary to public policy. An action brought pursuant to a putpienal law, the purpose of which is the
enforcement of a sanction, power or right at the instance of the state in its sovereign capacity will not be entereduniaa Ber
court. Certain remedies available under the laws of U.S. jurisdictions, includtagphaemedies under U.S. Federal securities laws,
would not be available under Bermuda law or enforceable in Bermuda court, as they would be contrary to Bermuda public policy.
Further, no claim can be brought in Bermuda against us or our directors igedsaff the first instance for violation of U.S. Federal
securities laws because these laws have no extra jurisdictional effect under Bermuda law and do not have force of lagain Berm
A Bermuda court may, however, impose civil liability on us or oveators and officers if the facts alleged in a complaint constitute
or give rise to a cause of action under Bermuda law.

Taxation Risks
Changes in our effective income tax rate could affect our results of operations.

Our effective income tax rate could &dversely affected in the future by net income being lower than anticipated in
jurisdictions where we have a relatively lower statutory tax rate and net income being higher than anticipated in fsristiete
we have a relatively higher statutory taxe, or by changes in corporate tax rates and tax regulations in any of the jurisdictions in
which we operate. We are subject to regular audit by tax authorities in the various jurisdictions in which we operatergay ad
outcome of such an audit couldve an adverse effect on our net income, effective income tax rate and financial condition.

In addition, the determination of our provisions for income taxes requires significant judgment, and the ultimate tax
determination related to some tax positiodetais uncertain. Although we believe our provisions are reasonable, the ultimate tax
outcome may differ from the amounts recorded in our consolidated financial statements and may materially affect ouenet incom
and effective income tax rate in the pergadth determination is made.

The U.S. Tax Cuts and Jobs Act could materially and negatively impact our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

The U.S. Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the ATCJAO) was signed |
corporate income tax rate from 35 percent to 21 percent, the TCJA fundamentally changed many elements of U.S. tax law and
introduced seval new concepts to tax multinational corporations such as us. Among the most notable new rules are the Base
Erosion and AntiAbuse Tax (commonly called BEAT), which for insurance groups potentially expands U.S. taxation on the
earnings of foreign subsidias. It is possible that future interpretation, enforcement actions or regulatory changes by the Internal
Revenue Service could increase the impact of the TCJA beyond current assessments.
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If our non-U.S. operations become subject to U.S. income taxatium,net income will decrease.

We believe that we and our n@hS. subsidiaries, other than certain business sourced by Partner Reinsurance Europe SE
(PartnerRe Europe) and PartnerRe Ireland dac (PartnerRe Ireland) through the U.S., have operatedoatimiaito operate, our
respective businesses in a manner that will not cause us to be viewed as engaged in a trade or business in the bisSbasid, on t
we do not expect that either we or our idi$. subsidiaries will be required to pay U.S. cogt® income taxes (other than
potential withholding taxes on certain types of U.S. source passive income) or branch profits taxes. Because thermlsdeonside
uncertainty as to the activities that constitute being engaged in a trade or business evithg tthe IRS may contend that either
we or our norJ.S. subsidiaries are engaged in a trade or business in the U.S. In addition, legislation regarding the scope of non
U.S. entities and operations subject to U.S. income tax has been proposed in gredpasty be proposed again in the future. If
eitherweorournowd. S. subsi diaries are subject to U.S. income tax,
the amount of such taxes, which might be material.

The Organisation for EconomiCocoper ati on and Development 6s (OECD) initiati
in higher taxation and increased complexity, burden and cost of compliance.

The OECD has published reports and launched a global initiative among member -anehniogr countries on measures to
limit harmful tax competition, known as the Base Erosion and Profit Shifting (BEPS) p@ject. June 21, 2016, th
of Finance and Economic Affairs unanimously approved the FastiAvoidance Directive to harmize potential BEPS changes in
the EU.These measures are largely directed at counteracting the effects of tax havens and preferential tax regimes in countries
around the world. We expect that countries may change their tax laws in response to thisapibgteral countries have already
changed or proposed changes to their tax laws. Changes to tax laws and additional reporting requirements could increase the
complexity, burden and cost of doing business with our Bermuda companies and/or subject odaBempanies to increased tax
and compliance burdens.

Our tax position could be adversely impacted by changes in tax laws, tax treaties or tax regulations or the interpretation or
enforcement thereof.

We could be adversely impacted by changes in tax (Bekiding the TCJA), tax treaties or tax regulations or the
interpretation or enforcement thereof by taxation authorities. Changes could have a material and adverse change inideir worldw
effective tax rate and we may have to take further action totseakigate the effect of such changes. Any future amendments to
existing income tax treaties between the jurisdictions in which we operate, could subject us to increased taxatioreatidllyr pot
significant expense.
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ITEM 4. INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

A. History and Development of the Company

PartnerRe Ld., an exempt company incorporated under the laws of Bermuda with limited liability, is the holding company for
our international reinsurance group (PartnerRe group) and was incorporated in Bermuda in August 1993. The principal office is
located at90 Pilts Bay Road, Pembr oke, B e 2920888). THe tCampany gredlomeantlypnovidesr : +
reinsurance on a worldwide basis through its principal whmlyed subsidiaries, including Partner Reinsurance Company Ltd.
(PartnerRe Bermuda), PartriReinsurance Europe SE (PartnerRe Europe), Partner Reinsurance Company of the U.S. (PartnerRe
Uu.S.) and, effective Apri/l 1, 2015, Partner Reinsueld8.ce As
is located at 200 First StanmtbPlace, Stamford, Connecticut (telephone number: +1 203 485 4200).

The Company completed the acquisition of Societe Anonyme Francaise de Reassurances (SAFR, subsequently renamed
PartnerRe SA) in 1997, the acquisition of Winterthur Re in 1998, the a@muisf PARIS RE Holdings Limited (Paris Re) in 2009
and the acquisition of Presidio Reinsurance Group, Inc. (Presidio) in 2012. In addition, the Company completed thenasfquisitio
Aurigen Capital Limited (Aurigen) on April 3, 2017, after receiving alt@essary regulatory approvals, by purchasing 100% of the
outstanding ordinary shares for CAD 370 million (or approximately $278 million). Aurigen is a North American life reinsurance
company and this acquisition enables the Company to expand its liferegios footprint in Canada and the U.S. with limited
overlap in market coverage.

On March 18, 2016, following receipt of regulatory approvals, the Company's publicly held common shares were acquired by
Exor N. V., a subsi di ar ysleafing BEveSrRent8ampaniés.controded by the Agndllidiamity.ple 6
October 2016, Exor N.V. changed its name to EXOR Nederland N.V. In December 2016, EXOR S.p.A. merged with and into EXOI
HOLDING N.V., a newly formed entity organized in the Netherlandl anconjunction with the merger, EXOR HOLDING N.V.
changed its name to EXOR N.V. EXOR N.V. is listed on the Milan Stock Exchange. As a result of the acquisition, PartnerRe's
publicly issued common shares were cancelled and are no longer traded orstlile NY The Companyo6s prefer |
be traded on the NYSE.

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company's Class A shares included in Shareholders' Equity on the Consolidated Balar
Sheets are owned by EXOR Nederland N.V.

B. Business Overview

The Company provides reinsurance for its clients in app
offices are located in HamiltofBermuda), Dublin, Stamford (Connecticut, U.S.), Toronto, Paris, Singapore and Zurich.

The Company provides reinsurance of risks to ceding companies (cedants or reinsureds). Risks reinsured include, but are nc
limited to, agriculture, aviation/space, casualty, catastrophe, energy, engineering, financial risks, marine, motar,andltilin
property as well as mortality, l ongevity, accident oduntgd hea
include weather and credit protection to financial, industrial and service companies on a worldwide basis.

Reinsurance is &red on either a proportional or nrproportional basis through treaties or facultative reinsurance:

A In a proportional (or quota share) treaty reinsurance agreement, the reinsurer assumes a proportional share of the origina
premiums and losses incurregthhe cedant. The reinsurer pays the ceding company a commission, which is generally based
on the ceding companyés cost of acquiring the business |
and miscellaneous administrative expens@s) may also include a profit.

A In a nonproportional (or excess of loss) treaty reinsurance agreement the reinsurer indemnifies the reinsured against all o
a specified portion of losses on underlying insurance policies in excess of a specified amehnt edlled a retention or
attachment point. Neproportional business is written in layers and a reinsurer or group of reinsurers accepts a band of
coverage up to a specified amount. The total coverage purchased by the cedant is referred to asangrisgngically

placed with predetermined reinsurers in-pegotiated layers. Any liability exceeding the upper limit of the program reverts to
the ceding company.

A In a facultative (proportional or nguroportional) reinsurance agreement the reinsusamass individual risks. The
reinsurer separately rates and underwrites each risk rather than assuming all or a portion of a class of risks ain the case
treaty reinsurance.
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The Company monitors the performance of its operations in three worldwidessisinits comprised of Property & Casualty
(P&C), Specialty and Life and Health, which represent its segments. The P&C segment is comprised of property and casualty
business, including property catastrophe and facultative risks, underwritten in Nortlté&ngniope, Asia, Latin America, Middle
East, Africa and Russia. The Specialty segment is comprised of specialty business, including treaty and facultativeltentracts
combined business included in the P&C and Specialty segments is collectively refémréitis report as Naolife business.

The Companyds Life and Health segment includes the mort
Kingdom (U.K.), Ireland and France, accident and health business written in the U.S. and, fahewdnguisition of Aurigen,
mortality business originating in Canada and the U.S.

See Results by Segment in Item 5 of this report and Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this repc
for further details on Segments.

T h e Co nmjusinesged are geographically diversified with premiums being written on a worldwide basis.

Premium Distribution

The Companyds gross premi ums wr it t34,R015 2016aed261& are as follows (ih h e
millions of U.S. dollas). Segment data included below for prior years has been recast to conform to the current year presentation.

2017 2016 2015
$ % $ % $ %
Nontlife business:
P&C segment $ 2,25¢ 4C% $ 2,26¢ 42% $ 2,371 43%
Specialty segment 1,93¢ 3% 1,92( 36% 1,90¢ 34%
Total Nortlife business 4,18¢ 75% 4,18¢ 78% 4,27 7%
Life and Health segment 1,39¢ 2% 1,16¢ 22% 1,271 23%
$ 5,58¢ 10(% $ 5,357 10C% $ 5,54¢ 10C%

See Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements irnlBewhthis report for additional disclosure of the geographic
di stribution of gross premiums written and for informatior

The Companyds r es ul aedsnOpeyating ReguitdRastilts lay ISegment ireltebaohthis report.

Distribution Channels

The Company generates business through brokers and through direct relationships with insurance companies. For the year
ended Decembddl, 2017, the Companyhadtwolo k er s t hat i ndividually accounted fo
premiums written.

Non-Life

The percentage of Nelife gross premiums written through these two brokers for the year ended De@&mBeL7 was as
follows:

Broker Percentage
Marsh (including Guy Carpenter) 32%
Aon Group (including the Benfield Group) 25%

The combined percentage of Nbife gross premiums written through these two brokers by segment for the year ended
DecembeB1, 2017 was as follows:

Non-life segment Percentage
P&C S1%
Specialty 56%
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The majority of the Companyds gross premiums written we
DecembeBl, 2017, 2016 and 2015.

Life and Health

The Companyds Life and Health business is generated bot
companies. For the year ended Decen®ier2017, only one broker, the Aon Group (including the Benfield Group), accounted for
moretharl 0 % of t he Life and Health segmentdés total gross prem

accounted for more than 10% of the Life and Health segment

The gross premiums written in each of the Compangsisats for the years ended Decenfier2017, 2016 and 2015, and
the yearoveryear comparisons, are described in Operating Rés&esults by Segment in Itebnof this report.

The geographic distribution of t heyedtsemipdDecerdldd, 201y t2@l6andr o s
2015 is presented in Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report.

Competition

The Company competes with other reinsurers, some of which have greater financial, marketing and maresyemees
than the Company, and also competes with new market entrants, and, specifically in the catastrophe line of businessativith alt
capital sources and insurarlieked securities. Competition in the types of reinsurance that the Compaswitels is based on
many factors, including the perceived and relative financial strength, pricing and other terms and conditions, serdieds provi
ratings assigned by independent rating agencies, speed of claims payment, and reputation and expleeidines bf business to
be written.

Management believes the Company ranks among the worl dobés
client services and highly technical underwriting expertise. Management also believesthatthp any é6s gl ob all froe
diversified platform, which allows the Company to provide broad risk solutions across many lines of business and ge@graphies,
increasingly attractive to cedants who are choosing to utilize fewer reinsurers by congptititineinsurance panels and focus on
those reinsurers who can cover more than one | ine of busir
ratios allow the Company to demonstrate a solid balance sheet to its clients.

Management believes that the Comp a HifgBusinessare the largercEnrppean,i t o r
U.S. and Bermudbased international reinsurance companies, as well as specialty reinsurers and regional companies in certain loc
markes. These competitors include Munich Re, Swiss Re, Hannover Re, SCOR SE, Transatlantic, GenRe, Everest Re, RenRe an
Validus.

For the Companyés Life business, the c o nnptienalireginsucersand iodalf e r
reinsurers or statewned insurers in the U.K., Ireland and Continental Europe for its mortality and longevity lines of business. The
competition specifically related to the Health business generally includes other specialty accident and health reirsridanse pr
in the U.S. and departments of worldwide reinsurance companies. These competitors include Munich Re, RGA, Swiss Re,
Hannover Re, SCOR SE and GenRe.

Risk Management

In the reinsurance industry, the core of the business model is the assumption and management of risk. A key challenge is to
create shareholder value through the intelligent and optimal assumption and management of reinsurance and investnilent risks wh
limiting and mitigating those risks that can destroy value, those risks for which the organization is not sufficiently cedymerkat
those risks that could threaten the ability of the Company to achieve its objectives. The Company definesasepisal
appetite and then looks for risks that meet its return targets within that framework. Management believes that thisaltowstruct
the Company to deliver to shareholders an adequate risk adjusted return, while ensuring appropriate marginsugxists to p
policyholders' claims.

All business decisions entail a risk/returntradé f , and t hese decisions are applical
assumed business risks, this requires an accurate evaluation of risks to be assumed, andatidatefitiie appropriate economic
returns required as fair compensation for such risks. In the context of other than voluntarily assumed business rissisrthe de
relates to comparing the probability and potential severity of a risk event againssthefcrisk mitigation strategies. In many
cases, the potential impact of a risk event is so severe as to warrant significant, and potentially expensive, rigk shitigagies.

In other cases, the probability and potential severity of a risk doegan@nt extensive risk mitigation.

Successful ri sk management is the foundation of the Comj
its risk management strategy. The Co mp amandgemeatisdependeytortite s uc
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ability to accurately analyze and quantify risk, to understand volatility and how risks aggregate or correlate, anishatlestabl
appropriate capital requirements and limits for the risks assumed. All risks, whetharaheinsuranceelated risks or capital

market risks, are managed by the Company within an integrated framework of policies and processes to ensure theridtelligent a
consistent evaluation and valuation of risk, and to ultimately provide an approptiateto shareholders.

The Companyds results are primarily determined by how we
Management also believes that every organization faces numerous risks that could threaten the successful achisvgoadst
and objectives. These include strategic, financial and operational risks that are common to all industries, such astcteige of
and markets, economic and business cycles, competition, changes in regulation, data quality andraadyubtysihess
interruption and management continuity. See Risk Factors above.

The Company has a clearly defined governance structure for risk management. The Company has established an Enterprise
Risk Committee (ERC) which, in junction with the Board, mrgponsible for setting the overall vision and goals of the Company,
which include the Companyds risk appetite and returnsexpec
recommended by Executive Management through ERC andwagptb by t he Boar d. Each of the C
specific risk and describes the Companyds approach to ri sk
assumption, mitigation, and control processes for that risk, andcatation process for exceptions. Risk management policies and
processes are coordinated by the Capital & Risk department and compliance is verified by Internal Audit on a peridttie basis.
audit results are monitored by the Audit Committee of the @®oar

The Company utilizes a mulével risk management structure where the Executive Management and Board are responsible fol
the establishment of the critical exposure limits, capital at risk and key policies. Nevertheless, the execution obBtigtiesss
and related risk mitigation strategies are del egadnteod t o tt
practices embedded in the BUs which support the high level policies. Reporting on risk management activitiegtésl infégn
the Companyds annual pl anning process, quarterly operatior
presentations to the Executive Management and Board. Individual Business Units and Support Units employ, and ale fesponsib
reporting on, current risk management procedures and controls, while Internal Audit periodically evaluates the effeétsieress
procedures and controls.

Risk Universe

The Company structures its risks within a Risk Universe which is compridadusdtry and Company Risks. Industry Risks
are those risks which are external to the Company caused by changes in demand and supply patterns, such as the competitive
structure of the industry, as well as macroeconomic and regulatory trends. In cQunasgny Risks are those risks which arise as
a direct result of business operations. These risks are further structured by the followéategobies:

Strategic Risks

Strategic risks are discussed and agreed to between the CEO and the Board, aed byattegCEO, and include the
direction and governance of the Company, as well as its response to key external factors faced by the reinsuranagcimdgstry, s
changes in cedantsd risk retention b e lomig legarandsocelgrentisat i on,
Management considers that strong governance procedures, including a robust system of processes and internal controls are
appropriate to manage risks related to its reputation and risks related to new initiatives, inclydisitjats, new products or
markets. The Company seeks to preserve its reputation through high professional and ethical standards and managed the impact
identified risks through the adoption and implementation of a sound and comprehensive assumsadavebrk.

Operational and Financial Risks

Operational and financial risks are managed by designated functions within the organization. These risks include, but are not
limited to, failures or weaknesses in financial reporting and controls, regulatogongsliance, poor cash management, fraud,
breach of information technology security, disaster recovery planning and reliance epetityrédendors. The Company seeks to
minimize these risks through robust processes and monitoring throughout the organization.

Assumed Risks

The Company 0 s canduces atwhe Business dJnit level through specialized underwriting teams with the support
of technical staff in disciplines such as actuarial, claims, legal, risk management and finance.

The Companyds under writer s witethedr tedipg campansceunterpartskandrbgpkers thilowgh i
regular visits, gathering detailed information aboofithe t he ¢
underwriting process, the underwriters also focus on the putnd quality of the proposed cedant, the likelihood of establishing
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alongt er m rel ationship with the cedant, the geographic area
historical loss data for the cedant and, where availAdtgrical loss data for the industry as a whole in the relevant regions, in
order to compare the cedantédés historical | oss expewraneence t

expertise and financial strength of the cedaihe Company trains its underwriters and strives to maintain continuity of
underwriters within specific geographic markets and areas of specialty.

The Company generally underwrites risks with specified limits per treaty program or facultative corkeaother
reinsurance companies, the Company is exposed to multiple insured losses arising out of a single occurrence, whether a natura
event such as hurricane, windstorm, tornado, flood or earthquake, enatinevents. Any such catastrophic event cgeafterate
insured | osses in one or many of the Company®s rei messr ance
The Company considers such event scenarios as part of its evaluation and monitoring of its aggregate exjatasiresptocc
events.

Investment Risk

The Company defines this risk as the risk of a substantial decline in the value of its holdings in fixed income, eqitities, eq
|l i ke securities, real estate, and o atddénformationsygsEern pnavides réimeat e g or
investment data, allowing for continuous monitoring and decision support. Each portfolio is managed against a predetermined
benchmark to enable alignment with appropriate risk parameters and achievement ofelesitedAny such investment risks
could generate |l osses in the Companyds portfolios. Thge Cor
of its aggregate exposures to investment risk.

Market Risk

Financial assets are definedthg Company as comprising of its equity and eqliiky securities which include all invested
assets that are not investment grade standard fixed income securities and certain fixed income asset classes théd &beitnot lig
excludes certain insurandieked securities, such as catastrophe bonds, as that risk is aggregated with liability risks). The Company
limits its aggregate exposure to financial assets as well dgngitdothe exposures by type of financial assets (public equity, private
equity, rel estate and alternative credit). Refer to Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report for
further details of equities and changes in composition of investments, including equities, over the prior year.

Credit Spread Risk

The Company defines this risk as the risk of a substantial decline in the market value of its fixed income assets that is not a
result of changes in riskee interest rates. Spread risk also includes migration and default risks (defined as the riskehat a g
security is downgraded or upgraded before maturity and the risk that recovery is less than the full valuation of the security
respectively). The Company limits its aggregate exposure to spread risk dimdigulis exposures by sector, by individissuer
and by rating.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company defines this risk as the risk of a substantial mismatch of asset and liability durations, which may result in
economic losses to the Company. Economically, the Company is hedged against changearia #iability values resulting from
small parallel changes in the riflee yield curve to the degree asset and liability durations are matched. Nonparallel shifts in the
yield curve or extremely large changes in yields can introduce investment losisesiegree that asset maturity and coupon
payments are not exactly matched to liability payments. Investment losses associated with interest rate risk of a hetgmituele t
the potential to exceed t he Co mmalynlargencreases ik intérestirates aver ancannaal e
period. See Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marke{iReslest Rate Risk in Iterhil of this report.

a)
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Risk Appetite and Risk Tolerance

Risk appetite is an integral part of an effectivwk nnanagement system that defines the overall level of risk the Company is
prepared to accept in pursuit of its strategic objectives, and which is managed through a robust Risk Tolerance Framskwork of
limits. Executive Management regularly reviews@e mpany 6s depl oyment and may deci de
deployed for each risk driver (within the established risk tolerance) based on strategic considerations and changes in market
conditions.

The Companyds risk tolerance is expressed as the maxi mut
modeled probability return periods. To mitigate the chance of economic losses exceeding the risk tolerance, the Company relie
upon dversification of risk sources and risk limits to manage exposures. Diversification enables losses from one risk source to be
of fset by profits from other risk sources so that cedhe char

The Companyds risk tolerance is expected to remain stabl
maximum economic loss and available economic capital are as follows:

Economic LossThe Company defines an economic loss asadecreasn t he Companyds economic
common sharehol der 6s equity attributabl e to P-AferesareestRaeis Lt d.
not recognized in the consolidated financial statements in accordihdd.S. GAAP, net of tax, plus the embedded value of the
Life portfolio that is not recognized in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, net ofyeociVelis
and intangible assets, net of tax.

Available Economic Capitalhe Company defines economic capital as the economic value, as defined above, plus preferred
sharehol dersé equity and the carrying value of debtS. recogr
GAAP.

The Maximum Economic LoShe maximum economic loss is a loss expressed as a percentage of economic capital under
various modeled probability return periods.

Risk Tolerance Framework

The Company establishes key risk limits net of any reinsurance/retrocession for any risk source deemed by Management to
have the potenti al to cause economic | osses greater than t

In 2017, a revised Risk Tolerance framework wasraved by the Board in order to drive consistency in the application of
Company limits. The overall risk tolerance is 35% of the loss of available economic capital based on the internaihridde| 1
Value at Risk or 4n-100 scenarios. Furthermore, itmare applied to Financial Assets and Risk Tiers. The Financial Assets
compri se t he Co mp alikewsdcsrities, gudefined abmve,candéhayve an esyablished tolerance limit of $1.6 billion
based on the internal modelri-100 return period Additionally there are operational slitnits for certain asset classes. The Risk
Tiers consist of a classification of risk drivers which consider the following criteria:

A Materiality
A Risk driver expertise
A Potential for superior riskdjusted return ovehe cycle

Management monitors Tier 1 Risks on a periodic basis. The approved limits and the actual limits deployed at Bécaaiber
were as follows (in billions of U.S. dollars):

Tier 1 Risks December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Approved limit @ Actual deployed® Approved limit ® Actual deployed®
Natural Catastrophe Risk $ 1€ $ 08 $ 1€ $ 0.8
Longevity Risk $ 1€ $ 0c % 1€ $ 0.7
Pandemic Risk $ 1€ $ 04 % 1€ $ 0.4
Casualty Risk $ 1€ $ 07 $ 1€ $ 0.7

Standard Fixed Income Credit $ 1€ $ 0.8 $ 1€ $ 1.C

(1) The limits approved and the actual limits deployed in the table above are shown net of retrocession.
(2) The longevity risk duration for modelling purposes extends to the futhffuather than one year.
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Tier 1 Risks

Tier 1 Risks consists of risk drivers which meet all three criteria of the Risk Tolerance Framework including matskality, ri
driver expetise and potential for superior riskdjusted return over the cycle. Additionally, the risk tolerance limit for this Risk Tier
is $1.6 billion based on either the internal mod@i-100 Value at Risk or a-ih-100 scenario. The Tier 1 Risk Tier enconmgess
the following risk drivers:

Natural Catastrophe Risk

The Company defines this risk as the risk that the aggregate losses from natural perils materially exceed the net @temiums tl
are received to cover such risks, which may result in operating andratlosses to the Company. The Company considers both
catastrophe losses due to a single large event and catastrophe losses that would occur from multiple (but potent)atlyesiisaller
in any year. The actual deployed figure shown for Natural CasrRisk in the Tier 1 table above represents the modeied 1
100 Value at Risk of the annual aggregate natural catastrophe financial losses (i.e. losses minus premiums and expenses).

Natural catastrophe risk is managed through the allocation of catesteaposure capacity in each exposure zone to different
Business Units, regular catastrophe modeling and a combination of quantitative and qualitative analysis. The Compasiaconsider
peril zone to be an area within a geographic region, continent otrga@unvhich losses from insurance exposures are likely to be
highly correlated to a single catastrophic event. Not all peril zones have the same limit and peril zones are broadiy theftried
would be unlikely for any single event to substantiatlyde the aggregate exposure limits from more than one peril zone. Even
extremely high severity/low likelihood events will only partially exhaust the limits in any peril zone, as they are ldw@iyatiect
a part of the area covered by a wide peril zone

Longevity Risk

The Company considers longevity exposure to have a material accumulation potential and has established a limit to manage
the risk of loss associated with this exposure, which may result in operating and economic losses to the Con@pamypariye
defines longevity risk as the potential for increased actual and future expected annuity payments resulting from avingitants |
longer than expected, or the expectation that annuitants will live longer in the future. Assuming longevitytigk, rteinsurance
or capital mar kets transactions, is part of the Ciymgksnyobs
highly diversifying in relation to ot he rongevitysigkstselfisa systeraic Co my
risk with little opportunity to diversify within the risk class. Longevity risk accumulates across cedants, geograplonest; tume
because mortality trends can impact diverse populations in the same manner. Lorgjewéy manifest slowly over time as
experience proves annuitants are | iving longer than origir
increases the life expectancy of all annuitants simultaneously.

Pandemic Risk

The Company ensiders mortality exposure to have a material accumulation potential to common risk drivers, in particular to
pandemic events, which may result in operating and economic losses to the Company. The Company defines pandemic risk as th
increase in mortalitpver an annual period associated with a rapidly spreading virus (either within a highly populated geographic
area or on a global basis) with a high mortality rate. Assuming mortality risk, through reinsurance or capital marlaisrisaisa
partofte - Companyb6s strategy of building a diversified portfol
other risks in the Companydés portfolio (e.g. |l ongegesaity prc
pandemic with little opportunity to diversify within the risk class. Mortality risk from pandemics can accumulate acrossaratia
geographies.

Casualty Risk

The Company defines this risk as the risk that the estimates of ultimate losses for eabymtltye to be too low, leading to
the need for substantial reserve strengthening, which may result in operating and economic losses to the Companiy iRarticular
U.S. casualty, actual loss trends may in the future result to be higher thantheiassumpt under | yi ng the Com
estimates, resulting in ultimate losses that exceed recorded loss reserves. When loss trends prove to be higher dhentythgse un
the reserving assumptions, the impact can be large because of an accurefitation

The Company manages and mitigates the reserving risk for casualty in a variety of ways. Underwriters and pricing actuaries
follow a disciplined underwriting process that utilizes all available data and information, including industry trends, and th
Company establishes prudent reserving policies for determining recorded reserves. These policies are systematic andtManageme
endeavors to apply them consistently over time. See Liquidity and Capital ResOtities Accounting Policies and Estimates
Non-life and Life and Health Reserves in Item 5 of this report.
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Standard Fixed Income Credit Risk

The Company defines this risk as the risk of a substant
securities (which includes invimsent grade corporate bonds and abseked securities) leading to realized investment losses or a
significant widening of credit spreads resulting in realized or unrealized investment losses, either of which may cesoltic e
losses to the Comparlynvest ment | osses of the magnitude that have the
associated with the systemic impacts of severe economic and financial stress. As a result, the Company limits the &xposure to
standard fixed income edit securities so that investment losses will be mitigated in an extreme economic or financial crisis.

Tier 1 Risks are monitored by the ERC and reported to the Board.
See also Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Markei@Réeskit Spread Risk in Iterhl of this report.

Tier 2 Risks

Tier 2 Risks consists of risks drivers which meet two of the three criteria. Additionally, the risk tolerance limithiardsesf
of the Tier 1 Risk limit based on either the internal modiel-100 Value at Risk or a-ih-100 scenario. The Tier 2 $kis
encompasses the following risk drivers:

Mortgage Risk

The Company defines this risk as the risk that losses from mortgage reinsurance materially exceed the net premiums that ar
received to cover such risks, which may result in operating and ecolumsas to the Company. Mortgage insurance underwriting
|l osses that have the potenti al to exceed the Compawgagds r i S
defaults, driven by large scale economic downturns and high unempibylmoealized or regional economic downturns are
unlikely to have a large enough geographic footprint to create material losses exceeding the net premiums collected.

Credit and Surety Risk

The Company defines this risk as the risk that aggregated tratielesses materially exceed the net premiums that are
received to cover such risks, which may result in operating and economic losses to the Company. Trade credit losses of the
magni tude that have the potent i askociaten withxthe gyseamic impaets sevepany 0 s
economic and financial stress. In these events, with respect to underwriting, losses may arise from defaults of siaghethrge
insureds and from a high frequency of defaults of smaller insureds. In adtitida credit risk is highly correlated with default and
credit spread widening risk of the standard investment grade fixed income portfolio during times of economic stresgbr financ
crises.

Tier 2 Risks are monitored by the ERC.

All other underwritingrisks are considered as part of the Tier 3 Risks and are monitored by the Chief Underwriting Officer,
Chief Investment Officer and corresponding Business Units.

Natural Catastrophe PML

The following discussion of t hrmatiddcomtpirs fogwarbokingstatemeats based t a s
upon assumptions and expectations concerning the potential effect of future events that are subject to uncertaintidsa8essRis
in I'tem 3 of this report f onoftheseliskfdiorseduld tedulein aCtoahigssenthiabae r i s k
materially different from the Companyds PML estimates belc

Natural catastrophe risk is a source of significant aggregate exposure for the Company and is managed by setting risk
tolerance and fhnits, as discussed above. Natural catastrophe perils can impact geographic regions of varying size and can have
economic repercussions beyond the geographic region directly impacted.

The Company defines peril zones to capture the vast majority of exptikaheso be incorporated by typical modeled
events. There is, however, no industry standard andatieshe C

The Company has exposures in other peril zones that can potentially géossasegreater than the PML estimates below.
The Companyds PMLs represent an estimate of |l oss for a sirt
Company6s e xip3¥cknd@Dd, ahdolis-250 yedr return period estimatieds for a single occurrence of a natural
catastrophe event in a ogyear period.

The PML estimates below include all significant exposure from ourlfmand Life and Health business operations. This

includes coverage for property, marine, energy, engimr i ng, wor kersdé compensation, mort a
insuranceinked securities. The PML estimates do not include casualty coverage that could be exposed as a result of a catastrophi
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event. In addition, they do not include estimdtgscontingent losses to insureds that are not directly impacted by the event (e.g.
loss of earnings due to disruption in supply lines).

The Companydés single occurr e-taxand netofrétrocassian dnd nemdtatePavitlpresinfithe s u r €
top ten natural catastrophe perils as at December 31, 2017 were as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
1-in-500 1-in-500
year PML year PML
1-in-250 (Earthquake 1-in-250 (Earthquake

Zone Peril year PML perils only) year PML perils only)
U.S. Southeast Hurricane $ 55€ $ 49¢€
U.S. Northeast Hurricane 573 56(
U.S. Gulf Coast Hurricane 58€ 50z
Caribbean Hurricane 17t 16E
Europe Windstorm 403 387
Japan Typhoon 20¢ 19C
California Earthquake 51z $ 64C 46z $ 59t
British Columbia Earthquake 142 30¢€ 161 317
Japan Earthquake 33C 36¢ 31t 34¢
Australia Earthquake 152 22z 187 25¢
New Zealand Earthquake 14C 201 147 211

Risk Mitigation

Retrocessional Reinsurance

The Company uses retrocessional reinsurance agreements to reduce its exposure on certain reinsurance risks assumed anc
mitigate the effect of any single major event or the frequency of mesized events. These agreements provide for the recovery of
aportion of | osses and |l oss expenses from retrocessitnaire
cover property and specialty lines (e.g. aviation, marine, mortgage and certain risks included in the credit/suretydines,exp
predominantly those that are catastrophe exposed. The Company also utilizes retrocessions in the Life and Health segment to
manage the amount of pevent and pelife risks to which it is exposed. Retrocessionaires must bagpeved based on their
financial condition and business practices, with stability, solvency and credit ratings being important criteria. $rjpedimi
retrocessionaire are also put into place and monitored to mitigate counterparty credit risk.

The Company remains liable to its cedants to the extent that the retrocessionaires do not meet their obligations under
retrocessional agreements, and therefore retrocessions are subject to credit risk in all cases and to aggregate losgdimits i
cases. The Company holds collateral, including escrow funds, trusts, securities and letters of credit under certainmatrocessio
agreements. Provisions are made for amounts considered potentially uncollectible and reinsurance losses recoverable from
retroessionaires are reported after allowances for uncollectible amounts.

In addition to the retrocessional agreements, PartnerRe Europe has a Reserve Agreement in place with Colisée Re (see
Liquidity and Capital ResourceReserves in Item 5 of this report).

Regulation

The business of reinsurance is regulated in all countries in which we operate, although the degree and type of regglation var
significantly from one jurisdictin to another. Some jurisdictions impose complex regulatory requirements on reinsurance or
licensed by governmental authorities. See Risk Faetoggal and Regulatory Risks in IteBrof this report.
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Bermuda has been deemed Solvency Il equivalentundertBur opean Uni onds (EU) Sol venc)
1, 2016. Bermuda has been granted equivalence for an unlimited period for all three relevant equivalence areas: A2tdles 172,
and 260, with the exception of rules on captives and spaaipbse insurers, which are subject to a different regulatory regime in
Bermuda. This determination has resulted in Berrhaed reinsurers being exempt from the requirement to post collateral in the
EU and allows reinsurance contracts concluded with sakiags having their head office in Bermuda to be treated in the same
manner as reinsurance contracts concluded with undertakings authorized in accordance with the Directive (Article 172); EU
insurance groups can conduct their EU prudential reporting $oibsidiary in Bermuda under local rules instead of Solvency Il if
deduction and aggregation is allowed as the method of consolidation of group accounts (Article 227); and Bermuda insurance
groups which are active in the EU are exempt from some aspeagrisupf supervision in the EU as Member States will rely on the
equivalent supervision exercised by the Bermuda Monetary Authority (BMA) (Article 260).

One of the key concepts of Solvency |1 i s nttibsenapparticulac i p al
insurance or reinsurance group (referred to as Group Supervision). The Insurance Act 1978 of Bermuda and related esyyulations,
amended (the Insurance Act) sets out provisions regarding Group Supervision, including the powekdéf thénclude or
exclude specified entities from Group Supervision, the power of the BMA to withdraw as group supervisor, the functions of the
BMA as Group supervisor and the power of the BMA to make rules regarding Group Supervision for, amondsnhgsh@r)t
assessing the financial situation and the solvency position of the insurance group and/or its members and (2) regedating intr
transactions, risk concentration, governance procedures, risk management and regulatory reporting and sl Gnanap
Supervision regime is in addition to the regul ati ona.Thef t he
BMAds Group Supervision rules set out the r uleng oflaminsurancep ect
group, the system of governance and risk management, and supervisory reporting and disclosures of an insurance grapp. The Gr
solvency rules set out the rules in respect of the capital and solvency return and enhanced cagitaéngs|for an insurance
group. PartnerRe Bermuda is the designated insurer for the purposes of Group Supervision, and the BMA currently acts as Group
supervisor of the Company and its subsidiaries. As Group supervisor, the BMA will perform a numbendgsopfunctions
including (1) coordinating the gathering and dissemination of information which is of importance for the supervisorgttesk of
competent authorities; (2) carrying out a supervisory review and assessment of the Group; (3) caryirgsegsment of the
Groupbs compliance with t he r wilowsansactions antl goedrgavernance precddures;a4) ¢ e r
planning and coordinating, with other competent authorities, supervisory activities in respect of thebGttoas a going concern
and in emergency situations; (5) taking into account the nature, scale and complexity of the risks inherent in theflallsiness o
companies that are part of the Group; (6) coordinating any enforcement action that may neakleio dgainst the Group or any of
its members and (7) planning and coordinating meetings of colleges of supervisors (consisting of insurance regulagoits) in ord
facilitate the carrying out of the functions described above.

PartnerRe Ltd. is not a retgsed insurer; however, pursuant to its functions as Group supervisor, the BMA includes the
Company and may include any member of the group within its Group Supervision.

Significant aspects of the Bermuda insurance regulatory framework and requiremersisdrop Insurance and Reinsurance
Groups include the solvency assessment. The Company must annually perform an assessment of its own risk and solvency
requirements, referred to as a Groupds Sol venaryinsGantef Asses
groupbs view of the capital resources required to achieve
management and controls surrounding this process. In addition, the Company must file with the BMA a Catastroph@iRisk Re
which assesses an insurer6s reliance on vendor model s in &

Effective Januanyt, 2014, the BMA imposed the Enhanced Capital Requirement (ECR) on the Company pursuant to its
function as the Compaanrytérse rgReo ugr ocswppbesr vB GR r mthe/FtahdardRooddl c ul at e
developed by the BMA known as the Bermuda Solvency Capital Requirement model (BSCRynointbjnal capital model which
the BMA has approved for use for this purpose. The Compamgritly uses the BMA standard model in calculating its group ECR
requirements. In addition, the Company is required to prepare and submit annual audited group U.S. GAAP financial statements,
annual group statutory financial statements, annual groupastafirtancial return, annual group capital and solvency return and
quarterly group unaudited financial returns.

The BSCR modelisaridkased capital model which provides a met hod
(statutorycapita and surplus) by taking into account the risk char
formulae establishes on a consolidated basis capital requirements for eleven categories of risk: fixed income investmqetyt risk
investment risk, interest rate/liquidity risk, currency risk, concentration risk, premium risk, reserve risk, credit glopteaisk
long-term insurance risk and operational risk.
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Pursuant to the Insurance (Public Disclosure) Rules 2015, the BMikes@gommercial insurers and insurance groups to
prepare and publish a Financi al Condition Report (FCR). T
including business performance, governance structure, risk profile, solvencyorahrad capital management process. On June 30,
2017, PartnerRe Ltd. and each of its two Bermuda registered reinsurers submitted their first required FCRs for the year ended
December 31, 2016 to the BMA. The FCR includes, among other disclosures, tloetreispee company és r equi r e
statutory capital. The FCR is required to be filed with the BMA annually and published on the PartnerRe website within fourte
days of filing with the BMA. The FCR must be signed off by the CEO and either the iskiefficer or chief financial officer
(CFO) declaring the appropriateness of the information contained in the FCR.

Bermuda

The Insurance Act regulates the business of PartnerRe Bermuda. The Insurance Act imposes solvency and liquidity standarc
and auditing and reporting requirements on Bermuda insurance companies and grants the BMA powers to supervise, irtestigate
intervene in the affairs of Bermuda registered insurance companies. The Insurance Act makes no distinction between insurance ar
reinsurance business.

PartnerRe Bermuda is licensed as a Class 4, Class C and Class E insurer in Bermuda and is therefore @atiroyined t
general and longerm insurance business. Significant aspects of the Bermuda insurance regulatory framework and requirements
imposed on Class 4, Class C and Class E insurers such as PartnerRe Bermuda include the following:

Minimum Solvency Maig and Enhanced Capital Requiremerifsie Insurance Act provides that the value of the statutory
assets of an insurer must exceed the value of its statutory liabilities by an amount greater than its prescribed miamymagin
(MSM). The MSM that mst be maintained by PartnerRe Bermuda with respect to its (A) general business is the greater of (i) $10(
million, or (ii) 50% of net premiums written (with a credit for reinsurance ceded not exceeding 25% of gross premitijnEpoof
net discountd aggregate loss and loss expense provisions and other insurance reserves, or (iv) 25% of its ECR as reported at the er
the relevant year; and (B) lofigrm business is the greater of $8 million or 2% of the first $500 million of assets plus 1.58étsf as
above $500 million. Assets are defined as the t ohearhoualeldet s
in a segregated account;

Minimum Capital Requirementg/hile not specifically referred to in the Insurance ,Abe BMA has also established a
Target Capital Level (TCL) equal to 120% of its ECR. While an insurer is not currently required to maintain its statiébgncap
surplus at this level, the TCL serves as an early warning tool for the BMA and faitoaéntain statutory capital at least equal to the
TCL will likely result in increased regulatory oversight.

Any applicable insurer which at any time fails to meet the MSM requirements must, upon becoming aware of such failure,
immediately notify the BMARd, within 14 days thereatfter, file a written report with the BMA describing the circumstances that gave
rise to the failure and setting out its plan detailing specific actions to be taken and the expected time frame in cangiathe
intends to rectifythe failure.

Any applicable insurer which at any time fails to meet the ECR applicable to it will upon becoming aware of that failure,
or of having reason to believe that such a failure has occurred, immediately notify the BMA in writing and, withys &# d
such natification, file with the BMA a written report containing particulars of the circumstances leading to the failargjand
detailing the manner, specific actions to be taken and time within which the insurer intends to rectify thenfdiitin 45
days of becoming aware of that failure, or of having reason to believe that such a failure has occurred, furnish the: BMA with
unaudited interim standard accounting principles financial statements covering such period as the BMA mayXetne
opinion of a loss reserve specialist where applicable, (3) a general business solvency certificate in respect of the financia
statements and unaudited statutory economic balance sheet prepared in accordance with GAAP, (4) a capitalyanetsoivenc
reflecting an ECR prepared using péature data, where applicable, (5) a letegm business solvency certificate in respect of
those statements, where applicable and (6) the opinion of an approved actuary, where applicable.

To enabletheBMAG better assess the quality of the insurero C
t

S

di sclose the makeup of itsecapgi capitmlacyct@anode with he
Under this system, all of t assified as sither basicsanailaypcapitaavthichim st r u

turn wil|l be classified into one of three tiers bbhased on t

classified as Tier 1 Capital, lesser quality capital will be classifge€lither Tier 2 Capital or Tier 3 Capital. Under this regime, up

to certain specified percentages of Tier 1, Tier 2,.and Ti

The characteristics of the capital instruments that must be satisfied to qualify as Tier 1, Tier 2, and Tier 3 Capital are se
out in the Insurance (Eligible Capital) Rules 2012, as amended. Under these rules, Tier 1, Tier 2, and Tier 3 Capiiél may, un
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January 1, 2026, include capital instruments that do not satisfy the requirement that the instrumenedeenaatble or settled
only with the issuance of an instrument of equal or higher quality upon a breach, or if it would cause a breach, in the ECR.

While the BMA has previously approved the use of certa
need to be obtained if such instruments are to remain eligible for use in satisfying the MSM and the ECR.

Effective from the 2016 financialear end onwards, the BMA has implemented an Economic Balance Sheet (EBS) framework
which will now be used as the basis to determine the ECR for all commercial insurers, including PartnerRe Bermuda. The EBS
framework applies prudential filters and other BEBBuation adjustments to an insurers GAAP balance sheet to produce an
economic valuation of the assets and liabilities of the insurer. The EBS framework includes BSCR capital charge amendments fo
cash and cash equivalents, credit risk, currency rislgesdration risk and geographic diversification.

Reporting Requirements. PartnerRe Bermuda must prepare and submit, on an annual basis, both audited GAAP and statuto
financial statements. The Insurance Act prescribes rules for the preparation and sulfsttatatory financial statements (which
include, in statutory form, a balance sheet, income statement, a statement of capital and surplus, and notes thexettmyyThe st
financial statements include detailed information and analysis regarding prgnelaims, reinsurance and investments of the
insurer.

Every insurer is also required to deliver to the BMA a declaration of compliance declaring whether or not that insuitar has, w
respect to the preceding financial year, (i) complied with the mininriteria applicable to it, (ii) complied with its MSM and ECR
as at its financial yeag n d , and (iii) where an insurero6s |license has bee
the insurer has observed such limitations, restrictiwronditions. The declaration of compliance must be signed by 2 directors
and filed at the same time the insurer submits its statutory financial statements

Dividends and DistributionsThe Insurance Act prohibits PartnerRe Bermuda, as an insurer rediatea Class E and as a
Class 4 insurer from declaring or paying any dividends during any financial year if it is in breach of its MSM or ifdtegidacbr
payment of such dividends would cause such a breach. PartnerRe Bermuda is also prohibiteddrarg or paying a dividend
where it has failed to comply with the ECR, until such noncompliance is rectified. Furthermore, under the Insuranceét&ePart
Bermuda shall not in any financial year pay dividends which would exceed 25% of its tet@rgtafpital and surplus, as shown
on its statutory balance sheet in relation to the previous financial year, unless at least 7 days before payment ofethdsét div
files with the BMA an affidavit signed by at least two directors, and by PartnerRerBed a 6 s pr i nci pal repr esc
which states that in the opinion of those signing, declaration of those dividends has not caused the insurer to fixdl televeett
margins.

Generally, an insurer carrying on lotgym business, such asrif@rRe Bermuda, is also restricted from declaring or paying
a dividend unless the value of its assets initsforgr m busi ness fund exceeds the-extent
term business.

Further, under the Bermuda Companies Act 188lamended, PartnerRe Bermuda may only declare or pay a dividend, or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if it has no reasonable grounds for believing that: (1) it is, or wahiel pdtgment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they becatue or (2) the realizable value of its assets would be less than its liabilities.

In addition to the above, PartnerRe Bermuda maintains an operating branch in Canada and a representative office in Mexico
The Canadian branch is subject to regulation in Canada by the Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutiorio(@FSI).
further discussion of the regulations pertaining to the Canadian branch see below.

Ireland

The Central Bank of Ireland (the Central Bank) regulates insurance and reinsurance companies authorized in Ireland,
including PartnerRe Europe and PartnerRe IrelaadnBrRe Holdings Europe Limited, a holding company for PartnerRe Europe
and PartnerRe Ireland, is not subject to regulation by the Central Bank. PartnerRe Europe is a reinsurance comparsdincorporat
under the laws of Ireland and is duly authorized asressurance undertaking to carry on fif@ and life reinsurance business in
accordance with the European Union (Insurance and Reinsurance) Regulations 2015. PartnerRe Ireland is an insurance company
incorporated under the laws of Ireland and is duly aigzbd as an insurance undertaking to carry onliferinsurance business in
accordance with the European Union (Insurance and Reinsurance) Regulations 2015.

Significant aspects of the Irish re/insurance regulatory framework and requirements imposadesR@&urope and
PartnerRe Ireland include the following:

Solvency RequiremeniEhe Directive related to the solvency standards applicable to insurers and reinsurers prescribes, at the
level of PartnerRe Europe and PartnerRe Ireland, the minimum anaddimancial resources that both companies are required to
have in order to cover the risks to which they are exposed and the principles that should guide their overall risk mamagement
reporting.
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This Directive became effective January 1, 2016. UnueSblvency Il requirements, PartnerRe Europe and PartnerRe
Ireland have similar governance requirements to those of PartnerRe Bermuda such as Balance Sheet, Own Risk and Solvency
Assessment, Solvency and Financial Condition Report and a Regular SugeRéaport.

Reporting RequirementBartnerRe Europe and PartnerRe Ireland must file and submit annual audited financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and related reports to the Irish Companies RegistrafioR@)ffice
together with an annual return of certain core corporate information. Changes to core corporate information during tisé year m
also be notified to the CRO. These requirements are in addition to the regulatory returns required to be filed @hrthally w
Central Bank and additionally, in the case of PartnerRe Ireland, with the National Association of Insurance Commissik@jers (NA
in the U.S.; and

Dividends and Distributiond?ursuant to Irish company law, PartnerRe Europe and PartnerRe Irelaadgtaceed to
declaring dividends only out of Aprofits availablamyfoer di ¢
accumulated realized profits less its accumulated realized losses. Such profits may not include profiyputilized.

In addition to the above, PartnerRe Europe has also established operating branches in the U.K., France, Switzerland, Dubai
and Hong Kong and a representative office in Brazil, which are subject to Irish reinsurance supervision regulatdii®n, the
Hong Kong branch is subject to regulation by the Insurance Authority of Hong Kong. PartnerRe Ireland, pursuant to the
Nonadmitted and Reinsurance Reform Act of 2010 (part of the {Boglak Act), is a nonadmitted alien insurer in the U. 9. ian
eligible to write business as an excess and surplus lines insurer in all U.S. states. PartnerRe Ireland has alsoaestgigistied
branch in the U.K. which is subject to Irish insurance supervision regulations.

PartnerRe Europand PartnerRe étand dac (PartnerRe Ireland) are parties to a regulatory investigation with the Central Bank
of Ireland.On September 20, 2017, the Central Bank of Ireland (Central Bank) issued notices of commencement of investigation
pursuant to Part IlIC of the CentBank Act 1942, as amended (Act), to PartnerRe Europe and PartnerRe Ireland. In summary, the
Central Bank is alleging contraventions of Corporate Governance Requirements for Insurance Undertakings 2015, Solvency Il
Regulations and the Commission Delegd®edjulation (EU) 2015/35. We are cooperating with the investigation, however, we are

unable to predict the investigationbds | ikely timi nwidhasend oL
any liability related to these matte the Company does not believe, at this time, this matter will have a material adverse effect on
the Groupds business or the Groupds consolidated financi al

United States

PartnerRe U.S. Corporation is a Delaware domiciled holding companyg fohdlly-owned (re)insurance subsidiaries,
PartnerRe U.S., PartnerRe Insurance Company of New York (PRNY) and PartnerRe America Insurance Company (PRAIC)
(PartnerRe U.S., PRNY and PRAIC together being the PartnerRe U.S. Insurance Companies). The BaBtnadreance
Companies are subject to regulation under the insurance statutes and regulations of their domiciliary states (New dask iof the
PartnerRe U.S. and PRNY, and Delaware in the case of PRAIC, and all states where they are licenstt] acamgulioved to
underwrite insurance and reinsurance).

Currently, the PartnerRe U.S. Insurance Companies are licensed, accredited or approved reinsurers and/or insuners in all fift
states and the District of Columbia, and are subject to the requiedesuribed below.

PartnerRe U.S. Corporation is also the owner of Presidio and its 100% owned subsidiaries Presidio Excess Insurance Servic
Inc. (PXS), PartnerRe Management Ltd. (PRM) and Presidio Reinsurance Corporation Inc. (PRC). PXS is a neareaiging g
underwriter licensed in a number of states. PRM is domiciled in the U.K. and regulated by the Financial Services ARDasity. P
a Montana domiciled captive reinsurer and the Montana Department of Insurance is the domiciliary regulator of $eRsitilibe
are not subject to any significant regulatory requirements or restrictions that would have a material impact on the Company.

The Company also, through its 100% owned subsidiary Aurigen Capital Limited, owns 100% of PartnerRe Life Reinsurance
Company of America (PLRA) a life reinsurance company which is subject to regulation under the insurance statutes andregulatior
of Arkansas and all states where PLRA is licensed, accredited or approved to underwrite reinsurance.
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RiskBased Capital Requiremts. The RiskBased Capital (RBC) for Insurers Model Act (the Model RBC Act), as it applies
to property and casualty insurers and reinsurers, was initially adopted by the NAIC in December 1993. The Model RBC Act or
similar legislation has been adopted bg tajority of states in the U.S. The main purpose of the Model RBC Act is to provide a
tool for insurance regulators to evaluate the capital of insurers with respect to the risks assumed by them and toadetibrenine
there is a need for possible cotree action. U.S. insurers and reinsurers are required to report the results of their RBC calculations
as part of the statutory annual statements that such insurers and reinsurers file with state insurance regulatory Buthdidiikes
RBC Act provide§f or four different | evels of regulatory actions, e
Capital (as defined in the Model RBC Act) is less than a corresponding level-bfask ed capi t al . Decr eases
Adjusted Capial as a percentage of its Authorized Control Level (as defined in the Model RBC Act) triggers increasing regulatory
actions. Such regulatory actions include but are not limited to issuance of orders for corrective action by the inbilitatjoe o
liquidation of the insurer.

Insurance Regulatory Information System (IRIS) Rafios.c o mmi t t ee of state insurance r ¢
primarily to assist state insurance departments in executing their statutory mandates to oversaeitdectindition of insurance
or reinsurance companies operating in their respective states. IRIS identifies thirteen industry ratios and specifieegdoal v
each ratio. Generally, a company will become subject to regulatory scrutiny if it faldethe usual ranges with respect to four or
more of the ratios, and regulators may then act, ithgt he cc¢
capacity. No such action has been taken with respect to the PartnerRe Ughda<lmmpanies.

Reporting RequirementRegulations vary from state to state, but generally require insurance holding companies and insurers
and reinsurers that are subsidiaries of insurance holding companies to register and file with their stateryloegiagiitory
authorities certain reports, including information concerning their capital structure, ownership, financial conditioreeaid gen
business operations. State regulatory authorities monitor compliance with, and periodically conduct examittatiesysect to,
state mandated standards of solvency, licensing requirements, investment limitations, and restrictions on the sizeid nskg w
be reinsured, deposits of securities for the benefit of reinsureds, methods of accounting for sesets foe unearned premiums
and losses, and other purposes. In general, such regulations are for the protection of reinsureds and, ultimatetyhibleiensoli
rather than security holders. In the U.S., the New York State Department of Financie¢SE&WWDFS) is the domiciliary regulator
of PartnerRe U.S. and PRNY, and the Delaware Department of Insurance is the domiciliary regulator of PRAIC.

Dividends and DistributiondJnder New York law, the NYDFS must approve any dividend declared or paid by PartnerRe
U.S. or PRNY that, together with all dividends declared or distributed by each of them during the preceding twelve roeetlss, ex
the lesser of 10% of their respectstatutory surplus as shown on the latest statutory financial statements on file with the NYDFS,
or 100% of their respective adjusted net investment income during that period. In addition, as a condition of the azy&Esiion
N.V., PartnerRe U.S. comtted that it would not take any action to pay any dividend for theyew period from March 18, 2016
to March 18, 2018 without the prior approval of the NYDFS (see Risk Factors ir3 loéithis report). Under Delaware law the
Delaware Commissioner of$arance must approve any dividend declared or paid by PRAIC that, together with all dividends or
distributions made within the preceding 12 months exceeds the greater& () per cent of PRAI Cés surp
policyholders as of the preceding DecenBl or (ii) the net income, not including realized capital gains, for then@@th period
ending the preceding Decemi&4. In addition, as a condition of the acquisition by Exor N.V., PRAIC also committed that it would
not take any action to pay any iend for the tweyear period from March 18, 2016 to March 18, 2018 without the prior approval
of the Delaware Commissioner of Insurance (see Risk Factors ir8ltdithis report). Both Delaware and New York do not permit
a dividend to be declared or dibuted, except out of earned surplus.

In addition to the above, the Doditank Act currently impacts the PartnerRe U.S. Insurance Companies. Thd-Ro¢dAct
represents a comprehensive overhaul of the financial services industry in the U.S. anttedt@aiblexderal Insurance Office (FIO)
within the U.S. Treasury Department. Although the FIO does not have general supervisory or regulatory authority oveeske busi
of insurance or reinsurance, it is charged with monitoring all aspects of the insumdursteyj consulting with state insurance
regulators, assisting in administration of the TRIA and other duties. Furthermore, the director of the FIQvstanganember of
the multragency Financial Stability Oversight Council (FSOC), and the FSOC maygaother things, subject an insurance
company or an insurance holding company to heightened prudential standards in accordance with Title | offEnenRddd
following an extended determination process (which can require that such insurance coengatrjgdt also to supervision by the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System). The-Badk Act also made small changes to the regulation of credit for
reinsurance and surplus lines insurance in the U.S. See Risk Factors 3notéinis report

Cybersecurity Requirements. February 2017, the NYDFS issued final Cybersecurity Requirements for Financial Service
Companies that will require regulated entities, including PartnerRe U.S. Insurance Companies, to establish and maintain a
cybersecuritpr ogram designed to protect consumers and ensure the
industry. The regulation became effective on March 1, 2017, subject to certaiiphasep e r i od s . Depending o
implementation and thdYDFS enforcement efforts with respect to it, the PartnerRe U.S. Insurance Companies and other financial
services companies may be required to incur significant expense in order to meet its requirements.
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Canada

Canadian branches of PartnerRe Bermuda amsh&Re U.S. hold licenses to write reinsurance business in Canada. Each
Canadian branch is authorized to insure, in Canada, risks falling within the classes of insurance and reinsurancel s tyécifie
respective licenses and is limited to the hass of reinsurance. The Canadian branch of PartnerRe Bermuda is licensed to write life
business in Ontario. The Canadian branch of PartnerRe U.S. is licensed to write property and casualty business incdBntario. Ea
Canadian branch is subject to local rdagjon for its Canadian branch business, specified principally pursuant to Part XllII of the
Insurance Companies Act (the Canadian Insurance Act) applicable to foreign property and casualty companies and t® foreign lif
companies as well as relevant provahinsurance acts. Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutf@8E1) supervises the
application of the Canadian Insurance Act.

PartnerRe Bermuda and PartnerRe U.S. maintain sufficient assets, vested in trust at a Canadian financiabipgtitvgdn
by OSFI, to allow their branches to meet minimum statutory solvency requirements as required by the Act and the regulations m
under it. Certain statutory information is filed with federal and provincial insurance regulators in respecipobpetty and
casualty and life business written by branches. This information includes, among other things, a yearly business @anwaid an
Dynamic Capital Adequacy Test report from the Appointed Actuary of the branch that tests the adequacgeitthieahare vested
under various adverse scenarios.

Singapore

The Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS) regulates insurance and reinsurance companies authorized in Singapore,
including PartnerRe Asia.

PartnerRe Asia is the principal reinsurance carderf t he Companyds busi Rasiicsegionnder wr i t
conducting general insurance business as a reinsurer and life insurance business as a reinsurer. PartnerRe Asiddtesian establ
operating branch in Labuan which is subject to reguldiiothe Labuan Financial Services Authority.

Significant aspects of the Singapore reinsurance regulatory framework and requirements include the following:

Solvency Requirement#s a licensed reinsurer, PartnerRe Asia is required to maintain minimum cd@@aD25 million. In
addition, PartnerRe Asia is required to establish and maintain separate insurance funds for each class of busingssstioat it ca
for both Singapore and offshore policies. The solvency requirement in respect of each insuchsbalfat all times be not less
than the total risk requirement of the fund (determined by reference to three components being insurance risks, agsetkzortfol
and asset concentration risks). The MAS is entitled to require that a licensed rdinfiserssets of a certain type and prescribed
value in Singapore.

Reporting Requirement®artnerRe Asia must file and submit annual audited financial statements in accordance with
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards and related reports to the Angaamdi Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA)
together with an annual return of certain core corporate information. Changes to core corporate information during tise year m
also be notified to ACRA. These requirements are in addition to the regulatomysre¢quired to be filed annually with the MAS.

Dividends and DistributionDividends are generally declared from unappropriated profits. The declaration of a dividend by
PartnerRe Asia may be subject to relevant conditions and requirements being met as specified under the Insurance A&x (Singapo
and its associated regulatioAsy proposed reduction of capital or redemption of preference shares requires the prior approval of
the MAS. In addition to the above, the laws and initiatives issued by the MAS regarding Corporate Governance, Outsalrcings an
Technology Risk Managementrcently impact or may impact Partner Re Asia in the future.

Taxation of the Company and its Subsidiaries

The following summary of the taxation of PartnerRe and its subsidiaries, PartnerRe Bermuda, PartnerRe Europe, PartnerRe
Asia, and PartnerRe U.S. Corporation and its subsidiaries (collectively PartnerRe U.S. Companies) is based upon current law.
Legislative judicial or administrative changes may be forthcoming that could affect this summary.

Certain subsidiaries, branch offices and representative offices of the Company are subject to taxation related toioperations
Brazil, Canada, Chile, China, France,ngdkong, Ireland, Labuan, Mexico, Singapore, Switzerland and the U.S. The discussion
below covers the significant locations for which the Company or its subsidiaries are subject to taxation.
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Bermuda

PartnerRe Ltd. and PartnerRe Bermuda have each recedradife Bermuda Minister of Finance an assurance under The
Exempted Undertakings Tax Protection Act, 1966 of Bermuda, that in the event that any legislation is enacted in Berningla impos
tax computed on profits or income, or computed on any capital gager appreciation, or any tax in the nature of estate duty or
inheritance tax, then the imposition of any such tax shall not be applicable to PartnerRe Ltd. or PartnerRe Bermudafahéir any
operations or the shares, debentures or other obligatibPartnerRe Ltd. or PartnerRe Bermuda until March 2035. These
assurances are subject to the proviso that they are not construed to prevent the application of any tax or duty tmsashaperso
ordinarily resident in Bermuda (PartnerRe Ltd. andrigaRe Bermuda are not currently so designated) or to prevent the application
of any tax payable in accordance with the provisions of The Land Tax Act, 1967 of Bermuda or otherwise payable in thkation to
property leased to PartnerRe Bermuda.

Canada

The Canadian life branch of PartnerRe Bermuda, the Canadiatifadmanch of PartnerRe U.S. and PartnerRe Life
Reinsurance Company of Canada are subject to Canadian taxation on their profits. Their profits are taxed at the fedenaklevel
as the Ontao provincial level at a combined rate of 26.5% in 2017. See also the discussion of taxation in the United States below.

France

The French branch of PartnerRe Europe is conducting business in and is subject to taxation in France. Since January 1, 201
thetax on corporate profits in France has been 34.43%.

The French Bill for 2018, enacted on December 30, 2017, includes a graduated decrease of the statutory corporate income 1
rate from 34.43% in 2017 to 25.83% in 2022, including all applicable surta@esalso the discussion of taxation in Ireland below.

Ireland

The Companyds | rish subsidiaries, Partner Re Hol dings Eu
Ireland Finance dac conduct business in and are subject to taxatiomird Irietofits of an Irish trade or business are subject to Irish
corporation tax at the rate of 12.5%, whereas profits arising from other than a trade or business are taxable a6 rateeof
Swiss, U.S. and French branches and subsidiaries of ARetB®Irope are subject to taxation in Ireland at the Irish corporation tax
rate of 12.5%. However, under Irish domestic tax law, the amount of tax paid in Switzerland, U.S. and France can lo credited
deducted against the Irish corporation tax. As altiethe Company does not expect to incur significant taxation in Ireland with
respect to the Swiss, U.S. and French branches.

Singapore

The Companyds Singapore subsidiary, Partner Re Asi a, is
profits arising from onshore business and 10% on profits arising from offshore business. However, tax exemptions may apply to
qualifying profits derived from certain lines of business.

Switzerland

The Swiss branch of PartnerRe Europe is subject to Swiatiada, mainly on profits and capital. To the extent that net profits
are generated, profits are taxed at a rate of 21.15%. The branch pays capital taxes at a rate of approximately Orhp¥tezh its i
branch capital calculated according to a procureditaxauling. See also the discussion of taxation in Ireland above.

United States

PartnerRe U.S. Companies transact business in and are subject to taxation in the U.S. The Carldieliaranoh of
PartnerRe U.S. conducts business in Canada and is suabfaxation in Canada as discussed above. Under U.S. tax law, the
amount of tax paid in Canada by the Canadianliiedmranch of PartnerRe U.S. can be credited or deducted against U.S.
corporation tax.

In addition, PartnerRe Europe and PartnerRe Irefenités certain U.S. facultative and Latin American business, through its
U.S. reinsurance intermediaries. As a result, PartnerRe Europe is deemed to be engaged in a U.S. trade or business and thus i
subject to taxation in the U.S. Finally, PartnerRe Gaéjitvestments Corp. (PCIC) and PartnerRe Life Reinsurance Company of
America (PRLA) are also U.S. corporations subject to taxation in the U.S. The current statutory rate of tax on corpisrate prof
the U.S. is 35%, reducing to 21% for tax years beguaifter December 31, 2017. See the discussion of U.S. branch taxation
below and the discussion of taxation in Ireland above.

On this basis, the Company does not expect that it and its subsidiaries, other than the PartnerRe U.S. Companies, PartnerR
Europeand PartnerRe Ireland for its U.S. intermediaries, PCIC and PRLA, will be required to pay U.S. corporate income taxes
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(other than withholding taxes as described below). However, because there is considerable uncertainty as to theactivities th
constitue a trade or business in the U.S., there can be no assurance that the IRS will not contend successfully that the Company «
its nonU.S. subsidiaries are engaged in a trade or business in the U.S. The maximum federal tax rate is currently 35%, reducing t
21% for tax years beginning after December 31, 2017, for e
business in the U.S. In addition, U.S. branches of foreign corporations may be subject to the branch profits tax, waghtémpos

on U.S. branch aftelx earnings that are deemed repatriated out of the U.S., for a potential maximum effective federal tax rate of
approximately 54%, 45% for tax years beginning after December 31, 2017, on the net income connected with a U.S. trade o
business.

Foreign corporations not engaged in a trade or business in the U.S. are subject to U.S. income tax, effected through
withholding by the payer, on certain fixed or determinable annual or periodic gains, profits and income derived frorwigburces
the U.S. as enumerated in Sect@81(a) of the Internal Revenue Code, such as dividends and interest on certain investments.

For tax years beginning after December 31, 2017, the U.S. will impose a base erosionalngsarttx (BEAT) on certain
payments from entities subject to U.S. tax to related foreign persons, also referred to as base erosion payments. Base erosion
payments generally include any amounts that are deductible, including reinsurance premiums ceded to a related foreign person.
Entities that meet certain thresholds are required to pay the new minimum base erosionamdartix. The minimum BEAT is
based on the excess of a percentage of the entititeaoumodi f
cannot be less than zero. The modified taxable income is taxed at 5% in 2018, 10% in 2019 through 2025, and 12.5% thereafter.
This provision generally applies to entities that are subject to US net income tax with average annual gross recegit$s0at |
million and that have made foreignrelajeca r t y deducti bl e payments totaling 3% or
year. The BEAT is effective for base erosion payments paid or accrued in taxable years beginning after 31 Decémber 201

The U.S. also imposes an excise tax on insurance and reinsurance premiums paid to foreign insurers or reinsurers with resp
to risks located in the U.S. The rate of tax applicable to reinsurance premiums paid to PartnerRe Bermuda is 1% ofignoss prem

Legal Proceedings

The Companyds reinsurance subsidiaries, and the insuran
arbitration in the normal course of their business operations. In addition to claims litigation, the Company and itsesubaiglia
be subject to lawsuits and regulatory actions in the normal course of business that do not arise from or directljaistet®mo ¢
reinsurance treaties. This category of business litigation typically involves, among other things, allegationsvotingdarors
or omissions, employment claims or regulatory activity. While the outcome of business litigation cannot be predicted with
certainty, the Company will dispute all allegations against the Company and/or its subsidiaries that managemsrarbelieve
without merit.

At Decembei3l, 2017, the Company was not a party to any litigation or arbitration that it believes could have a material
effect on the financial condition, results of operations or liquidity of the Company.

Disclosure Pursuant to Section 219 of the Iran Threat Reduction and Syria Human Rights Act

Section 219 of the Iran Threat Reduction and Syria Human Rights Act of 2012 added Section 13(r) to the Exchange Act.
Section 13(r) requires an issuer to disclosisiannual or quarterly reports filed with the SEC whether the issuer or any of its
affiliates have knowingly engaged in certain activities, transactions or dealing with the Government of Iran, relatimay to Ira
with designated natural persons or erdifievolved in terrorism or the proliferation of weapons of mass destruction during the
period covered by the annual or quarterly report. Disclosure is required even when the activities were conducted tugide the
by nonU.S. entities and even when suattivities were conducted in compliance with applicable law.

On January 16, 2016, the United States and the EU eased sanctions against Iran pursuant to the Joint Comprehensive Plan
Action, and many of the reportable activities, transactions and deailimter Section 13(r) are no longer subject to U.S. sanctions
and no longer prohibited by applicable local law.

Certain of our noflJ.S. reinsurance operations provide reinsurance treaty coverage-th®onsurers of marine & energy
risks as well as mugl associations of ship owners that provide their members with protection and liability coverage. As a result
of the recent lifting of European sanctions on Iran, some of these insurers have informed us that they have begurr shilpping, o
begin to shipgargo to and from Iran, including transporting crude oil, petrochemicals and refined petroleum prBdoatse
these nofl).S. subsidiaries insure or reinsure multiple voyages and fleets containing multiple ships, we are unable to attribute
gross revenes and net profits from such policies to activities with Iran. As the activities of our insureds are permitted under
applicable laws and regulations, the Company intends for itdJa®nsubsidiaries to continue providing such coverage to its
insureds andeinsureds.
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Though the intermediary of ndranian brokers, a neb.S. subsidiary of the Company, entered into:

A Afour layers property excess of loss reinsurance treaty with Bimeh Iran which is an entity that has been identified
as owned or controlled lire Government of Iran and appears on the List of Persons Identified as Blocked Solely
Pursuant to Executive Order 13599. The agreement was executed in 2017 and coverage began on January 1, 2017
for one year. Expected gr asatly $288vheusand) and expeatddhét profih o u s a n
attributable to the contract is U047 thousand (appr ox
providing such coverage in accordance with applicable law.

A Athree layers marine excess of los:iseirance treaty with Bimeh Iran. The agreement was executed in 2017 and
coverage began on July 1, 2017 for one year. Expecte
thousand) and expected net pr of (approsimately $2B thdusamd). EBhet o t h
subsidiary intends to continue providing such coverage in accordance with applicable law.

A Athree layers property catastrophe excess of loss reinsurance treaty with an Iranian pool of insurers of which one
member is Bimeltran. The agreement was executed in 2017 and coverage began on September 23, 2017 for one
year. Expected gross revenue is IRR 4,635 million (approximately $124 thousand) and expected net loss
attributable to the contract is IRR 4,947 million ($132 thousaHe subsidiary intends to continue providing such
coverage in accordance with applicable law.
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C. Organizational Structure
On March 18, 2016, following receipt of regulatory approvals, the Company's publicly held common shares were acquired by
Exor N.V., a subsidiary of EXOR S.p.A., one of Europeds | e

In October 2016Exor N.V. changed its name to EXOR Nederland N.V. In December 2016, EXOR S.p.A. merged with and
into EXOR HOLDING N.V., a newly formed entity organized in the Netherlands and, in conjunction with the merger, EXOR
HOLDING N.V. changed its name to EXOR N.XEXOR N.V. is listed on the Milan Stock Exchange.

In addition to the Company, significant subsidiaries of EXOR N.V. include Fiat Chrysler Automobiles, CNH Industrial,
Ferrari, The Economist Group and Juventus Football Club.

The Companyods ingsulisidiariesateDecembpte201d are as follows:

Jurisdiction Percentage Interest Held
Partner Reinsurance Company Ltd. Bermuda 100%
Partner Reinsurance Europe SE Ireland 100%
Partner Reinsurance Company of the U.S. New York, United States 100%
Partner Reinsurance Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100%
See Exhibit 8.1 to this annual reporton FormR20f or a | i sting of all of the Compar

D. Property, Plants and Equipment

The Company leases office space in Hamilton (Bermuda) where its principal executive offices are located. Additionally, the
Company leases office space in various other locations, principally in Dublin, Stamford, ConmettielJ.S., Toronto, Paris and
Zurich.

In 2017, the Company purchased from a related party certain real estate investments located in the U.K. See Note 19 to t
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 for further details.

ITEM 4. A UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 5. OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The following discussions should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements for the years ended
DecembeRBl, 2017, 2016 and 2015 in Item 18 of this report.

The financial results below are presented in U.S. dollars as the reporiegayu The financial information presented below
is based on, or has been derived from the U.S. GAAP Consolidated Financial Statements presented in Item 18 of this report.

This discussion includes forwatdoking statements, which, although based onrapsions that we consider reasonable, are
subject to risks and uncertainties which could cause actual events or conditions to differ materially from those exprgdised or
by the forwardlooking statements. See G. Safe Harbor section below and Riskd-acttem 3 of this report for a discussion of
risks and uncertainties.

Executive Overview

The Company is a leading global reinsurer, with a broadly diversified and balanced portfolio of traditional reinsurance risks
and capital markets risks. The Compduas three segments: P&C, Specialty, Life and Health (see Results by Segment below).

The Company is in the business of assessing and assuming risk for an appropriate return. The Company creates value throu
its ability to understand, evaluate, diversifiyd distribute risk. The Company's strategy is founded on a ebp#tat risk appetite
and the selected risks that management believes will allow the Company to meet its goals for appropriate profitalsikity and ri
management within that appetite. Managemt bel i eves that this construct all ows
confidence of claims payment with shareholder needs for an appropriate return on their capital.

T he Co mp atery dlgectiVedsrtogmanage a portfolio of diversifiesks that will create shareholder value. The
Companyo6s profitability in any particular period dthen be si
impact of changes in interest rates on the fair value of investments (seedfens Adfecting YeatoverYear Comparability
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bel ow) . Accordingly, the Companyb6s performance duriovery any
the longetterm reinsurance cycle.

Industry Environment, Strategic Initiatives and Capital Management

In spite of the challenging and limited growth environment experienced in the reinsurance industry for a number of years, the
need for reinsurance is not diminishing. To the contrary,dmsurance environment is becoming more and more complex, as the
traditional forms of risk are increasingly exposed to globalization and urbanization and new forms of risks develogybech as
geopolitical and supply chain). Factors such as a higiegtion gap in the Natife and Life and Health reinsurance and emerging
markets, as well grimary insurers needs to reduce volatility in earnings, further increase the need for reinsurance. While the
alternative capital market has been growing, it canealace traditional reinsurers whose balance sheets can absorb risks more
efficiently, especially in medium and long tail lines of business.

The Company believes that overall, reinsurance will broadly remain a cyclical market, albeit of less amplitadidy ps a
result of excess capital, and that the cycles will become more specific and local, with less global amplitude. The Company's
strategy is to focus on reinsurance of business written by our cedants, and not compete with our clients gectyglriditg or
assuming insurance risks.

Among the Company's strategic priorities are growing thelif@footprint with selected clients and brokers, using
retrocession to enhance balance sheet and relevance, and growing the Life and Health lymakdrpraxduct segments and
geographies. The Company is focused on striking the right balance between top down and bottom up risk selection by broadening
scope and client penetration for wetiderstood, efficient risk classes and keeping a selective appiamdess predictable risk
patterns.

During 2017, the Company continued to execute its growth strategy in the Life and Health segment by completing the
acquisition of Aurigen expanding its life reinsurance footprint in Canada and the U.S. In addiioasab of the reorganization of
the Company's support units and initiated other-sasging initiatives following the closing of the acquisition by Exor N.V., the
Company has achieved operational cost savings.

See Risk Factors in Item 3 of this repat & description of risks that may affect our business.

The following discussion provides an overview of business operations, trends and the outlook for 2018 with respect to each ¢
t he Co mp dife,\Life eand Nealth and Investment operations.

Non-life reinsurance operations, trends and 2018 outlook

The Company generates its Alifie reinsurance revenue from premiums. Premium rates and overall terms and conditions vary
depending on market conditions. Pricing cycles are driven by supply ofléapha industry and demand for reinsurance and
insurance and other risk transfer products. The reinsurance business is also influenced by several other factorsaneiotiag v
in interest rates and financial markets, changes in legal, regulatbiydicial environments, loss trends, inflation and general
economic conditions.

In an increasingly competitive market environment, and considering increased regulatory and rating agency expectations, the
Company continues to focus on its risk managemnteatieg)y, financial strength, underwriting selection process and global presence.
The Company removes the volatility associated with those risks from the client, and then manages those risks amedatie risk
volatility. Through its broad product and ggaphic diversification, the Company is able to achieve portfolio diversification of
risks, and its execution capabilities and global presence enables the Company to respond quickly to market needs.

A key challenge facing the Company is successfully magagsk through all phases of the reinsurance cycle. The Company
believes that its longerm strategy of closely monitoring and being selective in the business that it writes, and maintaining the
diversification and balance of its portfolio, will optimizeturns over the reinsurance cycle. Individual businesses and markets have
their own unique characteristics and are at different stages of the reinsurance pricing cycle at any given point inagamedviain
believes the Company has an appropriate pootftilersification by product, geography, type of business, length of tail and
distribution channel. Further, management believes that this diversification, in addition to the financial strengthroptirey@ad
its strong global franchise, will help toitigate cyclical declines in underwriting profitability.

The Nonlife reinsurance market has historically been highly cyclical in nature as evidenced by hard and soft markets. For
many years, with the exception of lines and markets impacted by specafitrophic or large loss events, the Company has been
experiencing a soft market with general decreases in pricing and profitability. Following recent large catastropheifasses dur
third and fourth quarters of 2017, the catastrophe exposed busisesgesienced price increases. However, the availability of
capital is reducing the amplitude of cycles compared to the past.
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The Company writes a large majority of its business on a treaty basis and the majority oflffectremty business renews
on Jnuary 1. The remainder of this business renews at other times during the year. In addition to treaty business, the Company
writes direct and facultative business which renews throughout the year.

The outlooks for 2017 for each of the P&C and Specialtyneags are summarized as follows:

2018 P&C Segment Outlook

During the January 1, 2018 renewals, the Company observed improving pricing, with adigilbhte increase in North
America property catastrophe rates along with improving profit margins in B&@ segments globallfhe expected premium
volume from the Companyés January 1, 2018 renewals, at cor
renewal. As a result of the persisting competition and excess capacity in theyiritlisstrot possible to forecast if improving
pricing conditions will continue in the future.

2018 Specialty Segment Outlook

During the January 1, 2018 renewals, the Company generally observed improved pricing in most lines of business within the
Specil y segment. The expected premium volume from the Compar
rates, increased compared to the prior year renewal. As a result of the persisting competition and excess capaciigtity,thésnd
not possible to forecast if improving pricing conditions will continue in the future.

Life and Health reinsurance operations, trends and 2018 outlook

The Companyédés Life and Health segment derives r eentetimues
Company writes mortality, longevity, and accident and health products. Management believes the Life and Health busiiesss provi
the Company with diversification benefits and balance to its portfolio as they are generally not correlated tptlaerCgnd-fe N o n
business.

The profitability of the life and accident and health business mainly depends on the volume and amount of death claims
incurred, medical claims and expenses, and the ability to adequately price the risk the Company assuragsity loé time life
premium arises from lonterm inforce contracts. The life reinsurance policies are often in force for the remaining lifetime of the
underlying individuals insured, with premiums earned typically over a period of 10 to 30 years. Urhe wbkhe business may be
reduced each year by lapses, voluntary surrenders, death of insureds and recaptures by ceding companies. While death claims a
reasonably estimated over a period of many years, claims become less predictable over shortangeaodtuctuate
significantly from period to period. Similarly, while the volume of medical claims can be predicted to a certain extenthieof
claims and expenses depends on various factors, primarily healthcare inflation rates, drivent hgveastief the older population,
reliance on expensive medical equipment and technology, and changes in demand for healthcare services over time.

Compared to the Nalife markets, the Life and Health reinsurance markets are more concentrated, with feketr mar
participants.

2018 Life and Health Outlook

The January 1, 2018 renewal for Life business is not relevant, as it only impacts titershaonbrtality inforce premium,
which is a relatively limited portion of the Life portfolio. Management expecteemmodht e conti nued growt h i
portfolio in 2018 assuming constant foreign exchange rates, mainly due to growth in Canada following the Aurigen acquisition.
Pricing conditions are not expected to materially differ from 2017. The renewa Glotlnpany's Health business was relatively
stable compared to the prior year as a result ofreaewal of certain business being offset by rate increases.

Investment operations, trends and 2018 outlook

The Company generates revenue from its high qualgstment portfolio through net investment income, including interest
on fixed maturities, interest in earnings of equity method investments, and realized and unrealized gains on investments.

For the Companyds i nvest me temarkeiasdkrealestatehnvestments,digersificteon g niskid i
critical to achieving the risk and return objectives of the Company.

The Company allocates its invested assets into two cate
policy distinguishes between | iquid, high quality de nvestr
diver si fied, higher risk asset classes that are all owesd with

below for a discussion of liability and capital funds).
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While there will be periods where such investments may earn less thaskifree rate of return, or potentially produce
negative results, the Company believes the rewards for assuming these risks in a disciplined and measured way will produce a
positive excess return to the Company over time. Additionally, since a portoam ofvestment risks are not fully correlated with
the Companyds reinsurance risks, this increases the overal

The Company follows prudent investment guidelines through a strategy that seeks tamessdonns while managing
investment risk in Iine with the Comp-&ermydokvaloewgowtla Akey obj ect i
challenge for the Company is achieving the right balance in changing market conditions. The Compaty negatlas the
allocation of investments to asset classes within its investment portfolio and its furidtireetty managed account and allocates
investments to those asset classes the Company anticipates will outperform in the future, subjecatal Iguitielines. Similarly,
the Company reduces its exposure to asset classes where returns are deemed unattractive. The Company may also lengthen or
shorten the duration of its fixed maturity portfolio in anticipation of changes in interest rates, asénoralecrease the amount of
credit risk it assumes, depending on credit spreads and anticipated economic conditions.

In 2017, the Company's investment portfolio benefited by a market environment characterized by relatively low volatility, and
positive peformance of most asset classes, particularly at the higher end of the risk spectrum. In particular, the Company benefitec
from positive performances in public and private equity, as well as in real estate. Compression of credit spreads gesustad in
the investmengrade corporate bond portfolio, more than offsetting the losses generated by the moderate increase Hr&kS. risk
rates.

Assuming constant foreign exchange rates and absence of negative cash flows related to catastrophic ondangg, loss e
management expects net investment income in 2018 to be comparable to 2017.

A. Operating Results

Foll owing the acquisition of the Company®ds common shar e
March 2016, all of the Companyds publicly traded common st
2016, EXOR Nderland N.V. holds 100% of the 100 million Class A shares of $0.00000001 par value each for a total share capital
of $1.00. Accordingly, per share data is not considered meaningful and is no longer presented by the Company.

Key Factors Affecting Yearover-Year Comparability

The key factors affecting the yeavery e ar comparabil ity of the Company6s r es.
2016 and 2015 include largetastrophic and large loss events, volatility in capital markets andawomring other expenses. These
factors may continue to affect our results of operations and financial condition in the future.

Large Catastrophic and Large Loss Events

As t he Emrinspranceyoferations are exposed teffequency and higiseverity risk events, some of which are
seasonal, results for certain periods may include unusually low loss experience, while results for other periods manp dedtide
or significant loss xperience driven by catastrophic losses. The Company considers losses greater than $35 million, net of
retrocession and reinstatement premiums, to be large catastrophic or large loss events.

The combined i mpact of the | arge catastrophic and | arge
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 was as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

2017 2016 2015

P&C Specialty Total P&C Specialty Total P&C Specialty Total
segment segment Non-life® segment segment Non-life® segment segment Non-life®

Large catastrophic and large losst $ 50¢ $ 61 $ 56 $ 11C $ 46 $ 15 $ 37 $ 22 $ 58
Impact on combined ratio 15.4% 4.C% 1.5%

(1) Large catastrophic and large losses for 2017 are net of retramessid reinstatement premiums and were comprised of $449
million related to the 2017 Hurricanes and $120 million related to the California Wildfires.

(2) Large catastrophic and large losses for 2016 are net of retrocession and reinstatement premiums aochpreseccof $69
million related to the Canadian Wildfires, $45 million related to Hurricane Matthew and $42 million related to the Ghana
energy loss.

(3) Large losses of $59 million for 2015 are net of retrocession and represent losses related to the Xogiorf

The combined ratio is presented and defined in Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report.
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Volatility in Capital Markets

Operating results for the years ended DecerBheR017, 2016 and 201&ere significantly impacted by the volatility in the
capital markets with the Company reporting net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments in net incomeias follows
millions of U.S. dollars):

Year ended DecembeB1, Total

2017 $ 232
2016 $ 26
2015 $ (297)

In 2017, corporate bond spreads narrowed, equity markets increased and Wt8e niates increased, resulting in a net
realized and unrealized gain on investments recorded in net income.

In 2016, U.S. riskree interest rates increased at the end of the year and credit spreads narrowed compared to¥lecember
2015, resulting in a modest net realized and unrealized gain on investments recorded in net income.

In 2015, U.S. riskree interesrates increased, credit spreads widened and worldwide equity markets deteriorated. The result
of these movements was a net realized and unrealized loss on investments recorded in net income.
Other Expenses

The results for the years ended Decendder2017, 2016 and 2015 were significantly impacted by certain expenses that are
reasonably expected to not recur, included within Other expenses, as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

Year ended DecembeBl1, Total

2017 $ 33
2016 $ 12¢
2015 $ 411

See Review of Net Income below and Note 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 for further details of the
nortrecurring expenses noted above.

Foreign Exchange Movements

The Companyds reporting currency is the U.S. dollar. Thi
foll owing functional <currencies: U.S. dollar, Eurosor Cance
transaatd in foreign currencies, fluctuations in foreign exchange rates may affeaiwergear comparisons. To the extent that
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates affect comparisons, their impact has been quantified, when possible, and daogissed thr
this annual report. See Note 2(m) to the Consolidated Financial Statements 18 leénhis report for a discussion of translation of
foreign currencies.

The foreign exchange fluctuations for the principal currencies in which the Company transactshusieeas follows:

A the U.S. dollar ending exchange rate weakened against most currencies at D8dg@®ET compared to Decemigdr,
2016;

A the U.S. dollar average exchange rate for the year weakened against most major currencies with the exceptiamdof GB
the Japanese yen which strengthened, in 2017 compared to 2016; and

A the U.S. dollar average exchange rate for the year was stronger against most currencies, except the Japanese yen, in 20:
compared to 2015.

The above fluctuations impacted individlai ne i tems of the Companyds Consoli dat
overall net impact is not significant due to the matching of assets and liabilities by currency and due to the hedgniglof mat
foreign exchange exposures. See also seBtidtiquidity and Capital Resourcg@Currency below for a discussion of the impact of
foreign exchange movements on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Review of Net Income

The components of net income for the years ended Decédnber 2017, 2016 and 2015 are pr
Consolidated Statements of Operations, and the breakdown by segment in Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Staéements in It
18 of this repa.

Management analyzes the Companyds net income in three p
of net income or | oss n dliteandLife and ldeqlth degnents (induded i@ Comoprata gnd GtheN o n
componat). These components for the years ended Dece®ih@017, 2016 and 2015 were as follows (in millions of U.S.
dollars):

2017 2016 2015
Underwriting result (88) 252 61¢
Investment result 72( 414 15¢
Corporate and Other $ (36¢) $ (219 $ (671)
Net income $ 264 $ 447 $ 107

The components of net income, and changes for the years presented above, are described below.

Underwriting Result

Underwriting result consists of net premiums earned and other income less losses and loss expenses, acquisition costs and
other expenses. Underwriting result is a primary metossur e ¢
separate from the investment results, and is used to manage and evaluate the Compdifg'sé¢pnents (P&C and Specialty)
and Life and Health segment. The Company believes that in order to enhance the understanding of its profitability] fois usef
our shareholders and other users of this report to evaluate the components of net income or loss separately and inghe aggrega
Underwriting result should not be considered a substitute for net income or loss and does not reflect the overaltyaffitebili
business, which is also impacted by investment results and other items.

The Nonlife and Life and Health underwriting results for the years ended Dece&thh2017, 2016 and 2015 were as follows
(in millions of U.S. dollars):

2017 2016 2015
Nortlife $ 24 $ 24¢ % 584
Life and Health (112) 3 3t
Total underwriting result (88) 252 61¢

The Nonlife and Life and Health underwriting results for the years ended Dece&thb2017, 2016 and 2015 were comprised
as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

2017 2016 2015
Total Life and Total Life and Total Life and
Non-life Health Total Non-life Health Total Non-life Health Total
Technical result $ 12¢ $ (65) $ 64 $ 47€¢ $ 50 $ 53t $ 80 $ 92 $ 89%
Other (loss) inconi® Q) 14 13 2 10 12 0 6 6
Other expensés (104) (61) (165) (229) (66) (295) (219 (63) (282)
Underwriting result $ 24 $ (112) $ 88)$ 24¢ 3 3% 252 % 584 % 35 $ 61¢

(1) Other income or loss and other expenses above represent expenses allocated to the segments and include directl expenses ar
certain other expenses that vary with the volume of business. The indirect fixed costs are not allocated to segments and are
preented in Corporate and Other below.

Nonlife segments

The Nonlife underwriting result and combined ratio for 2017 primarily reflected large catastrophic losses related to the 2017
Hurricanes and California Wildfires. The Ndife combined ratio benefitelom net favorable prior year development of $448
million (12.2 points on the combined ratio) with both the P&C and Specialty segments experiencing net favorable development.
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The Nonlife underwriting result and combined ratio for 2016 primarily reflected losses from the Canadian wildfires, hurricane
Matthew and an energy loss. The Nida combined ratio benefited from net favorable prior year development of $677 million
(17.6points on the combined ratio) for 2016, with both the P&C and Specialty segments experiencing net favorable development.

The Nonlife underwriting result and combined ratio in 2015 reflected increasingly competitive pricing and conditions,
resulting in hgher downward prior year premium adjustments and large losses related to the Tianjin Exphesioat. favorable
prior year development of $831 million (20.5 points on the combined ratio) was driven by belifeN@mgments.

Life and Health segment

The wnderwriting loss in the Life and Health segment in 2017 was primarily due to losses in Health, partially offset by gains in
Life.

The underwriting gain in 2016 and 2015 was due to positive contribution from both Life and Health business, driven by
favorabk prior year development.

See Results by Segment below for further details and Note 8(a) to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this
report for a further discussion of the reserve development related to prior accident years.

Investment Resh

Investment result consists of net investment income, net realized and unrealized investment gains or losses and interest in
earnings or losses of equity method investments. Net investment income includes interest, dividends and amortizatiomsf premi
and discounts on fixed maturities and shertn investments, rental income on investments in real estate as well as investment

income on funds held and funds Heddi r ect | y managed, and is net of investment
aativities, and withholding taxes. Net realized and unreal
income, equity and other invested assets and investments underlying the fundsdwatlg managed account and changes in net

unreal i zed gains or | osses. I nterest in earnings or | cobses

earnings or losses related to several private placement investments and limited partnership interests.

The components of the investment result for the years ended Decgmi2éx1 7, 2016 and 2015 were as follows (in millions
of U.S. dollars):

2017 2016 2015
Net investment income 40z 411 45(C
Net realized and unrealized investment gains (losses) 23z 26 (297)
Interest in earnings (losses) of equity method investments 86 (23 6
Total investment result 72C 414 15¢

Net Investment Income

Net investment income by asset source for the years ended De@&ImB64d.7, 2016 and 201&as as follows (in millions of
U.S. dollars):

2017 2016 2015
Fixed maturities, shotterm investments and cash and cash equivalents $ 38¢€ $ 39%¢ $ 42¢€
Equities o} 4 31
Funds held and other 29 34 27
Funds helddirectly managed 8 1C 12
Investment expenses (23 (35 (46)
Net investment income $ 40z $ 411 $ 45C

2017 compared to 2016

Net investment income decreased in 2017 compared to 2016 due to the partial sale of the principal finance portfolio in the
fourth quarter of 2018which was partially offset by the inclusion of Aurigen's portfolio, increases in reinvestment rates in the U.S.
and Canada, a higher allocation to investment grade corporate bonds and lower investment expenses during the year.
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2016 compared to 2015

Net investment income decreased in 2016 compared to 2015 due to lower income from fixed income securities, the
strengthening of the U.S. dollar against most major currencies (which resulted in a 2% decrease in net investment irrcome) and
decrease from edies, primarily due to a change in investment portfolio composition. These decreases were partially offset by
lower investment expenses.

Net Realized and Unrealized Investment Gains (Losses)

The Companyds portfoli o manadbjgotiveaachieveditimough atombiration of @ptimizmgn i n-
current investment income and pursuing capital appreciation. To meet this objective, it is often desirable to buy amdtissltse
take advantage of changing market conditions and to reposiiganvestment portfolios. Accordingly, recognition of realized gains
and losses is considered by the Company to be a normal consequence of its ongoing investment management activites. In additi
the Company recognized changes in fair value for sulisligrell of its investments as changes in unrealized investment gains or
losses in its Consolidated Statements of Operations. Realized and unrealized investment gains and losses are getieratly a func
multiple factors, with the most significant beipgevailing interest rates, credit spreads and equity market conditions.

The components of net realized and unrealized investment gains (losses) for the years ended Bec20ier2016 and 2015
were as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

2017 2016 2015

Net realized investment gains 22 10¢< 172
Change in net unrealized investment gains or losses 21C (77) (469)
Net realized and unrealized investment gains (losses) $ 23z $ 26 $ (299

The net realized and unrealized investment gains of $232 million in 2017 were primarily due to narrowing of corporate bond
spreads and increases in equity markets, partially offset by increases in Ufferigiterest rates. Net realized investngaihs
were primarily driven by gains on fixed maturities and stemn investments and net unrealized gains were primarily driven by
fixed maturities and shoterm investments, equities and other invested assets.

The net realized and unrealized invesiringains of $26 million in 2016 were primarily due to narrowing of credit spreads,
partially offset by increases in U.S. rifilee interest rates at the end of the year. Net realized investment gains in 2016 were
primarily driven by gains on fixed matugs and shorterm investments and net unrealized losses were primarily driven by fixed
maturities and shotterm investments.

The net realized and unrealized investment losses of $297 million in 2015 were primarily due to increases inflées. risk
interest rates, the widening of credit spreads, decreases in worldwide equity markets and realized losses on treasury. Nge futures
realized investment gains in 2015 were primarily driven by gains on equities and net unrealized losses were primaljy driven
equities and fixed maturities and shtatm investments.

See also Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 for further details.

Interest in Earnings (Losses) of Equity Method Investments

The interest in earnings in equity method investments of $86 million in 2017 was primarily due to a significant gaitorelated
Almacantar, a privately held real estate investment and development group.

The losses of $23 million in 2016 and gainsof $8@milon i n 2015 were due to the Compa
losses related to several private placement investments and limited partnerships.
Corporate and Other

The following are components of net income (in millions of U.S. dolthet)the Company does not allocate to segments, in
line with the way the Company manages its business, as described above.
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2017 2016 2015
Other income not allocated to the segméhts 2 3 3
Other expenses not allocated to the segments (183) a77) (509
Interest expense (42 (49 (49
Loss on redemption of debt () (22) o}
Amortization of intangible assets (25) (26) (27)
Net foreign exchange (losses) gains (10¢) 78 (9)
Income tax expense (10 (26) (80)
Corporate and Other $ (368 $ (219 $ (6717)

(1) Other income includes income on insurafioked securities. Other income for 2017 also includes a bargain purchase gain on
the Aurigen acquisition of less than $1 million. Other income for 2016 and 2015 also includes principal finance transactions
within the investment portfolio.

Other Expenses

The Company allocates direct expenses and certain other expenses that vary with the volume of business to its operating
segments. These expenses are included in underwriting result above and are presented in Results by Segment below. The indirec
fixed cogs are not allocated to segments and are presented in Corporate and Other.

The Companyds tot al other expenses, included in the und
DecembeRBl, 2017, 2016 and 2015 were as follows (in milliohy).S. dollars, except ratios):

2017 2016 2015
Other expenses, as reported $ 34 $ 47z $ 791
Other transaction and severance related costs (39 (12¢) (41))
Other expenses, as adjusted for various transaction and severance related c$ 31t % 344 % 38C
Other expenses, as adjusted, as a % of total net premiums earned 6.2% 6.€% 7.2%

2017 compared to 2016

Other expenses, as reported, decreased by $124 million, or 26%, in 2017 comparepto20l$ due to the efficiency
actions undertaken following the closing of the acquisition by Exor N.V. and lower reorganization and transaction calts, part
offset by the inclusion of Aurigen expenses. In 2017, other expenses include $33 miltenmsattion costs primarily related to the
reorganization costs and the acquisition of Aurigen (see Note 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Itenmef®df this
for further details).

2016 compared to 2015

Other expenses, as reported, decrage$319 million, or 40%, in 2016 compared to 2015 primarily due to a termination fee
and reimbursement of expenses of $315 million to Axis Capital Holdings Limited (Axis) for terminating an amalgamation
agreement previously entered into in January 20k&® Company also expensed $71 million of other transaction and
reorganization related costs in addition to $25 million pursuant to aroeaagreement with former shareholders of Presidio.

In addition, other transaction and severance related costsb&émaillion higher in 2016 compared to 2015, primarily as a
result of the c¢closing of the acquisition by Exor N. V. i n N
operations (see Note 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements ib8tef this report for further details).

Interest Expense

Interest expense in 2017 decreased compared to 2016 and 2015 due to the optimization of the Company's capital structure
through the issuance of a 750 million Exglenominated bond in September 2@h8 the redemption of certain high coupon senior
notes and preferred shares during the fourth quarter of 2016 (see below and Note 10 to Consolidated Financial Stateaments in |
18 of this report for further details).

Loss on Redemption of Debt

The loss a redemption of debt in 2017 and 2016 relates to debt settled by Aurigen in 2017 and redemption of the $250
million 2008 senior notes in 2016, representing a make whole provision related to future interest foregone as a resauiliof the
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retirement (se&lote 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsinltein f or f urt her detail s of th
senior notes).

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Amortization of intangible assets relates to intangible assets acquired upon acquisitioa BERr2009, Presidio in 2012
and Aurigen in 2017. See Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsin8temf or f urt her detai |l s o1
assets and amortization.

Net Foreign Exchange Losses (Gains)

The Company hedges a signific@irtion of its currency risk exposure as discussed in Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures about Market Risk in Iteti of this report.

The net foreign exchange losses in 2017 resulted primarily from the impact of the weakening of the U.S. doliainon c
unhedged noJ.S. denominated liabilities and the cost of hedging activities.

The net foreign exchange gains in 2016 resulted primarily from the impact of the strengthening of the U.S. dollar on certain
unhedged notJ.S. denominated liabilities, gally offset by the cost of hedging activities.

The net foreign exchange losses in 2ed$ulted primarily from the impact of the strengthening of the U.S. dollar on certain
unhedged not.S. denominated investment portfolios, partially offset by gaiteded to the timing of hedging activities and the
di fference in forward points embedded in the Company6s hec

Income Taxes

The effective income tax rate, which the Company calculates as income tax expense or benefit divided by net income or loss
beforetaxes, may fluctuate significantly from period to period depending on the geographic distributiotteof peeincome or
loss in any given period between different jurisdictions. The geographic distributiontafgnet income or loss can vary
significantly between periods due to, but not limited to, the following factors: the business mix of net premiums earned, the
geographic location, quantum and nature of net losses and loss expenses and life policy benefits incurred, the quantum and
geographic loation of other expenses, net investment income, net realized and changes in unrealized investment gains and losses
and the quantum of specific adjustments to determine the i
additon,agini fi cant portion of the Companyds gross -#aralle net pr el
jurisdiction, including the majority of the Companyds cat e
C o mp a n ytad set igame or loss from period to period.

The Companyés income tax expense and ef 8l2017j2016 and 20450 me t
were as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

2017 2016 2015

Income tax expense $ 1c % 26 $ 80
Effective income tax rate 3.8% 5.5% 42.€%

Income tax expense and the effective income tax rate during 2017, 2016 ange28Bimarily driven by the geographic
di stributi on o-fax netineom&hetmgen its yadiaus jyrisdietions.

The recent enactment of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act in the U.S. resulted in a charge of $5 million in the fourth quafter of 201

In 2016, the income tax expense included a tax benefit of $29 million recorded following the favorable outcome of certain tax
litigation and favorable adjustments related to certairet@mpt bonds.

INn2015 t h e C o ntaxabfeyudsdictions recorded a pgex net loss with no associated tax benefit, driven primarily
by the termination fee and reimbursement of expenses paid to Axis of $315 million.
Results by Segment

The Company monitors the performance of its operations in three segments: P&C, Specialty and Life and Health. See the
description of the Companyds segment s, itdsagmenturdsults,in Nate 20 toshe u s <
Consolidated Financial Statements included in 11&nof this report.
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P&C Segment

The components of the technical result, which Isudated as net premiums earned less losses and loss expenses and
acquisition costs, and the corresponding ratios, which are calculated as a percentage of net premiums earned, for thenP&C seg
for the years ended Decemt#r, 2017, 2016 and 2015 werefaows (in millions of U.S. dollars, except ratios):

2017 2016 2015
Gross premiums written $ 2,258 $ 2,26¢ $ 2,371
Net premiums written $ 1,99 $ 2,061 $ 2,23¢
Net premiums earned $ 1,96: $ 2,08 $ 2,24(
Losses and loss expenées (1,620 (1,24¢) (1,129
Acquisition costs (495) (55€) (570
Technical result $ (152 $ 28z % 541
Other income o} 3 o}
Other expenses (71) (141) (137)
Underwriting result $ (229 $ 144 % 404
Loss ratio 82.6% 59.8% 50.4%
Acquisition ratio 25.2 26.7 25.4
Technical ratio 107.¢% 86.5% 75.8%
Other expense ratio 3.€ 6.7 6.2
Combined ratio 111.4% 93.2% 82.(%

(1) See Liquidity and Capital Resourdddonlife and Life and Health Resenéeslonlife reserves below and Note 8 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report for an analysis of losses and loss expenses.

Premiums

The P&C segment repsented 39%, 42% and 43% of total net premiums written in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Business reported in this segment is, to a significant extent, originally denominated in foreign currencies and isrép8rted i
dollars. The U.S. dollar can fituate significantly against other currencies and this should be considered when making year to year
comparisons.

2017 compared to 2016

The decrease in gross premiums written resulted primarily from cancellations and renewal changes in all lines, avhich wer
partially offset by new business written and a higher level of gross reinstatement premiums related to the large cétastsphic
Net premiums written and earned decreased due to the same factors driving the decrease in gross premiums wititb@rtoin add
higher premiums ceded in the catastrophe portfolio.

2016 compared to 2015

The decrease in gross premiums written resulted primarily from foreign exchange movements and cancellations and non
renewals due to continued pressure on pricing and irenteasentions by clients, which were partially offset by new business
written. Net premiums written and earned decreased due to the same factors driving the decrease in gross premiums written, in
addition to higher premiums ceded in the catastrophe piortfol

Technical and underwriting result and related ratios

2017 compared to 2016

The decrease in the technical result (and the corresponding increase in the technical ratio) in 2017 companedgo 2016
primarily driven by a higher level of large catastrophic losses related to the 2017 Hurricanes and the California \Witgimesdc
to large catastrophic losses related to the Canadian Wildfires and Hurricane Matthew during 2016, and a lowteradlef
prior year loss development. The increase in the underwriting loss (and a corresponding increase in the combined rato) was d
by the decrease in the technical result, partially offset by a decrease in other expenses allocated to theeP&&ssegesult of
the efficiency actions undertaken following the closing of the acquisition by Exor N.V.
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2016 compared to 2015

The decrease in the technical result and the underwriting results (and the corresponding increase in the technicaledhd combi
ratios) in 2016 compared to 2015 was primarily attributable to a higher level efireid loss activity, large catastrophic losses
related to the Canadian Wildfires and Hurricane Matthew during 2016 compared to the Tianjin Explosion in 2015 anlé\aelowe
of favorable prior year loss development.

Specialty Segment

The components of the technical result, whicbalkulated as net premiums earned less losses and loss expenses and
acquisition costs, and the corresponding ratios, which are calculated as a percentage of net premiums earned, forythe Special
segment for the years ended Decen8igr2017, 2016 and 26were as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars, except ratios):

2017 2016 2015
Gross premiums written $ 193¢ $ 1,92( $ 1,90¢
Net premums written $ 1,78C $ 1,77¢  $ 1,78¢
Net premiums earned $ 1,728 $ 1,767 $ 1,82(
Losses and loss expenées (95%) (1,079 (1,064
Acquisition costs (489) (500 (499
Technical result $ 281 $ 194 % 262
Other (loss) income Q) (D) o}
Other expenses (39 (88) (82
Underwriting result $ 247 % 105 $ 18C
Loss ratio 55.4% 60.£% 58.5%
Acquisition ratio 28.¢ 28.¢ 27.1
Technical ratio 83.t% 89.1% 85.€%
Other expense ratio 1.¢ 4.S 4.5
Combined ratio 85.1% 94.(% 90.1%

(1) See Liquidity and Capital ResourdeNonlife and Life and Health Resendedlontlife reserves in Item 5 and Note 8 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report for an analysis of losses and loss expenses.

Premiums

The Specialty segent represented 35%6% and 34% of total net premiums written in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Business reported in this segment is, to a significant extent, originally denominated in foreign currencies and iswrépSrted i
dollars.

2017 comparedb 2016

The increase in gross premiums written was driven primarily by new business written and renewal changes. These increases
were largely offset by cancellations and the impact of foreign exchange. Net premiums written increased due to thersame facto
driving the increase in gross premiums written, partially offset by higher premiums ceded in 2017 under new and exiatitsy cont

2016 compared to 2015

The increase in gross premiums written was driven primarily by the impact of foreign exchanbesimags written and a
lower level of downward prior year premium adjustments in 2016 compared to 2015. These increases were partially offset by
cancellations, reduced participations and changes in underlying cedant premium. Net premiums written adeozaased
largely due to higher premiums ceded in 2016.
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Technical and underwriting result and related ratios

2017 compared to 2016

The increase in the technical result (and the corresponding decrease in the technical ratio) in 2017 compared to 2016 was
primarily attributable to lower migized and attritional losses in the current accident year, partially offset by large catastrophic
losses related to the 2017 Hurricanes and the California Wildfires, and lower prior year loss development in 201@asaénncr
the underwriting result (and a corresponding decrease in the combined ratio) was driven by the increase in the telthnical resu
partially offset by a decrease in other expenses allocated to the Specialty segment as a result of the efficisnaydactaken
following the closing of the acquisition by Exor N.V.

2016 compared to 2015

The decrease in the technical and underwriting results (and the corresponding increase in the technical and combimed ratios
2016 compared to 20Mgas primarily attributable to a lower level of favorable prior year loss development, large catastrophic
losses related to Hurricane Matthew and the Ghana energy loss in 2016 and a marginal increase in the acquisitiomaosyratio,
related to proficommission adjustments in agriculture reflecting favorable experience, partially offset by a lower levesiziechid
loss activity during 2016 compared to 2015.

Life and Health Segment

The Company provides reinsurance coverage to primary life insurers and pension funds to protect against individual and gro
mortality and disability risks. Mortality business is written primarily on a proportional basis through treaty egseand is
subdivided into death and disability covers (with various riders), term assurance and critical illness (TCI) and gudramieed m
death benefit (GMDB). The Company also writes certain treaties on-proportional basis.

The Company provide®insurance coverage to employer sponsored pension schemes and primary life insurers who issue
annuity contracts offering lonagerm retirement benefits to consumers, who, in turn, seek protection against outliving their financial
resources. Longevity busess is writtenonaloAg e r m, proportional basis. The Company
standard and nestandard annuities. The ngtandard annuities are annuities sold to consumers with aggravated health conditions
and are usually medatly underwritten on an individual basis. The main risk the Company is exposed to by writing longevity
business is an increase in the future life span of the insured compared to the expected life span.

The Company provides reinsurance coverage to prinfarinsurers with respect to individual and group health risks,
including specialty accident and health business such as Health Maintenance Organizations (HMO) reinsurance, medical
reinsurance and provider and employer excess of loss programs.

The componets of the allocated underwriting result for the Life and Health segment for the years ended D&ie20&Y,
2016 and 2015 were as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

2017 2016 2015
Gross premiums written $ 1,39¢ $ 1,16¢ $ 1,271
Net premiums written $ 1,34¢ $ 1,117 $ 1,20¢
Net premiums earned $ 1,337 $ 1,117 $ 1,20¢
Losses and loss expendes (1,266 (927 (964)
Acquisition costs (136 (137) (159
Technical result $ (65) $ 59 % 92
Other incom@& 14 1C 6
Other expenses (62) (6€) (63)
Underwriting result $ (112) $ 3% 35
Net investment income 6C 58 5¢
Allocated underwriting result $ (52) $ 61 $ 94

(1) See Liquidity and Capital ResourdeNortlife and Life and Health Resenekife and Health Reserves in Item 5 and Note 8
to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report for an analysis of losses and loss expenses.
(2) Other income represents fee income on deposit accounted contracts and longevity swaps.

48



Table of Contents

Premiums

The Life and Health segment represented 26%, 23% and 23% of total net premiums written in 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. Business reported in this seghi® to a significant extent, originally denominated in foreign currencies and is
reported in U.S. dollars.

2017 compared to 2016

The increases in gross and net premiums written and net premiums earned were driven by the inclusion of Aurigen premium:
andgrowth in the health line of business.

2016 compared to 2015

The decreases in gross and net premiums written and net premiums earned were driven by reductions in the longevity line d
to the increased participation on a significant longevity swap iB,20dwnward prior year premium adjustments and cancellations
in the mortality business, in addition to marginal decreases in the health business due to continued competitive gressures. T
impact of changes in foreign exchange rates also contributedsto dieereases.

Allocated underwriting result

2017 compared to 2016

The allocated underwriting result decreased primarily due to losses in the health lines of business which were pattially offs
by gains from the Life business. The loss in the Health business resulted from an increase in frequency of large dfgims activ
underwriting years 2015 to 2017, primarily in Affordable Care Act related programs.

2016 compared to 2015

The allocated underwriting result decreased primarily due to a lower technical result in the health line of business.

B. Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following discussion of |liquidity and capital reso.l
Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. See Risk Factors in Item 3 for additional information concerning risks
related to our bsiness, strategy and operations.

Capital Adequacy

A key challenge for management is to maintain an ideptpr op
capital to meet all of the Companyds obligations tthe cedant
stronger reinsurers in the industry. Management closely monitors its capital needs and capital level throughautréireeesiycle
and in times of wvolatility and tur moil in global @pEitplint a l I

order to achieve an appropriate balance of financial strength and shareholder returns. Capital massgenemd by either
deploying capital to fund attractive business opportunities, or in times of excess capital and times when businessaspa@tunit
not so attractive, returning capital to its common shareholder by way of dividends.

Shar ehol dyeand<apitdt Resources Management

As part of its longterm strategy, the Company will seek to grow capital resources to support its operations throughout the
reinsurance cycle, maintain strong ratings from the major rating agencies and maintaintthi giaili claims as they arise. The
Company may also seek to restructure its capital through the repayment or purchase of debt obligations or preferred shares, o
increase or restructure its capital through the issuance of debt or preferred shares pwtenitgs arise.

The total debt | iabilities and preferred &had0lcand26i6wass h a
as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Senior notes $ 1,38t 17% $ 1,27¢ 1€%

Capital efficient notes 63 1 63 1
Preferred shareholdersodé equity, 704 9 704 9
Common shareholder 6s equity 6,041 73 5,98¢ 74

Total $ 8,19: 10(% $ 8,02t 100%
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Shareholdersé equity, comprised of preferred amd common
DecembeBl, 2017, a 1% increasempared to Decemb8d., 2016. The major factors contributing to this ias@were as
follows:

A comprehensive income of $248 million, which was primarily related to net income in 2017; partially offset by
A common and preferred dividend payments of $191 million in 2016.

See also Notes 10, 11, 12 and 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report for a further discussion
related to the Company's indebtedness and sharehol denets' e«
income for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Liquidity and Cash Flows

Liqguidity is a measure of the Company0s-termlandlongersncasipo acc e
requirements of its business operations.

The Company aims to bereliable and financially secure partner to its cedants. This means that the Company must maintain
sufficient liquidity at all times so that it can support its cedants by settling claims quickly. The Company generdt@s<ash f
primarily from its underwting and investment operations. Management believes that a profitableuwedinsurance organization
will generate sufficient cash from premium receipts to pay claims, acquisition costs and other expenses in most yeaxterio the
that underwritingcash flows are not sufficient to cover operating cash outflows in any year, the Company may utilize cash flows
generated from investments and may ultimately liquidate assets from its investment portfolio. Management ensuresiittigt its lig
requirementsire supported by maintaining a high quality, well balanced and liquid investment grade investment portfolio, and by
matching within certain risk tolerance limits the duration and currency of its investments and the investments unddtyidg the
heldd directly managed account with that of its net reinsurance liabilities. In 2018, the Company expects to continue to generate
positive operating cash flows, absent catastrophic events, and absent negative developments on large catastropheesl/ants incur
2017.

Management believes that its significant cash flows from operations and high quality liquid investment portfolio will provide
sufficient liquidity for the foreseeable future to meet its present requirements. At De@InBOd7 and 2016, cash and cash
equivalents were $1.8 billion.

The Companyds Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl ows are
this report. Explanations of the cash flows presented in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Brfedi@anes:

Net cash provided by operating activities of $243 million in 2017 decreased from $445 million in 2016 primarily due to higher
losses paid in 2017. The positive cash flow in 2017 was primarily driven by investment income and included $14&f padllh
losses related to the 2017 Hurricanes and California Wildfires, offset by other net cash operating outflows.

Net cash provided by investing activities was $99 million in 2017 compared to net cash used in investing activities of $34
million in 2016. The net cash provided by investing activities in 2017 reflects cash proceeds on sale of investments used to fund
financing activities noted below, partially offset by cash used to fund the Aurigen acquisition and to invest in puplfaretpuit
The ret cash used in investing activities in 2016 was primarily driven by purchases efeshoimivestments and an equity method
investment in Almacantar for $539 million, partially offset by cash provided by sales and redemptions of securities.

Net cash uskin financing activities was $387 million in 2017 compared to $153 million in 2016. Net cash used in financing
activities in 2017 was primarily related to the redemption of debt by Aurigen and dividend payments on common and preferred
shares. Net cash ubsén financing activities in 2016 was primarily relatedhe dividend payments on common and preferred
shares, the redemptions of preferred shares and senior notes, and the paymentinfeaspeeial cash dividend and settlement of
certain shardasedawards related to the acquisition by Exor N.V. These cash outflows were partially offset by cash inflows from
the issuance of Eurdenominatedenior notes.

The Companyds ability to pay common and ptadfwmmparaged shar e
expenses is dependent mainly on cash dividends from PartnerRe Bermuda, PartnerRe Europe, PartnerRe U.S. and PartnerRe As
(collectively, the reinsurance subsidiaries), vebchdividendsr e t

by the reinsurance subsidiaries to the Company is limited under Bermuda, Irish and Singapore laws and certain stadutes of var
U.S. states in which PartnerRe U.S. is licensed to transact business. The restrictions are generally détasedroe and/or
certain |l evels of policyholdersd earned surplus as deter mi

The reinsurance subsi di ar i 352017 dré descibedrindNote E3dotthe Candtdidlo ns at
Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report. In accordance with the terms of the merger agreement between the Company and
Exor N.V,, subsequent to the preferred share exchange in May 2016, the Company's payment of dividends on common shares
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declar@ with respect to any fiscal quarter is restricted to an amount not exceeding 67% of net income per fiscal quarter until
December 31, 2020.

The reinsurance subsidiaries of the Company depend upon cash inflows from the collection of premiums as estthastinv
income and proceeds from the sales and maturities of investments to meet their obligations. Cash outflows are in theificgm of
payments, purchase of investments, other expenses, income tax payments, intercompany payments as well ayudigitdsnd pa
the respective parent company. See Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report and F. Tabular
Disclosures of Contractual Obligations below for further details.

Historically, the Company, including through its theeogting subsidiaries, has generated sufficient cash flows to meet its
obligations. Because of the inherent volatility of the business written by the Company, the seasonality in the timingnt$ jbgym
cedants, the irregular timing of loss payments, tiygeict of a change in interest rates and credit spreads on the investment income
as well as seasonality in coupon payment dates for fixed income securities, cash flows from operating activities may vary
significantly between periods. The Company expects flas/s from operating activities to continue to be sufficient to cover claims
payments, absent catastrophic or other large loss activity. In the event that paid losses accelerate beyond thenabslitgtto fu
payments from operating cash flows, the Campwould use its cash and cash equivalents balances available, liquidate a portion of
its high quality and liquid investment portfolio or access certain uncommitted credit facilities. As discussed in themsestm
section bel ow, t hsandrtasmand cashé&guivalenty(exsludingethe fundisdiectly managed account)
totaled $16.5 billion at Decemb@d, 2017, of which $14.1 billion were cash and cash equivalents and government issued or
investment grade fixed income securities.

Financa| strength ratings and senior unsecured debt rating
capacity to meet its obligations. I n the event of aadtosi gni f
accessthe api t al mar kets could be impacted. Some of the Compan
clauses that would be triggered in the event the Company or one of its subsidiaries is downgraded by one of the major rating
agenciestt evel s specified in the treaties, or the Companyds ca

Company would be required, in certain instances, to post collateral in the form of letters of credit and/or trust aedosints ag
exiging outstanding losses, if any, related to the treaty. In a limited number of instances, the subject treaties couldde cance
retroactively or commuted by the cedant.

The Companyds current financi al strength ratings and ou
Standar®® Poor 6s A+
Mo o d% 6 s Al
A.M. Best A
Fitch A+

(1) Applies to Partner Reinsurance Company Ltd. and Partner Reinsurance Company of the U.S.

Credit Agreements

In the normal course of its operations, the Company enters into agreements with financial institutions to obtain undecured an
secured letter of credit facilities. These facilities are used for the issuance of letters of credit, which must baerkdiwisecash,
government bonds and/or investment grade bonds. The agreements include default covenants, which could require the Company
fully secure the outstanding letters of credit to the extent that the facility is not already fully secured and tthisaisuance of
any new letters of credit. See Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report for further details

Investments

Investment philosophy

The Company employs a prudent investment philosophy. It maintains a high qualitgalaeited and liquid portfolio having
a total return investment objective, achieved through a combination of optimizing current investment income and putsiliing capi
app eci ation. The Companydés total invested assets of $%®6, 98
comprised of total investments, cash and cash equivalents, the investment portfolio underlying the fudidsdtigldnanaged
account (which excludes other asset and liabilities underlying the fundisdirelctly managed account), and accrued interest. From
a risk management perspective, the Company allocates its invested assets into two categories: liability funds andigapital fun
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Liability funds (including funds heldlirectly managed) represent invested assets supporting the net reinsurance liabilities,
and are invested primarily in investmeagrade fixed maturity securities and cash and cash equivalents. The preservation of
liquidity and protection of capital are the primary investment objectives for these assets. The portfolio managers ate required
adhere to investment guidelines as to minimum ratings and issuer and sector concentration limitations. Liability funds are
inveged in a way that generally matches them to the corresponding liabilities (referred to-iatzibgematching) in terms of
both duration and major currency composition to provide the Company with a natural hedge against changes in interest and
foreignexchange rates. In addition, the Company utilizes certain derivatives to further protect against changes in interest and
foreign exchange rates. Liability funds represented approximately 54% of the total invested assets at Bécefibeand
2016.

Captal funds represent shareholder capital of the Company and are invested in a diversified portfolio with the objective of
maximizing investment return, subject to prudent risk constraints. Capital funds contain most of the asset classes typically
viewed aoffering a higher risk and higher return profile, subject to risk assumption and portfolio diversification guidelines
which include issuer and sector concentration limitations. Capital funds may be invested in investment grade and below
investment gradexied maturity securities, publicly listed and private equities, bond and loan investments, real estate
investments, structured credit and certain other specialty asset classes. Capital funds represented approximatelyatébso of the
invested assets at Deuber31, 2017 and 2016.

The Companyds investment strategy allows for the use of
may utilize various derivative instruments, such as treasury note and equity futures contracts, craditvdgfauloreign
currency option contracts, foreign exchange forward contracts, total return and interest rate swaps,-limkaduseeurities
and tebe-announced mortgageacked securities (TBAS) for the purpose of managing and hedging currencyaikkt m
exposure and portfolio duration, hedging certain investments, mitigating the risk associated with underwriting operations, or
enhancing investment performance that would be all owed unc
The use of financial leverage, whether achieved through derivatives or margin borrowing, requires approval from the Board.

At DecembeB31, 2017, the Company had no financial leverage achieved through derivatives and no margin borrowing has
been approved bihe Board.

The components and carrying values of the Companyds tot
DecembeBl, 2017 and 2016 were as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Fixed maturities $ 12,65¢ 86% $ 13,43: 92%
Shortterm investments 4 o} 22 o}
Equities 63¢ 4 39 o}
Investments in real estate 83 1 o} o}
Other invested assets 1,38t 9 1,07¢ 8
Total investment§) $ 14,76¢ 10(% $ 14,56¢ 10C%

(1) In addition to the total investments shown in the above table, the Company held cash and cash equi¥al8riglioh at
DecembeB1, 2017 and 2016.

The majority of the Companyds investments are carried a
unrealized investment gains or losses in the Consolidated Statements of Operatibna.iThe val ue of t he Comp
maturities and shotterm investments at Decemli&k, 2017 compared to 2016 primarily reflected higher U.S-fresk interest
rates, the strengthening of the U.S. dollar against most major currencies and the impdfliof @itwcation decisions, which were
partially offset by narrowing credit spreads and the acquisition of Aurigen. In 2017, the Company increased its ovatial &tloc
equities, while the increase in other invested assets reflects new investnoemtaimthirdparty managed high yield privately
issued corporate loans and maskmarket gains on thirgarty funds. In prior years, the Company's Board authorized the entry into
direct real estate investments. In line with this authorization, the Congpanpleted the acquisition of certain real estate
investment properties during the fourth quarter of 2017. The investments in real estate are carried at cost.

The Companyds investment portfolio gener atl®did%in20¥tThet ot a
total accounting return in 2017 reflected overall ra@rknarket gains driven by equities and compression in corporate bonds
spreads, notwithstanding increases in U.S. and Europeafieésinterest rates. The total accountingimein 2016 reflected overall
markto-market gains, notwithstanding increases in U.S. and Europeainegsiterest rates.

The cost, fair value and credit r detminvestnents CarriechatfairQalumata ny 6
Decenber31, 2017 were as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):
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Credit Rating @

~ Below
Investment
Fair grade/
December 31, 2017 Cost® Value AAA AA A BBB Unrated
Fixed maturities
U.S. governrent $ 2194 $ 218 $ & $218¢ $ o $ o 9 o)
U.S. government sponsored enterprises 22 22 o} 22 o} o}
U.S. states, territories and municipalities 64¢ 69C 15C 41( 1 o} 12¢
Non-U.S. sovereign government,
supranational and government related 1,69¢ 1,751 65& 765 333 o} o}
Corporate 6,03¢ 6,12¢ 43 36E 2,26¢ 3,31( 14z
Assetbacked securities 47 51 8 o} o} o} 43
Residential mortgagbacked securities 1,83t 1,82 43 1,78( o} o} o}
Other mortgagédracked securities 5 5 1 4 o} o} o}
Fixed maturities 12,48: 12,65¢ 90C 5,52¢ 2,60: 3,31( 314
Shortterm investments 4 4 1 2 1 o} o}
Total fixed maturities and shetérm investment:  12,48:  12,65¢ $ 901 $ 553( $ 2,60¢ $ 3,31( $ 314
% of Total fixed maturities and shegrm investments 7% 44% 21% 26% 2%

(1) Costis amortized cost for fixed maturities and sttenn investments.
(2) All references to credit rating reflect Stands&&dd Poor 6s (or estimated equivalent).
BBB- or above.

At Decembel, 2017, the Company did not hady investments in securities issued by peripheral European Union (EU)
sovereign governments (Portugal, Italy, Ireland, Greece and Spain).

AtDecembeB3 1, 2017, approximately 89% o fterrhihvestnemsmnhezmincloddasdd i x e d
income type mutual funds, were publicly traded and approximately 98% were rated investment grad® (Bgiter) by
Standard® Poor 6s (or estimated equi v a-éndyield)o.mattrityand the expectegl average e d i t
durat on of t he Company d sterh investnkentafahicluinciudes fixexl inGomedtypes rhutual funds) at
DecembeB1, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

December 31, 2017 December 31, 201€

Average credit quality A A
Yearend yield to maturity 2.8 % 27 %
Expected average duration 4.7 years 4.C years

The average credit quality of fixed maturities and shenh investments at Decemi®t, 2017 remained unchanged
compared to Decemb@d, 2016.

The average yield to maturity on fixed maturities and stewrh investments increased modestly by 0.1% primarily due to
increases in U.S. and European 4figde interest rates for most of the year.

The expected average duration of fixed maturities and-gfon investments of 4.7 years at Decen®er2017 and 4.9 years
at DecembeBl, 2016 is in line with our expected duration of reinsurance liabilities of approximately 4.8 years. Duration is adjusted
through the utilization of interest rate futures atier instruments.
Maturity Distribution

The distribution of fixed maturities and shéetm investments at Decemt&t, 2017 by contractual maturity date was as
follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):
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Fair
December 31, 2017 Cost Value
One year or less $ 28t $ 28C
More than one year through five years 4,25 4,25¢
More than five years through ten years 4,10( 4,12¢
More than ten years 1,96: 2,11¢
Subtotal 10,59¢ 10,78(
Mortgage/assetbacked securities 1,88 1,87¢
Total $ 12,48 $ 12,65¢

Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because certain borrowers have the right to call or prepay certain
obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Corporate bonds included in Fixed maturities

Corporate bonds are comprised of obligations of U.S. and foreign corporations. The fair values of corporate bonds issued by
U.S. and foreign corporations by economic sector at Dece®ih@017 were as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

Percentageto Total

Fair Fair Value of
December 31, 207 u.s. Foreign Value Corporate Bonds
Sector
Consumer noncyclical $ 1,121 $ 21 $ 1,33¢ 22%
Finance 762 261 1,02: 17
Industrials 56€ 10C 66€ 11
Energy 42¢ 12¢ 55€ 9
Consumer cyclical 49¢ 19 517 8
Communications 401 33 434 7
Insurance 40z 26 42¢ 7
Utilities 237 10€ 348 6
Real estate investment trusts 282 13 29t 5
Technology 24¢€ o} 24¢ 4
Basic materials 10¢ 71 18C 3
Catastrophe bonds 2 66 68 1
Longevity and mortality bonds 25 o} 25 0
Government guaranteed corporate de o} 9 9 o}
Total $ 507¢ $ 1,05C $ 6,12¢ 10C%
% of Totl 83% 17% 10C%
At Decembei83 1 , 2017, other than the U.S., no country account e

DecembeRl, 2017, the ten largest issuers accounted for 18% of the corporate held by the Company (7% of total investments
and cash) and no single issuer accounted for more than 4% of total corporate bonds (2% of total investments and cash).

Within the finance sector, 100% of corporate bonds were rated investment gradé&weawergdrated Aor better at
DecembeBl, 2017.
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Assetbacked and Residential Mortgatpacked Securities included in Fixed maturities

Assetbacked securities and residential mortghgeked securities by U.S. and AOIS. originations and the related faalue
and credit ratings at Decemlit, 2017 were as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

Credit Rating @

_ Below
investment
grade /
December 31, 2017 GNMA @ GSEs® AAA AA Unrated Fair Value
Assetbacked securities
u.s. $ o $ o $ 1 $ 0o $ o $ 1
Non-U.S. o} o} 7 o} 43 50
Assetbacked securities $ o $ o $ 8 $ 0o $ 43 % 51
Residential mortgagbacked securities
u.s. $ 51¢ $ 1,26 $ 7 % 0o $ o $ 1,78
Non-U.S. o} $ o} 36 o} o} 36
Residenal mortgagebacked securities $ 51¢ $ 1,26 $ 43 % 0o $ o $ 1,82:
Commercial mortgagbacked securities
u.S. o} $ o} 1 4 o} 5
Commercial mortgagbacked securities $ o $ o $ 1 $ 4 % o $ 5
Total $ 51 $ 1,26¢ $ 52 % 4 % 43 $ 1,87¢
% of Total 27% 68% 3% o0 % 2% 10C%

(1) All references to credit rating reflect Standa&@d® o or 6s (or esti mated equivalent).

(2) GNMA represents the Government National Mortgage Association. The GNMA, or Ginnie Mae as it is commonly known, is
a whollyowned U.S. government corporation within the Department of Housing and Urban Development widotegsa
mortgage loans of qualifying firdtme home buyers and lemvcome borrowers.

(3) GSEs, or government sponsored enterprises, includes securities that carry the implicit backing of the U.S. government and
securities issued by U.S. government agencies.

Residential mortgagbacked securities include U.S. residential mortgaageked securities, which generally have a low risk
of default. The issuers of these securities are U.S. government agencies or GSEs, which set standards on the mortgages before
accepting them into the program. Although these U.S. government backed securities do not carry a formal rating, they are generall
considered to have a credit quality equivalent to or greater than AA+ corporate issues. They are considered prime mbttgages a
major risk is uncertainty of the timing of prepayments.

Shortterm Investments

Shortterm investments of $4 million consisted of U.S. and-boB. government obligations and U.S. corporate bonds. At
DecembeBl, 2017, 79% of sheterm investments were et AA or higher by Standa&®l Poor 6s (or esti mat ec
Equities

During 2017, the Company increased its investment in equities, as noted above. The increase in equities at December 31, 2(
compared to December 31, 2016 was primarily due to a 8&06n investment in two Exor managed public equity funds (see
Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 for further details).
Investments in Real Estate

Investments in real estate comprise certain direct investments valued at caitq$¢ates 2(f) and 19 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report for further details).
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Other Invested Assets

Other invested assets are comprised of investments that are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, cost meth
of accounting or fair value accounting. At Decem®gy 2017, other invested assets primarily include an investment in Alimacantar
of $538 million accounted for under the equity method, a portfolio of 4hémtly managed privately issued corporate loans carried at
fair value of $205 million, investments with a fair value of $444 million (mainly third party private equity funds) asdndtloan
receivables and notes securitizations of $112 million (mainly part of our Principal Finance portfolio). In additionyvetiedin
assets include certain derivatives. See Notes 5 and 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Itesrdj8oof tbi further
details.

Funds Heldd Directly Managed Account

Foll owing Paris Reds acquisition of substantially all
subsidiaries entered into various agreements, including Quota Share Retro Agreement@ffdSarices and Management
agreement @llectively, the 2006 Acquisition Agreements) to assume business written by Colisée Re from Jap0@6yto
SeptembeB0, 2007 as well as the-force business at Decemt&k, 2005. The agreements provided that the premium related
to the transferred biress was retained by Colisée Re and credited to a funds held addmuatsets underlying the funds
held directly managed account are maintained by Colisée Re in a segregated investment portfolio and managed by the
Company. Substantially all of the irstenents in the segregated investment portfolio underlying the fundsivelctly
managed account are fixed maturity investments carried at fair value. The fair value of the investment portfolio utigerlying
funds held directly managed account decreafetn $354 million at December 31, 2016 to $300 million at Decer@ber
2017 primarily related to a commutation of a portion of the Reserve Agreement with Colisée Re-tlieafuine underlying
loss reserves associated with this account and the iropte weakening of the U.S. dollar against most major currencies. See
also note 8(a) for discussion of the related reserve agreement.

The average credit quality, the yesard yield to maturity and the expected average duration of the fixed maturities
undelying the funds heltidirectly managed account at DecemBg&r 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Average credit quality AA AA
Yearend yield to maturity 14 % 1.1 %
Expected average duration 3.2 years 3.E years

The average credit quality remained unchanged while theeyehyield to maturity was higher by 0.3% for the fixed
maturities underlying the funds héltirectly managed account at DecemB&y 2017 compared to Deceml®dr, 2016as a
result of a general increase in kfske rates and the liquidation of lower yielding portfolios.

The expected average duration of fixed maturities remained relatively unchanged from D&&rgbés to
DecembeBl, 2017.

See NoHife and Life anl Health Reserves below and Notes 5 and 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statement$8n Item
of this report for further details on the funds lielilectly managed account and related guaranteed reserves.

The credit risk of Colisée Re in the event of its insolvency or its failure to honor the value of the funds held balances for
any other reason is discussed in Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Mad&eC&isiterparty Credit Risk in
Iltem 11 ofthis report.

Funds Held by Reinsured Companies (Cedants)

The Company writes certain business on a funds held basis. Under funds held contractual arrangements, étaicedamt r
net funds that would have otherwise been remitted to the Company and credits the net fund balance with investment income. The
Company does not legally own or directly control the investments underlying its funds held assets and only hasordwurse
cedant for the receivable balances and no claim to the underlying securities that support the balances. Decisionaisss@pdirch
sales of assets underlying the funds held balances are made by the cedant; in some circumstances, investraemegaidang
the minimum credit quality of the underlying assets may be agreed upon between the cedant and the Company as part of the
reinsurance agreement, or the Company may participate in an investment oversight committee regarding the inuastment of
funds, but investment decisions are not otherwise influenced by the Company.
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At DecembeB31, 2017 and 2016, the Company recorded $801 million and $685 million, respectively, of funds held assets,
excluding the funds heidlirectly managed accountstussed above. The majority of the funds held balance relate to contracts that
earned investment income based upon a predetermined interest rate, either fixed contractually at the inception ot thve contrac
based upon a recognized market index (e.g.ARB Under these contractual arrangements, there are no specific assets linked to
the funds held assets, and the Company is only exposed to the credit risk of the cedant.

Non-life and Life and Health Reserves

See Notes 2(b) and 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in ItarthisBreportfor further details for the
Companyds |l oss reserves, including discl osunngwmpadequired
claims and claim adjustment expenses of propeaualty insurance underwriters.

Non-life Reserves

Loss reserves represent estimates of amounts an insurer or reinsurer ultimately expects to pay in the future on claims
incurred at a given timéased on facts and circumstances known at the time that the loss reserves are established. It is
possible that the total future payments may exceed, or be less than, such estimates. The estimates are not precise in that,
among other things, they are basedpredictions of future developments and estimates of future trends in claim severity,
frequency and other variable factors such as inflation. During the loss settlement period, it often becomes necesgary to refi
and adjust the estimates of liability @ claim either upward or downward. Despite such adjustments, the ultimate future
liability may exceed or be less than the revised estimates.

As part of the reserving process, insurers and reinsurers review historical data and anticipate the imfact of var
factors such as legislative enactments and judicial decisions that may affect potential losses from casualty clairis, changes
social and political attitudes that may increase exposure to losses, mortality and morbidity trends and trends in general
economic conditions. This process assumes that past experience, adjusted for the effects of current developments, is an
appropriate basis for anticipating future events.

The Companyds gross reserves bjyife eegeneDedcembasdl?017 and t ot a l
2016 were as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

December 31, 2017 December 31, 201¢

P&C segment $ 6,94: $ 6,187
Specialty segment 2,76¢ 2,79¢
Gross norlife reserves 9,711 8,98t
Ceded nodife reserves (689) (267)
Net nonlife reserves $ 9,02: $ 8,71¢

Net nonlife reserves increased from DecemBér 2016 to Decembe&l1, 201 7primarily due to the occurrence of
major catastrophic events in 2017 and the impact of foreign exchange, partially offset by net favorable loss emergence on
prior accident years and loss payments. The changes in these reserves and the reconcilatpossfand net total non
life reserves for the years ended Decen®ier2017, 2016 and 2015 are presented and discussed further in Note 8(a) to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report.

The net favorable prior year loss development on prior accident years was $448 million for the year ended
DecembeB1, 2017, primarily resulting from favorable loss emergence across most lines of business within the P&C and
Specialty segments. See Note)&(athe Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 for further details related to the 2017
net favorable loss development by segment and for comparisons to 2016 and 2015.

See also Note 8(a) to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of thisaegdetails of the net incurred and
paid losses and loss expenses development by accident year, the total of incurred but not reported liabilities plus expected
development on reported claims, and the net liability as at Dec&dhp2617 for total No#ife and each of the P&C and
Specialty segments.
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The gross reserves reported by cedants (case reserves), those estimated by the Company (ACRs and IBNR) and the total
gross, ceded and net loss reserves recorded at Dec@ii2817 by reserving line foreh C o mp a nlife ®perathms n
were as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

Total gross Net nor+
IBNR lossreserves Cededloss life reserves
Reserving lines Casereserves ACRs reserves recorded reserves recorded
P&C $ 3,02t $ 15€¢ $ 3,761 $ 6,94: $ (495) $ 6,44
Specialty 1,15: 20 1,59¢ 2,76¢ (194 2,57¢
Total Norlife reserves $ 4,177 $ 17¢ $ 5357 $ 9,711 $ (68¢) $ 9,022
Thenetnod i fe | oss reserves represent the Companyds best

on the information available at Decemi3dr, 2017. Loss reserves rely upon estimates involving actuarial and statistical
projectionsataigven ti me that reflect the Companyds expectation:
of claims. Estimates of ultimate liabilities are contingent on many future events and the eventual outcome of these events
may be different from # assumptions underlying the reserve estimates. In the event that the business environment and
social trends diverge from historical trends, the Company may have to adjust its loss reserves to amounts falling

significantly outside its current estimate. Sheestimates are regularly reviewed and the ultimate liability may be in excess

of, or less than, the amounts provided, for which any adjustments will be reflected in the period in which the need for an
adjustment is determined.

The Company 0sareypeirt ¢stimateswithima reasonable range of actuarial liability estimates. These
ranges are developed using stochastic simulations and techniques and provide an indication as to the degree of variability of
the loss reserves. The Company interptteesranges produced by these techniques as confidence intervals around the point
estimates for each Ndife sub-segment. However, due to the inherent volatility in the business written by the Company,
there can be no assurance that the final settleméiné dbss reserves will fall within these ranges.

The point estimates related to net loss reserves recorded by the Company and the range of actuarial estimates at
DecembeBl, 2017 for P&C and Specialty segments were as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars

Recorded Point

Estimate High Low
P&C $ 6,447 $ 6,80: $ 5,30¢
Specialty $ 2,57t $ 2,86¢ $ 2,08¢

It is not appropriate to add together the ranges of each segment in an effort to determine a high and low range around
the Companyodés total carried |l oss reserves.

Of t he Comp anyd setld&9resbred related tolthe B&CT and Specialty business at DeB&mber
2017, net loss reserves for accident years 2005 and prior of $426 million are guaranteed by Colisée Re, pursuant to the
Reserve Agreement. The Company is not subject to asyésgrve variability associated with the guaranteed reserves. See
below for a discussion of the Reserve Agreement.

I ncluded in the business that is considered to have a
environmental claims. ®eNote 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report for further details.

Non-life Reserving Methodology

Because a significant amount of time can elapse between the assumption of risk, occurrence of a loss event, the
reporting of the event to an insurance company (the primary company or the cedant), the subsequent reporting to the
reinsurance company (themes ur er ) and the ultimate payment of the cl ai
nontlife reserves (loss reserves) are based largely upon estimates.

The Company categorizes loss reserves into three types of reserves: reported outstandisgries (case reserves),
additional case reserves (ACRs) and amounts for losses incurred but not yet reported to the Company (IBNR). The
Company updates its estimates for each of the aforementioned categories on a quarterly basis using infornaation recei
from its cedants.

Case reserves represent unpaid | osses reported by the

ACRs are established for particular circumstances where, on the basis of individual loss reports, the Company
estimates that the pamilar loss or collection of losses covered by a treaty may be greater than those advised by the cedant.
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IBNR reserves represent a provision for claims that have been incurred but not yet reported to the Company, as well as
future loss development on loss@ready reported, in excess of the case reserves and ACRs. Unlike case reserves and
ACRs, IBNR reserves are often calculated at an aggregated level and cannot usually be directly identified as reserves for a
particular loss or treaty.

The Company also gsates the future unallocated loss adjustment expenses (ULAE) associated with the loss reserves
and these form part of the Companyds | oss adjustment ex

The amount of time that elapses before a claim is reported to the cedant and themestysegorted to the reinsurer
is commonly referred to in the industry as the reporting tail. Lines of business for which claims are reported quickly are
commonly referred to as shagil lines; and lines of business for which a longer period of timesels before claims are
reported to the reinsurer are commonly referred to astiihtines. In general, for reinsurance, the time lags are longer than
for primary business due to the delay that occurs between the cedant becoming aware of a losdiagdhejr@formation
to its reinsurer(s). The delay varies by reinsurance market (country of cedant), type of treaty, whether losses drbyfirst pai
the cedant and the size of the loss. The delay could vary from a few weeks to a year or sometimésitaigares, the
Companyds objective is to estimate ultimate | osses and |
losses paid. Similarly, IBNR reserves are calculated by subtraction of case reserves and ACRs fromrastehless

The Company analyzes its ultimate losses and loss expenses after consideration of the loss experience of various
reserving cells. The Company assigns treaties to reserving cells and allocates losses from the treaty to the reSeging cell.
reseving cells are selected in order to ensure that the underlying treaties have homogeneous loss development
characteristics (e.g., reporting tail) but are large enough to make estimation of trends credible. The selection of reserving
cells is reviewed annilg and changes over time as the business of the Company evolves. For each reserving cell, the
Company tabulates losses in reserving triangles that show the total reported or paid claims at each financial year end by
underwriting year cohort. An underwrig year is the year during which the reinsurance treaty was entered into as opposed
to the year in which the loss occurred (accident year), or the calendar year for which financial results are reportéd. For ea
reserving cell , t hossré&ervepasereadiad afeesatravienaof tkegesults of deveral commonly
accepted actuarial projection methodologies. In selecting its best estimate, the Company considers the appropriateness of
each methodology to the individual circumstances of thervesy cell and underwriting year for which the projection is
made. The methodologies that the Company employs include, but may not be limited to, paid and reported Chain Ladder
methods, Expected Loss Ratio method, paid and reported BornkHeertteison (BF) methods, and paid and reported
Benktander methods. In addition, the Company uses other methodologies to estimate liabilities for specific types of claims.
For example, reserves established for the catastrophe line are primarily a function of treepreabsence of catastrophic
events during the year, and the complexity and uncertainty associated with estimating unpaid losses from these large
disclosed events. Internal and vendor catastrophe models are typically used in the estimation of lss&qpenses at
the early stages of catastrophe losses before loss information is reported to the reinsurer. In addition, reserves are also
established in consideration of rézed and attritional loss events that occur during a year. In the case obasimest
environmental claims, the Company has established reserves for future losses and allocated loss expenses based on the
results of periodic actuarial studies, which consider t

The reserve methodologiemployed by the Company are dependent on data that the Company collects. This data
consists primarily of | oss amounts and | oss payments re
reported by cedants or estimated by the Companyagtuarial methods used by the Company to project loss reserves that
it will pay in the future do not generally include methodologies that are dependent on claim counts reported, claim counts
settled or claim counts open as, due to the nature of the Cofhganyb usi ness, this informati on
cedants for every treaty.

For a description of the reserving methods commonly employed by the Company see Note 8 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Iltem 18 of this report. Each of thelgoaie have certain advantages and disadvantages which the
Company takes into consideration when determining which methods to use and method weights.

The main strengths of the Chain Ladder (CL) Development method are that it is reactive to loss emexgerces)p
and that it makes full use of historical experience on claim emergence (payments). For homogeneous low volatility lines,
under stable economic conditions, the method can often produce good estimates of ultimate liabilities and reserves.
However, he method has weaknesses when the underlying assumption of stable patterns is not true. This may be the
consequence of changes in the mix of business, changes in claim inflation trends, changes in claim reporting practices or the
presence of large claimamong other things. Furthermore, the method tends to produce volatile estimates of ultimate
liabilities in situations where there is volatility in reported (paid) patterns. In particular, when the expected percentage
reported (paid) is low, small deviatiotetween actual and expected claims can lead to very volatile estimates of ultimate
liabilities and reserves. Consequently, this method is often unsuitable for projections at early development stages of an
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underwriting year. Finally, the method fails teworporate any information regarding market conditions, pricing, etc., which
could improve the estimate of liabilities and reserves. It therefore tends not to perform very well in situations where there
are rapidly changing market conditions.

The Expectedloss Ratio method is insensitive to actual reported or paid losses therefore it is usually inappropriate at
later stages of development, but can often be useful at the early stages of development when very few losses have been
reported or paid, and the pcipal sources of information available to the Company consist of information obtained during
pricing and qualitative information supplied by the cedant.

The BornhuetteFerguson (BF) methods (Reported or Paid) tend to provide less volatile indicati@aslgistages of
development and reflect changes in the external environment, however, this method can be slow to react to emerging loss
development (payment). In particular, to the extent thaa theoriloss ratios prove to be inaccurate (and are evased),
the B-F methods will produce loss estimates that take longer to converge with the final settlement value of loss liabilities.

Benktander (BK) Methods (Reported or Paid), which can be viewed as a blend between the CL Development and the
B-F method, still exhibits the same advantages and disadvantages a$-theethod, but the mechanics of the calculation
imply that it is more reactive to loss emergence (payment) than-Ehen8thod.

The reserving methods used by the Company are dependent oerradrkey parameter assumptions. The principal
parameter assumptions underlying the methods used by the Company are:

A the loss development factors used to form an expectation of the evolution of reported and paid claims for several
years following theinggt i on of the underwriting year. These are
after due consideration of the underlying factors listed below. In some cases, where the Company lacks sufficient
volume to have statistical credibility, external bemehr ks ar e used to suppl ement t

A the tail factors used to reflect development of paid and reported losses after several years have elapsed since the
inception of the underwriting year;

A thea priori loss ratios used as inputs in thé-Bnetlods; and
A the selected loss ratios used as inputs in the Expected Loss Ratio method.

As an example of the sensitivity of the Companyds res
effect on the Compan wprieriloseratie selectans, lugher/lbwegldsedevelbpmenefactors and
higher/lower tail factors based on amounts recorded at Dec&hp2617 was as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

Reserving lines selected assumptions P&C Specialty

A Priori Loss Ratio +5% 227 101
Loss Development Factors (up to 10 years) 6 months longer 47¢% 28C
Tail Loss Development Factors higher by®5% 38¢ 167
A Priori Loss Ratio5% (243%) (112)
Loss Development Factors (up to 10 years) 6 months faster (227) (11¢)
Tail Loss Development Factors lower by % (34¢) (13§

(1) Tail factors are defined as aggregate development factors after 10 years from the inception of an underwriting year.

The Company believes that the illustrated sensitivities to the reserving parameter assumptions are indicative of the
potential variability inherent in the estimation process of those parameters. Some reserving lines show little semsitivity to
priori loss ratio, loss development factor or tail factor as the Company may use reserving methods such as the Expected
Loss Ratio method in several of its reserving cells within those lines. It is not appropriate to sum the total impact for a
specific factor or théotal impact for a specific reserving line as the lines of business are not perfectly correlated.

The validity of all parameter assumptions used in the reserving process is reaffirmed on a quarterly basis.
Reaffirmation of the parameter assumptions means that the actuaries determine that the parameter assumptions continue to
form a sound basis for pegjtion of future liabilities. Parameter assumptions used in projecting future liabilities are
themselves estimates based on historical information. As new information becomes available (e.g., additional losses
reported), the Comp daetherfasevised ¢stimate of the pardmetereassamptioas that reflects all
available information is consistent with the previous parameter assumptions employed. In general, to the extent that the
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revised estimate of the parameter assumptions are withise relnge of the original assumptions, the Company determines

that the parameter assumptions employed continue to form an appropriate basis for projections and continue to use the
original assumptions in its models. In this case, any differences coulttibatatl to the imprecise nature of the parameter
estimation process. However, to the extent that the deviations between the two sets of estimates are not within a close range
of the original assumptions, the Company reacts by adopting the revised asearapta basis for its reserve models.
Notwithstanding the above, even where the Company has experienced no material deviations from its original assumptions
during any quarter, the Company will generally revise the reserving parameter assumptionstdeagear to reflect all
accumulated available information.

In addition to examining the data, the selection of the parameter assumptions is dependent on several underlying

factors. The Companyds actuari es heextanteowhithlthese are liketydode | v i n
stable over the time frame during which losses are projected, and the extent to which these factors are consistent with the
Companyds dat a. I f these factors ar e thaestimatiomoftmegederving be s

parameter assumptions are mainly carried out using actu
the extent that the actuaries determine that they cannot continue to rely on the stability afctbesetlie statistical

estimates of parameter assumptions are modified to reflect the direction of the change. The main underlying factors upon
which the estimates of reserving parameters are predicated are:

At he cedant ds busi neisthe pastwith noimaterial charigés leithey in subna@issiah ofeascounts
or cash flows;

A any internal delays in processing accounts received by the cedant are not materially different from that experienced
historically, and hence the implicit reserving allowa made in loss reserves through the methods continues to be
appropriate;

A case reserve reporting practices, particularly the methodologies used to establish and report case reserves, are
unchanged from historical practices;

At he Company 0s actices, partticalarly thecldved andnextgnt of use of ACRs, are unchanged:;

A historical levels of claim inflation can be projected into the future and will have no material effect on either the
acceleration or deceleration of claim reporting and paymentpsitte

A the selection of reserving cells results in homogeneous and credible future expectations for all business in the cell
and any changes in underlying treaty terms are either reflected in cell selection or explicitly allowed in the
selection of trends;

A'in cases where benchmarks are used, they are derived from the experience of similar business; and

A the Company can form a credible initial expectation of the ultimate loss ratio of recent underwriting years through
a review of pricing information, supplemedtby qualitative information on market events.

The Companydés best estimate of total |l oss reserves 1is
liability estimate. The Company believes that there is potentially significant risk inagisignioss reserves for losgil
lines of business and for immature underwriting years that may not be adequately captured through traditional actuarial
projection methodologies as these methodologies usually rely heavily on projections of prior yisaintcethe future. In
selecting its best estimate of future liabilities, the Company considers both the results of actuarial point estimates of los
reserves as well as the potential variability of these estimates as captured by a reasonable raagal dibbdity
estimates. The selected best estimates of reserves are always within the reasonable range of estimates indicated by the
Companydés actuari es. I'n deter mining t hheposifopof overall resetse b e s |
within the actuarial reserve range, (hg result of bottom up analysis by underwriting year reflecting the impact of
parameter uncertainty in actuarial calculations, andsf@cific qualitative information that may have an effect on future
claimsbut which may not have been adequately reflected in actuarial estimates, such as potential for outstanding litigation,
claims practices of cedants, etc.

During 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Company reviewed its estimate for prior year losses fo€thad”8pecialty
segments and, in light of developing data, adjusted its ultimate loss ratios for prior accident years. The net prior year
favorable loss development for each segment for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 is prese8ted in Note
to the Consolidated Financial Statements in 11&of this report.

Actual |l osses paid and reported compared with the Con
reserving parameter assumptions in response to the emerging developmerntheéwesy ended December 31, 2017 were
as follows:
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A P&C and SpecialtyAggregate losses reported in 2017 for both P&C and Specialty segments were better than
Companyd6s expectations as | osses for most Thebdtterr wr i t i
than expected loss emergence within the P&C segment was mainly driven by the casualty business. The better than
expected loss emergence within the Specialty segment was predominantly driven by credit & surety, energy
onshore and agriculture exqaes. The Company reflected this experience by reducing the selected loss ratios for
these lines of business.

Reserve Agreement and Funds Hé@irectly Managed Account

The nonlife reserves at Decemb@t, 2017 and 2016 include reserves guaranteed bgéedRe (formerly known as
AXA RE, a subsidiary of AXA SA (AXA)), acquired in the Paris Re acquisition.

Foll owing Paris Reds acquisition of substantially all/l
its subsidiaries entered into tAB06 Acquisition Agreements to assume business written by Colisée Re from Jgnuary
2006 to Septemba0, 2007 as well as the-force business at Decemt&t, 2005.

Pursuant to the Reserve Agreement , treementseereckdedtePaasnd r
Re France, which is now PartnerRe Europe, but AXA and Colisée Re remain both the legal counterparties for all such
reinsurance contracts and the legal holders of the assets relating to such reserves. The Reserve Agregesahiaprovi
AXA and Colisée Re shall guarantee reserves in respect of Paris Re France and subsidiaries. The agreements also provide
that the premium related to the transferred business was retained by Colisée Re and credited to a funds held account. Paris
Re France would receive any surplus, and be responsible for any deficits remaining with respect to the Tutidsctield
managed account, after all liabilities have been discharged and payments pursuant to the Reserve Agreement have been
settled. In addibn, realized and unrealized investment gains and losses and net investment income related to the investment
portfolio underlying the funds héldirectly managed account inure to the benefit of Paris Re France. The assets underlying
the funds heltldirectly managed account are maintained by Colisée Re in a segregated investment portfolio and managed
by the Company and are discussed above.

On Octobell, 2010, PartnerRe Europe and Paris Re France effected a cross border merger whereby all the assets and
liabilities of Paris Re France were transferred to PartnerRe Europe, including the agreements between Paris Re France and
Colisée Re.

AtDecembeB3 1, 2017 and 2016, t he -lif€esmyves noudes $42@nillioh anchd4961 i t vy f
million, respedvely, of guaranteed reserves and the decrease during the year was primarily due to commutation of a portion
of the Reserve Agreement with Colisée Re, the-affhef the underlying loss reserves associated with these reserves and
the impact of the weakeamg of the U.S. dollar against most major currencies.

See Notes 5 and 8(a) to the Consolidated Financial Statements ib8ltefnthis report for further details of the funds
held directly managed account and related guaranteed reserves.

Life and Health Reserves

Life and Health reserves relate to the Companyds Life

A mortality business, covering death and disability risks (with various riders) primarily written in Continental
Europe, TCI primarily written ithe U.K. and Ireland, and GMDB business primarily written in Continental
Europe. Following the acquisition of Aurigen, the Company also writes mortality business originating in Canada;

A reinsurance of longevity, subdivided into standard andstandard arwities primarily written in the U.K.; and

A specialty accident and health business, including Health Maintenance Organizations (HMO) reinsurance, medical
reinsurance and provider and employer excess of loss programs primarily written in the U.S.

The Companyategorizes life reserves into three types of reserves: case reserves, IBNR and reserves for future policy
benefits. Case reserves represent unpaid | osses reporte
reserves represent a provisiom &aims that have been incurred but not yet reported to the Company, as well as future loss
development on losses already reported, in excess of the case reserves. Reserves for future policy benefits relate to future
events occurring on policies in foroger an extended period of time. Reserves for future policy benefits represent an
estimate of the amount which, together with estimated future premiums and investment income, will be sufficient to pay
claims and future benefits, expenses and costs-tarée policies, as such claims and expenses are incurred.
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Reserves for future policy benefits are calculated as the present value of future expected claims, benefits and costs to
be paid, reduced by the present value of future expected premiums. Sudiekadnié established based on methods and
underlying assumptions in accordance with U.S. GAAP and applicable actuarial standards. Principal assumptions used in
the establishment of reserves for future policy benefits have been determined based upotianfaepmated by ceding
companies, supplemented by the Companybs actuari al esti
investment income, with appropriate provision to reflect uncertainty. Case reserves, IBNR reserves and refsgaves for
policy benefits are generally calculated at the treaty level. The Company updates its estimates for each of the
aforementioned categories on a periodic basis using information received from its cedants.

The Company 0 sesggvesdas the Lderadd Headtht segment at Dece®ibe2017 and 2016 were as
follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Case reserves $ 342 281
IBNR reserves 1,04 79¢
Reservesdor futurepolicy benefits 1,107 90¢
Total grossLife and Health reserves 2,491 1,98¢
Ceded reserves 41 (31
NetLife and Health reserves 2,45( 1,95:¢

The increase in the Life and Health reserves in 2017 was primarily due to the Aurigen acquisition, increase in
expected claims for health business, an increase in policy benefit reserves related to new mortality and longevity business
written and the impa®f foreign exchange as value of the U.S. dollar strengthened against most currencies from
DecembeBl, 2016 to Decembé& 1 , 2017. The net incurred | osses for the
paid losses in any one given year duehtolbngterm nature of the liabilities and the growth in the book of business.

Life and Health Reserving Methodology

The Companyds reserving methodol ogies are as foll ows:

A Mortality: The reserves for the shagrm mortality business consist of case researa IBNR, calculated at the
treaty | evel based upon cedant information. The Comp
experience against expected experience and the use of the ELR method described above.

The reserves for the lortgrm traditional mortality and term critical illness (TCI) reinsurance are established based
upon management 6s best estimate of c¢claims and policy
Management 06 srelibsaugoh aceiaial indications of future claims and policy benefits. The provision for
adverse deviation contemplates reasonable deviations from the best estimate assumptions for the key risk elements
relevant to the product being evaluated, includirggtadity, disability, critical illness, expenses, and discount rates.

The Companyodés actuaries annually verify the current
and the actuarial indications for assumptions relating to future pgmdicgfits, including mortality, disability,

critical iliness, persistency and future investment income The reserves for the GMDB reinsurance business are
established similar to provisions for universal life contracts. Key actuarial assumptions for thésbase

mortality, lapses, interest rates, expected returns on cash and bonds and stock market performance. For the latter
parameter, a stochastic option pricing approach is used and the benefits used in calculating the liabilities are based
on the averag benefits payable over a range of scenarios. The assumptions of investment performance and

volatility are consistent with expected future experience of the respective underlying funds available for

policyholder investment options. Recorded reserves fob@V r ef | ect management 6s best
actuarial indications.

A Longevity: Rserves for the annuity portfolio of reinsurance contracts within the longevity book are established.
Some of these contracts subject the Company to risks arising froeytpmter mortality over a period that
extends beyond the periods in which premiums are collected. The Reserves for future policy benefits follow the
reserving methodology discussed above for {targn traditional mortality.

For standard annuities, the maisk is a higher than expected increase in future life span in the medium to long
term. Nonstandard annuities are annuities sold to people with aggravated health conditions and are usually
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medically underwritten on an individual basis and the main siskeé inadequate assessment of the future life span
of the insured.

A Accident and HealthThe unpaid loss and loss expense reserves for accident and health business are initially
calcul ated using the ELR met hod. SHagypuiiees actua teposted t he C
loss experience and theBmethod to calculate IBNR.

As an example of the sensitivity of the Companyds r e
assumptions by reserving line, the effect of differentmgsion selections based on the gross reserves recorded at
DecembeB1, 2017 was as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

Impact on total
net Life and Health

Reserving lines Factors Change reserves
Longevity

Standard and nestandard annuities  Mortality improvements per annum 1% $ 401
Mortality

Longterm and TCI Mortality 10% $ 47C

GMDB Stock market performance -10% $ 2

It is not appropriate to sum the total impact for a specific reserving line or the total impact for a specific factor because
the reinsurance portfolios are not perfectly correlated.

Refer toNote 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report for disclosures on life and health
reserves.

Reinsurance Recoverable on Paid and Unpaid Losses

The Company has exposure to credit risk related to reinsurance recoverable on paid and unpaid losses. See Note 9 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Ité&and Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marke®RXkunterparty
CreditRiskintem11 of this report for a discussion of the Companyc¢
|l osses and the Companyb6s process to evaluate the financi al

At DecembeB31, 2017 and 2016, the Company recorfi@g9 million and $332 million, respectively, of reinsurance
recoverable on paid and unpaid losses in its Consolidated Balance Sheets, of which $730 million and $298 million, yespectivel
represents reinsurance recoverable on totallif@and life and halth reserves. The increase in the reinsurance recoverable during
2017 was primarily due to the large catastrophic losses incurred.

AtDecembeB 1, 2017, the distribution of t helife@udififeandheditsresesg i n s u

categorized by t&ePoeiGsuraribsgSwasdasdf ol |l ows:
% of total reinsurance recoverableon

Rating Category paid and unpaid losses

AA- or better 7%
A-to A+ 30
Less than A 5
Unrated 63
Total 10C%

At Decembe31,2017 37 % of the Companyds r e-lifenasndlife and bealth rescives were dadh | e
from reinsurers with Aor better rating from Standa8l Poor 6s, compar edl, 2016. TheIehhairdng anidentse mb €
included in Unrated aboveeall collateralized.

Currency

The Companyds reporting currency is the U.S. dollar. Th
ownership of its IrishFrench and Canadian subsidiaries and branches, whose functional currencies are the Euro and the Canadiar
dollar, and to underwriting reinsurance exposures, collecting premiums and paying claims and other expenses in cuerencies oth
than the U.S. dollaand holding certain net assets in such currencies.
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At Decembeidl, 2017, the value of the U.S. dollar strengthened against most major currencies compared to Bécember
2016, which resulted in a decrease in the U.S. dollar value of the assets angdiatgtibminated in ned.S. dollar currencies.
See Operating Results above for a discussion of the impact of foreign exchange and net foreign exchange gains anaglosses duri
the years ended Decemlsdr, 2017, 2016 and 2015.

The currency translation adjustment account is a component of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss in

sharehol dersd equity. This account decreased by $15 millio
$12 million and alecrease of $46 million during the years ended DeceBhe2016 and 2015, respectivedyje to the translation
of the financial statements of the Companyés subsi didthe i es

Euro, intoU.S. dollars.

The reconciliation of the currency translation adjustment for the years ended De8&n@t7, 2016 and 2015 was as
follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

2017 2016 2015
Currency translation adjustment at beginning of year $ (4% (59 % 8)
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment included in accumulated other compreh

loss, inclusive of the impact of designated net investment hedge (15) 12 (46)
Currency translation adjustment at end of year $ GBS @4A23$ (B9

The Companyds gross and net exposur e3l,i2017 to foreignCuwrensyas welllas t e ¢
the associated foreign currency derivatives the Company has entered into to manage this exposure is presented in §uhntitative
Qualtative Disclosures about Market Risk in Item 11 of this report.

See Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MarkeBRtskeign Currency Risk in Item 11 for a discussion of the
Company6s risk related to c¢han¢e@)tothe ConsalidatedgFimancial Stateenents yn Itamo v €
18 of this report for a discussion of currencies to which the Company is exposed.

Effects of Inflation

The effects of inflation are considered implicitly in pricing and estimatinglifdneservesThe actual effects of inflation on
the results of operations of the Company cannot be accurately known until claims are ultimately settled.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The Companyds Consolidated Financi al Statements have be
financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts @ssets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expense
during the reporting period. The following are the Campan)
to its operathins and require the most difficult, subjective and complex judgment. If actual events differ significantly from the
underlying assumptions and estimates used by management, there could be material adjustments to prior estimates that could
potentiallyadves el y af fect the Companybds results of operations, fi
and estimates should be read in conjunction with Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report.

Non-life and Life and Health Reserves

T he Co mp alifieyaridd ife ldrwl Kealth reserves are significant accounting estimates. These estimates are continually
reviewed with any adjustments reflected in the periods in which they are determined, which may affectpha @oy 6 s r e s ul 1
future periods. See Liquidity and Capital ResoudicBeserves above and Notes 2(b) and 8 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 18 of this report for further details.

Premium Estimates and Recoverability of Deferred AcquisitiGasts

The Company provides proportional and fyoportional reinsurance coverage to cedants (insurance companies). In most
cases, cedants seek protection for business that they have not yet written at the time they enter into reinsuranceaagdesents
have to estimate the volume of premiums they will cede to the Company. Reporting delays are inherent in the reinsungnce indus
and vary in length by reinsurance market (country of cedant) and type of treaty. As delays can vary from a few weaksrto a ye
sometimes longer, the Company produces accounting estimates to report premiums and acquisition costs until it receives the
cedantsé6é actual premium reported dat a.

Under proportional treaties, which r e pnttendoetheayeadende@ % of t
DecembeB1, 2017, the Company shares proportionally in both the premiums and losses of the cedant and pays the cedant a
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commi ssion to cover the cedantés acqui siti onmnumswoitenadearbedder
and acquisition costs are not known at the inception of the treaty. As such, reported premiums written and earnedtard acquisi
costs on proportional treaties are generally based upon reports received from cedants and brdkersneippt ed by t he
own estimates of premiums written and acquisition costs for which ceding company reports have not been received. Premium anc
acquisition cost estimates are determined at the individual treaty level. The determination of préimataseequires a review of

the Companyds experience with cedants, familiarity with eec
business and managementds assessment of t hwarittenrapaedaedtodhe v ar i
Company. Premium and acquisition cost estimates are updated as new information is received from the cedants and differences
between such estimates and actual amounts are recorded in the period in which estimates are chaagemloath@unts are
determined.

Undernompr oporti onal treaties, which represented the remain
year ended Decemb8t, 2017, the Company is typically exposed to loss events in excess of a pngdstetollar amount or loss
ratio and receives a fixed or minimum premium, which is subject to upward adjustment depending on the premium volume written
by the cedant. In addition, many of the rmoportional treaties include reinstatement premium prowgsiReinstatement
premiums are recognized as written and earned at the time a loss event occurs, where coverage limits for the renfaiméng life o
contract are reinstated under quefined contract terms. The accrual of reinstatement premiums isbasedh@a hage ment 6 s
of losses and loss expenses associated with the loss event.

The magnitude and impact of changes in premium estimates differs for proportional gmomomional treaties. Although
proportional treaties may be subject to largemnges in premium estimates compared to-pmportional treaties, as the Company
generally receives cedant statements in arrears and must estimate all premiums for periods ranging from one montmto more tha
one year (depending on the frequency of cedateistents), thepfeax I mpact i s mitigated by cha
reported acquisition costs and losses. The impact of the change in estimate on premiums earned and net income vagemdependin
when the change becomes known during the risiogp@nd the underlying profitability of the treaty. Nproportional treaties
generally include a fixed minimum premium and an adjustment premium. While the fixed minimum premiums require no
estimation, adjustment premiums are estimated and could betsidbplanges in estimates.

The amounts recorded within net premiums earned that related to changes in prior year premium estimates reported by cede
for P&C and Specialty segments for the year ended Dece3ih@017 were as follows (in millions of U.&ollars:

Net premiums earned

P&C $ (20)

Specialty 17

Total $ 3)

These changes in prior year premium estimates impacting net premiums written and earned, and after the corresponding
adjustments to acquisition costs and | osses and | osa exper
income.

Therecoverability of deferred acquisition costs is dependent upon the future profitability of the related business anmdyjthe testi
of recoverability to assess valuation is performed periodically together with a reserve adequacy test based on the filesttdes
assumptions by line of business.

See Notes 2(c), 2(d), 9(b) and 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report and Operaiing Results
Results by Segment in Item 5 of this report for accounting policies or further detaildinggaremiums and recoverability of
deferred acquisition costs.

Recoverability of Deferred Tax Assets

Under U.S. GAAP, a deferred tax asset or liability is to be recognized for the estimated future tax effects attributable to
temporary differences and cgfiorwards. U.S. GAAP also establishes procedures to assess whether a valuation allowance should b
established for deferred tax assets. All available evidence, both positive and negative, is considered to determimmsédtetrer,
the weight of that edience, a valuation allowance is needed for some portion or all of a deferred tax asset. Management must use
judgment in considering the relative impact of positive and negative evidence.

The Company has projected future taxable income in the taxigiigts in which the deferred tax assets arise based on
management 6s projections of premium and investment iamnco me,
these projections and an analysis of the ability to utilize loss aeijfotax credits carryforwards at the taxable entity level,
management evaluates the need for a valuation allowance.
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The Company has estimated the future tax effects attributed to temporary differences and has a deferred tax asset at
DecembeBl, 2017 of $5 million, after a valuation allowance of $186 million. The most significant component of the deferred tax
asset (after valuation allowance) relates to loss reserve discounting for tax purposes.

In accordance with U.S. GAAP, the Company has assumed that the future reversal of deferred tax liabilities will result in an
increase in taxes payable in future years. Underlying this assumption is an expectation that the Company will coninbgto be
to taxation in the various tax jurisdictions and that the Company will continue to generate taxable revenues in excesipos.ded

See Notes 2(I) and 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements ih8tehthis report for further details.

Valuation of Investments Measured Using Significant Unobservable Inputs

As more fully described in Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements ih8tehthis report, the Company measures
the fair value of its financial instruments according to a fair valeeafchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value by maximizing the use of observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs by reghiging that
most observable inputs be used when available. Unobsewabi nput s are inputs that reflect
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best information available in the circuinstah8es.
financial instruments have the least use of obd&devimarket inputs used to determine fair value. As at Dece®ib&017 the
Company classified $1,400 million of investments and funds Helectly managed as Level 3 as a result of significant
unobservable inputs used to determine fair value. See Notth8 Consolidated Financial Statements in lighof this report for a
breakdown of these investments by fair value level as well as more detail on the valuation techniques, methods andsabatmption
were used by the Company to estimate the fair vaiflits fixed maturities, shottierm investments, equities, other invested assets
(including derivatives) and the funds hiedirectly managed account. See Notes 2(n) atwdtbe Consolidated Financial Statements
in Item 18 of this report for more discuessn of t he Companyédés use of derivative fin

See also Quantitative and Qualitative disclosures About Market Risk in Item 11 of this report for a further discussion of
interest rate and credit spread risk and a sensitivity analysis ofsintate and credit spread variances on the valuation of the
Companyébés investments and funds withheld directly managed.

Valuation of Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net gssetsiadusiness combinations
entered into prior to 2017 (PartnerRe SA, Winterthur Re, Paris Re and Presidio). The Company assesses the approjigateness of
valuation of goodwill on at least an annual basis or more frequently if events or changesnszinces indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. If, as a result of the assessment, the Company determines that the value of its gpadwil| is im
goodwill will be written down in the period in which the determination is made.aking an assessment of the value of its
goodwill, the Company uses both market based anehmanet based valuations. The fair value of the reporting units is determined
based on the prie-earnings multiples, book value multiples, and present valustiofi@ed cash flows methods. Significant
changes in the data underlying these assumptions coulhd r e:c
addition, if the current economi c e noeiweretndateriorate Agnifcantyrthist h e  (
could lead to an impairment of goodwill, the w¥@# of which would be recorded against net income in the period such
deterioration occurred.

Based upon the Companyo6s assescsmeany 6 hgeaecd wialsl nas d artp ad fi
DecembeBl, 2017.

Intangible assets represent the fair value adjustments related to unpaid losses and loss expenses and the fair wvedles of rene
rights, customer relationships and U.S. licenses arising frorctngsitions referred to above in addition to life value of business
acquired (life VOBA) and insurance licenses acquired related to the Aurigen acquisition. Bietuitetangible assets are
amortized over their useful lives while indefinlteed intangible assets are not subject to amortization. The carrying values of
intangible assets are reviewed for indicators of impairment on at least an annual basis, or more frequently if evegés @n chan
circumstances indicate that impairment may existaimmpent is recognized if the carrying values of the intangible assets are not
recoverable from their undiscounted cash flows and are measured as the difference between the carrying value andehe fair val
Based upon the Companyrmmirmen of gssnEamgible dssets of B160 naillionva BecendiheP017.

See Notes 2(j), 2(lkdnd 7to the Consolidated Financial Statements in [1&of this report for further details.

New Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2(rjo the Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 18 of this report.

C. Research and Development, Patents and Licenses, etc.
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Not applicable.

D. Trend Information

For a discussion of known trends, uncertainties and other events that are reasonably likely to have a material impact on the
Company, see Operating Results in Item 5, Liquidity and Capital Resources in Item 5 and Tabular Disclosure of Contractual
Obligations in Item 5 of this report.

E. Off-balance sheet arrangements

As more fully described in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this repompgheyCas fully
and unconditionally guaranteed the obligations related to debt issued to third parties by its finance subsidiaries: as follows

A senior notes with an aggregate principal amount of 075
A senior mtes with an aggregate principal of $500 million issued by PartnerRe Finance B LLC
A Junior Subordinated Capital Efficient Notes (CENts) with a remaining aggregate principal amount of $63 million issued by

PartnerRe Finance Il Inc.

F. Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations

In the normal course of its business, the Company is a party to a variety of contractual obligations as summarized below.
These contractual obligatis are considered by the Company when assessing its liquidity requirements and the Company is
confident in its ability to meet all of its obligations. Contractual obligations at Decedtih8017 were as follows (in millions):

Total <1year 1-3 years 3-5years > 5 years
Contractual obligations:
Operating leases $ 94¢ $ 172 $ 205 $ 187 % 38.¢
Other operating agreements $ 22€ $ 13¢ $ 8.C $ 0.t $ 0
Other invested assets $ 315 $ 109.C $ 155.( $ 51.C $ )
Non-life reserves$? $ 9,710 $ 3,013 $ 2,812.0 $ 1,325.1 $ 2,559.¢
Life and health reservéd $ 33246 % 7475 $ 496¢ $ 271( $ 1,809.:
Deposit liabilities $ 10¢ $ 54 $ 2C $ 0c $ 2.€
Senior notes and Preferred Shares:
2010 senior notds principal® $ 500.C $ 0 $ 500.(C $ 0o $ o}
2010 senior notésinterest $ 68.6 $ 2758 $ 41: $ o $ 9
2016 senior notés principal® a 750.C U o o d « 750.(
2016 senior notésinterest u 47.C U 94 0 18.€ 0 18¢ 09.4 pe
Capital efficient note® principal © $ 63.4 $ 0 $ o $ 0o $ 63.2
Capital efficient note® interest n/a o o am oM
Series F norcumulative preferred sha@sprincipal)? $ 66,985." $ 0 $ 0 $ 0o $ 66,985.
Series F noitumulative preferred shai@slividends nfa  3,935. 7,870.¢ 7,870.&6  $3.9 per annun
Series G cumulative preferred shargwincipal® $160,381.0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 160< $ o}
Series G cumulative preferred shdredividends n/a $10,424.¢ $20,849.0 $ 3.E  $10.4 per annur
Series H cumulative preferred shaygsrincipal® $293,845.1 $ o $ 8 $ 293¢ % o}
Series H cumulative preferred sharedividends n/a $21,303.( $42,607.4 $ 7.1 $21.3 per annur
Series | norcumulative preferred shagprincipal”? $ 183,014.. $ o $ o $ 0o $ 183,014..
Series | norcumulative preferred sha@slividends nfa $10,752.: $21,504.; $21,504.. $10.8 per annur

n/a: Not applicable
(1) The amounts above for other invested assets represent t
related to its strategic investments.
2) The Compdnyd&s rresrerves represent management6s best esti:
information available at Decemb@&d, 2017, and are not fixed amounts payable pursuant to contractual commitments. The
timngandanount s of actual |l oss payments related to these r¢
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estimate of the expected timing and amounts of loss payments based on many factors, including large individual losses as
well as general market cditions.

(3) Life and health reserves at DecemBér 2017 of $2,490 million are computed on a discounted basis, whereas the expected
payments by period in the table above are the estimated payments at a future time and do not reflect a discount of the
amountpayable.

(4) PartnerRe Finance B LLC, the issuer of the 2010 senior notes, does not meet consolidation requirements under U.S. GAAF
Accordingly, the Company shows the debt to PartnerRe Finance B LLC of $500 million in its Consolidated Balance Sheet a
Decembe31, 2017 and 2016. The 2010 senior notes of an aggregate principal outstanding of $500 million mature on
Junel, 2020. Interest on the senior notes is payable-semially and cannot be deferred.

(5) PartnerRe Ireland Finance DAC, the issuer of the 20Iosanotes, meets the consolidation requirements under U.S.
GAAP. Accordingly, the Company shows the debt to third
DecembeBl, 2017. The 1.250% senior notes with aggregate principal outstanding 0 750 mi | I i on mat ur
2026. Interest on the senior notes is payable annually commencing on September 15, 2017.

(6) PartnerRe Finance Il Inc., the issuer of the CENts, does not meet consolidation requirements under U.S. GAAP. Accordingl
the Company shows the debt to PartnerRe Finance Il Inc. of $71 million in its Consolidated Balance Sheet at C3gember
2017. The aggregate principal amount of the CENts of $63 million, representing PartnerRe Finance Il Inc.'s debt to third
parties, is inclaed in the table above. The CENts will mature on Decethli2066 and may be redeemed at the option of
the issuer, in whole or in part, since DecembgP016 upon occurrence of specific rating agency or tax events. Interest on
the CENIts is payable quartgruntil maturity at an annual rate of@ionth LIBOR plus a margin equal to 2.325%. As a
result of the variable interest rate, the table above does not show the interest payable.

(7) The Companyds 5.875% Ser i e-sumHative,meretdal agpdhaé reo mandatory setlemptiens ar
requirement, but may be redeemed at the Companyo6ls opti ¢
2018 and May 1, 2021, respectively.

B8 The Companyds 6.50% Ser i es rEs aenudulativeérpsetusd and haeeso niindatorg f er r
redemption requirement, but may be redeemed at the Comrg
May 1, 2021. Should the current interest rate environment persist, it is reasoo@&sigect that the Company would redeem
these preferred shares in 2021.

The Contractual Obligations and Commitments table above does not include an estimate of the period of cash settlement of
tax liabilities with the respective taxing authoritiesegithe Company cannot make a reasonably reliable estimate of the timing of
cash settlements.

See Notes 10 and 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Iltem 18 of this report for further details relatedi to debt an
preferred shares.

Due to the limitechat ur e of the information presented above, it sh
or capital needs. See Liquidity section above.

The Company has committed to a 10 year structured letter of credit facility issued by a highualdglitnternational bank,
which has a final maturity of Decemb2®, 2020. At Decembet 1 , 2017, the Companybs particip
million. At Decembei31, 2017, the letter of credit facility has not been drawn down and can onlyire dlvavn in the event of
certain specific scenarios, which the Company considers remote. Unless canceled by the bank, the credit facility automaticall
extends for one year, each year until maturity.

G. Safe Harbor

PartnerRe Ltd. has made statements in this annual report on Fdfrthd0are forwardooking statements. In some cases,
you can identify these statements by forwaro o ki ng words such as fAmay, 0 fimight, 0 A
fanti 0oi fhekseves, 0 flesti mates, 0 fipredicts, o fipotential, 0
terminology. These forwarlboking statements, which are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about us, may include
projections dour future financial performance, our anticipated growth strategies and anticipated trends in our business. These
statements are only predictions based on our current expectations and projections about future events. There aredroggortant fa
that coutl cause our actual results, level of activity, performance or achievements to differ materially from the results, level of
activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the felwakidg statements, including those factors described in
Risk Factors in Item 3 of this report.

Although we believe the expectations reflected in the ford@oking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future
results, level of activity, performance or achievements. Moreover, neither we nor any atbergssumes responsibility for the
accuracy and completeness of any of these forlaanking statements. We are under no duty to update any of these forward
looking statements after the date of this annual report on Foft@@onform our prior statemexto actual results or revised
expectations.
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H. Non-GAAP Financial Measures
The Company has not presented or discussed arBAAP financial measures in this report asaaldition to or substitute

for measures of financial performance prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the ésnited Stat
(U.S. GAAP).
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ITEM 6. DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

A. Directors and Senior Management

The following are the directors and executive officers of the Company as of W&r2018.

Name Position with the Company Date Appointed
John Elkann Director, Chairman of the Board March 18, 2016
Brian Dowd Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee March 18, 2016
Patrick A. Thiele Director, Member of the Audit Committee March 18, 2016
Enrico Vellano Director March 28, 2016
Bilge Ogut Director July 28, 2016
Nikhil Srinivasan Director August 5, 2016
Director, President and CEO, PartnerRe Ltd. and C
Emmanuel Clarke Specialty March 24, 2016
Mario Bonaccorso Executive Vice President and CFO, PartnerRe Ltd. April 4, 2016
Charles Goldie CEO Property & Casualty July 1, 2016
Scott Altstadt Chief Underwriting Officer July 1, 2016
TheodoreC. Walker g/loelrg;)er of Executive Committee (retiring March 31 July 1, 2016
Marvin Pestcoe Executive Vice President (retiring March 31, 2018) July 1, 2016
Marc Archambault CEO Life and Health April 1, 2017
Dorothée Burkel Chief Corporate and People Operations Officer October 2, 2017
Turab Hussain Chief Risk and Actuarial Officer December 2, 2017

Biographical information

A John Elkann, Director, Chairman of the Board

John Elkann is also Chairman and CEO of EXOR and Chairman of Fiat Chrysler Automobiles N.V. Mr. Elkann obtained a
scientific baccalaureate from the Lycée Victor Duruy in Paris, and graduated in Engineering from Politecnico, the
Engineering University of Tiin. While at university, he gained work experience in manufacturing, sales and marketing at
various companies within the Fiat Group in the U.K., Poland and France. He started his professional career in 2001 at
General Electric as a member of the Corpofatdit Staff, with assignments in Asia, the U.S. and Europe. Mr. Elkann is
Chairman of Giovanni Agnelli e C. Sapaz. and Italiana Editrice. He is a board member of The Economist Group, News
Corporation and Ferrari S.p.A. Mr. Elkann is a member of Museuviooern Art as well as Vice Chairman of the Italian
Aspen Institute and the Giovanni Agnelli Foundation.

A Brian Dowd, Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee (Independent)

Previously, Mr. Dowd was a member of the Office of the Chairman of ACE Groupjrigous underwritingrelated matters,
including oversight of the ACE Group6s product boards, t
outward reinsurance placements andoffroperations and special strategic projects. Mr. Dalsd held relevant positions

at ACE Group from 1997 wuntil hi s JiaNorhdmenidabusiness segsentirhn2806.r ma n
He also held the role of Vice Chairman of ACE Limited from 2009 until his retirement in 2015. Prior tdtHagwd held
underwriting positions of increasing responsibility at Arkwright Mutual Insurance Company over aysavereriod. He

holds a Bachelor of Science (B.S.) in Finance from Northern lllinois University, as well as the Chartered Property Casualt
Underwriter professional designation.

A Patrick A. Thiele, Director, Member of the Audit Committee (Independent)

Mr. Thiele served as CEO of PartnerRe from 2000 until his retirement in 2010. In February 2014, Mr. Thiele joined the board
of One Beacon Insance Group, and in February 2015, he joined the boards of the investment companies in the Mairs and
Power family of mutual funds. Mr. Thiele previously held executive roles at CGU plc (now Aviva plc) and at The St. Paul
Companies, where he spent the fi8tyears of his insurance career, culminating in his appointment as its CEO of

Worldwide Insurance Operations. Mr. Thiele began his career in 1975, working as a securities analyst with the National Bank
of Detroit. He holds both a B.S. in Finance and afdiain Business Administration from the University of Wisconsin,

Madison, as well as the Chartered Financial Analyst designation.

A Enrico Vellano, Director
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Mr. Vellano is also the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of EXOR. In 1992, Mr. Vellano started his professional career at Arthur
Andersen LLP. In 1995, he joined SAIl Assicurazioni where he specialized in the management of equity and bond portfolios.
In 1997,he began working at Istituto Finanziario Italiano Laniero (IFIL), the investment company controlled by the Agnelli
Family. In 2006 he was named CFO of IFIL, which was merged with Instituto Finanziario Italiano in 2009 to create EXOR.
He is also a board mdyar of Juventus Football Club, Almacantar S.A. and Emittenti Titoli. Mr. Vellano holds a Bachelor of
Arts in Economics at the University of Torino. Mr. Vellano resigned as Director of the Company effective March 8, 2018.

A Bilge Ogut, Director (Independent)

Ms. Ogut is Head of Private Equity in Europe at Partners Group, the global private markets investment manager firm, and is
a member of Partners Groupds Private Equity Directs I nve
Committee. For to joining Partners Group she was Deputy Head of Private Equity at Standard Bank International from 2010
to 2011 and was with Warburg Pincus from 1998 to 2009.

A Nikhil Srinivasan, Director

Mr. Srinivasan is the former Group Chief Investment Officer and a member of the Group Management Committee of
Generali and Chairman of Generali Real Estate. Prior to joining Generali, he was at Allianz SE for ten years based in
Singapore and Munich, wheree was Group Chief I nvestment Officer and a
Committee responsible for the firmdéds investment strategy

A Emmanuel Clarke, Director, President and CEO, PartnerRe Ltd. and CEO Specialty

Mr. Clarke is responsiblefo | eadi ng and managing the Companyds operatic
Executive Committee. Mr. Clarke has 20 years of professional experience in the reinsurance industry. He joined PartnerRe in
1997 and was appointed as Head of Cr&diturety, PartnerRe Global in 2002 and Head of P&C, PartnerRe Global in 2006.

In 2008, Mr.Clarke was appointed as Head of Specialty Lines, PartnerRe Global and Deputy CEO of PartnerRe Global.
Effective September 1, 2010, M2larke was appointed as CEO of iPrarRe Global. On September 8, 2015, Mr. Clarke was
appointed President of PartnerRe and on 24 March, 2016, Mr. Clarke was appointed CEO of PartnerRe. Mr. Clarke has a
MBA from the University Paris, 1% Dauphine, specializing in Finance and Controlling arMBA in International Business

from Baruch College of CUNY.

A Mario Bonaccorso, Executive Vice President and CFO, PartnerRe Ltd.

Mr. Bonaccorso is a member of Partner Reds Group Executiv
operationsPrior to joining PartnerRe, Mr. Bonaccorso served as Managing Director of EXOR for nine years where he was
responsible for investments and the management of EXORO®s

worked as a Research and Devehgmt Telecom Engineer at Qualcomm Inc., as an engagement manager at McKinsey &
Co. and as Chief Investment Officer of Jupiter Finance. Mr. Bonaccorso has a Master of Science cum laude in
Telecommunications Engineering at Politecnico di Torino UniversityaalBA with honors from INSEAD. Mr.

Bonaccorso has served on behalf of EXOR on the board of directors of Cushman & Wakefield, Banijay Holding, Banca
Leonardo and EXOR SA.

A Charles Goldie, CEO Property & Casualty

Charl es Gol die i s aoumtxendie CononftteeRra iistrespensiBlefdr the executive management of
Partner Rebs Property and Caswualty worl dwide business seg
actuary and as a reinsurance underwriting manager. He jointdifRe in 2002 as head of the U.S. Specialty Lines portfolio

and in 2009 was named Head of Risk Management and Reserving for PartnerRe Global. Prior to joining PartnerRe, he
worked for Gerling Global Reinsurance Corp of America as Head of Casualty Urtdenarid for Milliman as a consulting

actuary. Mr. Goldie has a BSc in Economics from the State University of New York at Binghamton and is a fellow of the
Casualty Actuarial Society.

A Scott Altstadt, Chief Underwriting Officer

Scott Altstadt isamembefo Part ner Reds Group Executive Committee and i
function. Mr. Altstadt has over 27 years of professional experience in the insurance and reinsurance industries. He joined
PartnerRe in 2001, as Senior Pricing Acjualr P&C and was appointed as Chief Pricing Actuary for Specialty Lines in

2002, becoming Deputy Head of P&C in 2008. He was appointed to the position of Chief Underwriting Officer PartnerRe
Global in 2013. Prior to joining PartnerRe, Mr. Altstadt workedhe U.S. and Europe with Zurich Financial Services and

CNARe. Mr. Altstadt has a B.S. in Mathematics and Statistics from Purdue University.
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A TheodoreC. Walker, Member of Executive Committee (retiring March 31, 2018)

Mr. Walker has over 25 years' experience in the reinsurance and insurance industries and has been with the Company since
2002. He has held the positions of CEO P&C Worldwide, President and CEO of North America, with executive responsibility
for North Amerta, and Executive Vice President and Chief Underwriting Officer for PartnerRe U.S. with responsibility for

al l underwriting activities in the U.S. business units.
catastrophe business, in ttode of Head of Catastrophe. Prior to joining PartnerRe, Mr. Walker was Senior Vice President at
American Re, where he was responsible for the companyds
at Bacardi International as Risk Mamag, and t hen as Vice President of Bacard
his career as an insurance and reinsurance broker for Sedgwick in London and Boston. Mr. Walker holds a B.S. from
Georgetown Universityds iScamtolly oferwvesiagm Ske vBaa&r d Hef cQ
Risk Management, as a Board Member of Bacardi Limited and as a Board Member of Crane & Co., an international paper
and currency manufacturer. Mr. Walker is a past Chairman of the Reins@ssu®ation of America and is a current

member of their board of directors.

A Marvin Pestcoe, Executive Vice President (retiring March 31, 2018)

Marvin Pestcoe is a member of Partner Reds Group ropextecut i v
and casualty insurance, reinsurance and investments. He
Operations, and in 2008 was appointed Deputy Head of Capital Markets Group and Head of Capital Assets. In 2010 he
assumed rgmnsibility for all Investment Operations and executive responsibility for the worldwide Life Operations.

Following the acquisition of Presidio in 2012 these responsibilities were expanded to include health insurance and
reinsurance. Prior to joining PaeirRe, Mr. Pestcoe was Chief Actuary of Swiss Re New Markets. Mr. Pestcoe is a fellow of

the Casualty Actuarial Society and a member of the American Academy of Actuaries.

A Marc Archambault, CEO Life and Health

Mar c Archambaul t i s aupBExemtiveCGommitiee ddis respomgibiR &6its woBdwiale Life and

Health business segment. Mr. Archambault has more than 26 years of experience in Life reinsurance, most recently as CEO
of SCOR Global LifeAsicPaci fi ¢, wher e he algedthstrdtegy ircttiosepmarkeys,tand as a&ngeimlzen

of the senior management team for Global Life. Prior to that, Mr. Archambault held a number of senior management
positions at SCOR where he implemented growth strategies and product developmenemd@tigs multiple international
markets in Europe, North America, Asia and Africa. Mr. Archambault holds a Bachelor of Actuarial Science from Laval
University in Quebec, Canada and is an Associate with the Canadian Institute of Actuaries.

A Dorothée Burkel Chief Corporate and People Operations Officer

Dor ot h®e Bur kel is a member of the Companyds Executive C
developing and retaining the best talatigning culture and strateggnd ensuringovernance and operational

effectiveness.Ms. Burkel specializes in Human Resources & Communications and has experience across a number of
international companiesrior to joining PartnerRe, Ms. Burkel was formerly the Human Resources Director for Google
Southern Europe from 20082012. In 2012, this role was extended to include the Middle East and Africa and in 2015, to the
entire EMEA region where she supported Googlebds Business
2001 to 2005 ate Human Resources Director and was promoted to Vice President for Human Resources and Corporate
Communications for AOL France in 2005. Before leaving in 2008, she also took on the responsibility for Branding and
Communications for AOL Europe. Ms. Burkedhh ds a Master ds degree in French Mod:
honors in Political Sciences from the I nstitut dOoEtudes

A Turab Hussain Chief Risk and Actuarial Officer

Mr . Hussain is a member of andieresgomsibfe fonthedisk m&agemeunttcapitat Co mmi
modeling and reserving functiond.r . Hussain has more than 20 yearsd experi
industries. Prior to joining PartnerRe, Mr. Hussain held several senior actuarial apdariithg roles with responsibility for
reserving, risk assessment, capital allocation and analysis at the Hartford as well as Arch Insurance Group and American
Reinsurance. Mr. Hussain is an Associate of the Casualty Actuarial Society (ACAS), a Metheehmkrican Academy of
Actuaries (MAAA) and a Chartered Enterprise Risk Analyst CERAe ear ned hi s bachel or 6s de
statistics from Rutgers University.

The Directors referred to above as "Independent" are considered independeatdamee with the definition of the
applicable NYSE and SEC Rules.
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B. Compensation

Director Compensation

During 2017 the directors received approximately $1.2 million in cash as compensation for their services as directors. Mr.
Clarke did not receive any compensation for his services as a director in 2017. All directors are reimbursed for titheel and o
related expeses personally incurred while attending Board or committee meetings.

Executive Compensation

Executive compensation is comprised of salary, annual i
officers earned $20.7 million in competisa. Longterm incentive (LTI compensation) is excluded from this total and is described
in more detail below.

Longterm incentive (LTI) Program

The 2017LTI Program consisted of awards either in a form of cash or class B shares (defined below) witly@athcte
vest issued to certain executives.

During 2017, an executive officer had target LTI values in local currencies and were awarded aneagfidgatmillion in
LTI cash compensation. Upon vesting, target awards wil/l b €
threeyear compound Return on Capital (ROC) metric.

In May 2017, the Company designated a new class of commoesdiizlass B shares) that may be granted to or purchased by
certain executives of the Company at the discretion of the Company. The LTI Committee of the Board approved the related
Certificate of Designation which stipulated that the granted shares aretedsirom sale for three years from date of grant and
grants can be made by the Company twice a year as of March 1 or September 1. In addition, the Class B shares can be redeeme
subject to certain restrictions, at the option of the employee with tesp€tass B purchased shares, and after the-ffeae
restriction period for granted shares. However, per the notice of grant provided to the employee, once the restrictias period
expired, the employee can only sell or transfer the restricted dberieso the Company provided the employee, continues to hold
an agreed minimum of four times (4X) their gross LTI target value, unless otherwise agreed in writing. During 2017, certain
Partner Rebs executive officer aClaseBshareawar ded an aggregate {

See also Item 6.E below for details of share ownership related to the Class B shares and Item 10.D regarding restrictions on
share transfers.

C. Board Practices

The Board currently consists of seven directors (see Item 6.A above for details). The current Board have been elegted to sen
until the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or until their respective successors are appointed. As proviBgd-in ou
Laws, the number of Directors shall be such number not less than three as the Company by Resolution may, from time to time,
determine (see also Item 10.B for the details of the Company-ais.

There are no service contracts between the Companyaany of the Companyds directors
termination of their employment or service.

Audit Committee

The Board has established an Audit Committee comprised of Messers. Thiele and Dowd who are independent in accordance
with the definiton of the applicable NYSE and SEC Rules. Mr. Thiele is designated as the Audit Committee financial expert as
noted in Item 16A of this report.

Pursuant to its charter, the Audit Committeebds primary I
Atheinegrity of PartnerReds financial statements;
APartner Re6s compliance with | egal and regulatory requi

A the Company's system of internal controls;
A the qualifications and independence of the external auditors; and

A the performance of the Company's internal and external audit functions.

The Audit Committee regularly meets with management, the Chief Audit Officer and the Company's independent registered
public accounting firm to review matters relating to the qualitiijmancial reporting and internal accounting controls, including the
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nature, extent and results of their audits. I n addrisk i on, t
assessment and risk management processes.

D. Employees

The Company had 978 employees at DecerBlheR017. The following table show the breakdown of the number of
employees by geographic location as of DecerBie2017, 2016rad 2015:

Geographic location 2017 2016 2015

Asia, Australia and New Zealand 46 46 4C
Europe 537 53¢ 56¢
Latin America, Caribbean and Africa 7 7 5
North America 38¢ 36E 422
Total 97¢ 957 1,03t

The increase in the number of employees in 2017 compared to 2016 was primarily driven by the inclusion of Aurigen
employees in 2017. The decrease in 2016 compared to 2015 was due to the efficiency actions undertaken following the closing o
the acquisitiorby EXOR N.V.

E. Share ownership

As more fully described in B. Compensation above, during 2017, the Company designated, granted, and issued Class B
common shares to certain executives of the Company.

The Company's Class A common shares, which are classified as Common shares in th&8hsiEdnaity section of the
Consolidated Balance Sheet, are owned by EXOR Nederland N.V. (previously named Exor N.V.). The Company's Class B commo
shares are classified as liabilities and, as a result, are not included in Common shares in the SisaEejuitiglsection the
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

As of December 31, 2017, 100,000,000 Class A common shares were held by EXOR Nederland N.V. and 255,492 Class B
common shares were held by certain executive officers of the Company.

The Class B Common Sharessued and outstanding represent less than 0.3% of the beneficial ownership and voting rights of
the Company. See Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report for further details.

Except as otherwise required by law or Gexdite of Designation, holders of Class B Shares share the same voting rights as
the holders of Class A Shares.

ITEM 7. MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A. Major Shareholders

As more fully described in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report, 100% of the Company's
Class A shares are owned by EXOR Nederland N.V. Prior to the acquisition of 100% of the common sharesmfahg, Exor
held 9.9% of the publicly held common shares of the Company, which were acquired in 2015 in contemplation of the acquisition.

B. Related Party Transactions

As at DecembeBl, 2017 and 2016 EXOR Nederland N.V. held 100% of the Class A share®oaa than 99% of the total
voting shares (Class A and Class B) of the Company and therefore has the power to make decisions that impact the Company.

The Company has entered into certain related party transactions as disclosed in Notes 10 and d8<olidet€l Financial
Statements in Item 18 of this report.

C. Interests of Experts and Counsel

Not applicable.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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A. Consolidated Statements and Other Financial Information

See the Consolidated Financial Statements, Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statements
Schedules in Item 18 of this report.

B. Significant Changes

See Note 22 to the Csalidated Financial Statements in Item 18 for a disclosure of events subsequent to year end and prior to
the date of filing.
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ITEM 9. THE OFFER AND LISTING

A. Offer and Listing Details

The Companyés common shares are no |l onger |listed as a r
preferred shares are listed on the NYSE under the symbol$PIREEG, PREH, and PRH. Refer to Note 1 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report for further details.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicat
shares that remain outstanding aPetembe1, 2017 as reported on the NYSE (in U.S. dollars):

For the year ended December 31, 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

High Low High Low High Low High Low High Low
Series F 26.2¢ 24.07 27.4¢ 22.% 26.5¢ 23.9C 25.61 20.1z 25.1f 19.8¢
Series G 27.5¢ 2547 30.3: 25.3- n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Series H 30.8z 27.11 32.4C 25.0% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Series | 27.0¢ 235€ 28.9¢ 22.9i n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
For the quarter ended December 31, 2017  September 30, 2017 June 30, 2017 March 31, 2017

High Low High Low High Low High Low
Series F 25.91 25.2: 26.2¢ 24.81 25.8¢ 25.17 25.8i 24.07
Series G 27.4¢ 26.71 27.5¢ 26.6¢ 27.52 26.52 26.82 25.47
Series H 29.5¢ 28.1°¢ 30.82 28.11 29.5¢ 28.5:¢ 28.9 27.11
Series | 27.0¢ 26.04 26.3¢ 25.3¢ 26.5:% 25.4¢ 25.6: 23.5¢
For the quarter ended December 31, 2016  September 30, 2016 June 30, 2016 March 31, 2016

High Low High Low High Low High Low
Series F 26.5¢ 22.9¢ 27.4¢ 25.6¢€ 26.1¢ 24.5( 26.92 24.81
Series G 28.9¢ 25.3: 30.3: 28.1¢ 29.86 26 n/a n/a
Series H 30.8: 25.02 32.4C 29.52 30.98 26.76 n/a n/a
Series | 27.8¢ 22.97 28.9¢ 26.1 26.19 24.91 n/a n/a
Each month for the most  February 28, January 31, December 31, November 30, October 31, September 30,
recent six months 2018 2018 2017 2017 2017 2017

High  Low High  Low High Low High Low High Low High Low

Series F 25.4¢ 24.7C 25.6( 25.0( 25.8: 2522 259( 25.2i 25.97 25.31 25.7¢ 24.8]
Series G 26.5% 2581 26.9¢ 26.1¢ 27.4¢ 26.8C 27.37 26.8i 27.4¢ 26.71 27.0¢ 26.6t
Series H 28.2¢ 26.81 29.17 27.2: 29.5¢ 28.6( 29.5¢ 28.4¢ 29.1¢ 28.1f 29.37 28.3i
Series | 25.6: 2491 26.27 249t 26.71 26.0¢ 26.9¢ 26.1f 27.0¢ 26.08 26.3: 25.3¢

B. Plan of Distribution
Not applicable.

C. Markets

Each series of the Co mmaairgdédon therN&$Ee The 5.875% Serses eQomulatve | i st e d
Preferred Shares began trading on February 19, 2013 and the 6.50% Series G Cumulative Preferred Shares, the 7.25% Series H
Cumulative Preferred Shares and the 5.875% Series-(Quonulative Prefered Shares began trading on May 6, 2016.
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D. Selling Shareholders
Not applicable.

E. Dilution
Not applicable.

F. Expenses of the Issue

Not applicable.

ITEM 10. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

A. Share Capital
Not applicable.

B. Memorandum and Articles of Association

The Companyédés Amended Memorandum of As s3(Elé roB33M) filecvdth b e e |
the SEC on June 20, 1997, and is bgracorporated by reference into this Annual Report.

The Comp alawg wese aBBopted on March 18, 2016 and filed as exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Report orkForm 8
(File No 00114536) filed with the SEC on March 18, 2016, and are hereby incorposatetebence into this Annual Report.

Corporate Registration and Objectives

PartnerRe Ltd. is incorporated under the laws of Bermuda. The Company is registered at the Bermuda Registrar under the
number 18620. The purposes and powers of the Company are set forth in Items 6 and 7 (b) through (n) and (p) to (of thelusive
Secom Schedule of the Bermuda Companies Act of 1981, as amended.

Board of Directors

The Companies Act authorizes the directors of a company, subject to-lsisydgo exercise all powers of the company
except those that are required by the Companies Atd byelaws to be exercised by the shareholders. The Companykd&ye
provide that its business is to be generally managed and conducted by the Board and that the Board shall be such essnber not |
than three as the Company by resolution may, from tintene, determine. The Directors shall be elected or appointed at the
Annual General Meeting, at any Special General Meeting called for that purpose or by Resolution. Directors shall Hold office
such term as the Shareholders may determine or, irbemee of such determination, until the next Annual General Meeting or
until their successors are elected or appointed or their office is otherwise vacated.

Under t he C-awsmmrdrsubjéd to tReyGompanies Act, a Director is not prohibited fromg agarty to or
otherwise have an interest in, any transaction or arrangement with the Company or in which the Company is otherwideAntereste
Director who has complied with t h-aws@ihmggadtd dedaringehtatura of bis wi t h
interest in a transaction or arrangement with the Company, or in which the Company is otherwise interested, may betbeunted in
guorum and vote at any meeting at which such transaction or arrangement is considered by the Board.

In addition to its powers under Bykeaw 27, the Board on behalf of the Company may provide benefits, whether by the
payment of gratuities or pensions or otherwise, for any person including any Director or former Director who has hetditivey exe
office or employmat with the Company or with any body corporate which is or has been a subsidiary or Affiliate of the Company
or a predecessor in the business of the Company or of any such subsidiary or Affiliate, and to any member of his fgmily or an
person who is or wadependent on him, and may contribute to any fund and pay premiums for the purchase or provision of any
such gratuity, pension or other benefit, or for the insurance of any such person.

The Company may in a Special General Meeting called for that purpoewe a Director, provided notice of any such
meeting shall be served upon the Director concerned not less than fourteen (14) days before such meeting and s/h#lstiall be en
to be heard at such meeting. The Shareholders may authorize the Diredtbasmyoveicancy in their number, from time to time.

Under t he C-bamptlemqyoius neBegsary for the transaction of the business of the Board may be fixed by the
Board and, unless so fixed at any other number, shall be three (3) individualgainesrthe presence of at least one Majority
Shareholder Director Designee for so long as the Board consists of at least one Majority Shareholder Director Designee. Any
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Director who ceases to be a Director at a meeting of the Board may continue to hearédge act as a Director and be counted in
the quorum until the termination of the meeting if no other Director objects and if otherwise a quorum of Directors waild not
present.

A resolution in writing signed by all the Directors for the time beintifled to receive notice of a meeting of the Board shall
be valid and effectual as a resolution pass at a meeting of the Board.

A meeting of the Board or a committee appointed by the Board may be held by means of such telephone, electronic or other
commurication facilities (including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, by telephone or by video conferencing) as
permit all persons participating in the meeting to communicate with each other simultaneously and instantaneouslygatabpartici
in such a meeting shall constitute presence in person at such meeting. Such a meeting shall be deemed to take place where the
largest group of those Directors participating in the meeting is physically assembled, or, if there is no such groue where t
chairman of the meeting then is.

Among the powers of the Company which the Board may exercise, the Board is allowed to borrow money and to mortgage o
charge all or any part of the undertaking, property and assets (present and future) and uncalledtbaeptahgfany. The Board
may also issue debentures and other securities (whether outright or as collateral security for any debt, liabilityar obtigat
Company or of any other persons).

Bermuda law provides that the Directors owe a fiduciary dutii¢ Company to act in good faith in their dealings with or on
behalf of the Company and exercise their powers and fulfill the duties of their office honestly. This duty includevitregfollo
essential elements:

A aduty to act in good faith in the bestarests of the Company;
A aduty not to make a personal profit from opportunities that arise from the office of director;

A aduty to avoid situations in which there is an actual or potential conflict between a personal interest or the duties owed t
third paties and/or the Director's duty to the Company; and

A aduty to exercise powers for the purpose for which such powers were intended.
The Companies Act imposes a duty on the Directors and Officers to:
A act honestly and in good faith with a view to the begtrsts of the Company; and
A exercise the care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in comparable circumstances.

The Companies Act also imposes various duties on the Directors and Officers with respect to certain matters of managemen
and administration of the Company.

Under Bermuda law, the Directors and Officers generally owe fiduciary duties to the Compangdtdelthe Company's
individual shareholders or members, creditors, or any class of either shareholders, members or creditors.

Shares and Share Rights

Subject to any special rights conferred on the holders of any Share or class of Shares, any Slzoenipatinge may be
issued with or have attached thereto such preferred, deferred, qualified or other special rights or such restrictiaris, nebatte
to dividend, voting, return of capital or otherwise, as the Board may determine.

Subject to the general provisions of Bermuda law, the Board may, at its discretion and without the sanction of a Resolution,
authorize the acquisition by the Company of its own Shares, of any class, at any price (whether at par or above or. below par)
Under Bermuda law, the Company must pay for such share purchases out of capital foithese shares, out of funds that would
otherwise be available for a dividend or distribution or out of proceeds of the issue of additional shares for the pghepose of
purchase. However, to the extent that any premium over the par value is payable on the purchase, the premium must be provide
out of funds that would otherwise be available for a dividend or distribution or out of the Company's share premium account.

Any Shares to be purchased may be selected in any manner whatsoever, to be either cancelled or held as Treasury Shares,
upon such terms as the Board may in its discretion determine, provided always that such acquisition is effected in agtdordance
the provsions of the Companies Act. The whole or any part of the amount payable on any such acquisition may be paid or satisfiec
otherwise than in cash, to the extent permitted by the Companies Act.

As provided in our Byd.aws and subject to the Companies Adtpalany of the special rights for the time being attached to
any class of Shares for the time being issued may from time to time (whether or not the Company is being wound up)be altered
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abrogated with the consent in writing of the holders of notthess seventy five percent (75%) of the issued Shares of that class or
with the sanction of a resolution passed at a separate general meeting of the holders of not less than seventy fR&Efpeofent (

the issued Shares of that class, voting in persday proxy. To any such separate general meeting, all the provisions of these Bye
Laws as to general meetings of the Company shall mutatis mutandis apply, but so that the necessary quorum shall be two (2) or
more persons holding or representing by proxy@the Shares of the relevant class, that every holder of Shares of the relevant
class shall be entitled on a poll to one vote for every such Share held by him and that any holder of Shares of thlasslevant
present in person or by proxy may demarnmbly provided however, that if the Company or a class of Shareholders shall have only
one Shareholder, one Shareholder present in person or by proxy shall constitute the necessary quorum.

Subject to Bermuda law and except insofar as the rights attachiogthe terms of issue of, any Share otherwise provide, the
Board may from time to time declare dividends or distributions out of contributed surplus to be paid to the Sharehaldieig acco
to their rights and interests, including such interim divideaslappear to the Board to be justified by the position of the Company.
The Board, in its discretion, may determine that any dividend shall be paid in cash or shall be satisfied, subject-tathe, Bye
paying up in full Shares in the Company to suéd to the Shareholders credited as fully paid or partly paid or partly in one way
and partly the other. The Board may also pay any fixed cash dividend which is payable on any Shares of the Compalyy half year
or on such other dates, whenever the pasitibthe Company, in the opinion of the Board, justifies such payment.

The Board may from time to time resolve to capitalize all or any part of any amount for the time being standing to tife credit
any reserve or fund which is available for distributiorio the credit of any Share premium account and accordingly that such
amount be set free for distribution amongst the Shareholders or any class of Shareholders who would be entitled thereto.

If the Company shall be wound up, the liquidator may, withstirection of a Resolution of the Company and any other
sanction required by the Companies Act, divide amongst the Shareholders in specie or kind the whole or any part obthieeassets
Company (whether they shall consist of property of the same kinotoamd may for such purposes set such values as he deems
fair upon any property to be divided as aforesaid and may determine how such division shall be carried out as between the
Shareholders or different classes of Shareholders. The liquidator maghevitke sanction, vest the whole or any part of such
assets in trustees upon such trust for the benefit of the contributories as the liquidator, with the like sanctionk $itaiuhso
that no Shareholder shall be compelled to accept any Shavdseorassets upon which there is any liability.

General Meetings of Shareholders and Voting Rights

If required under the Companies Act, the Board shall convene and the Company shall hold general meetings as Annual
General Meetings in accordance with tequirements of the Companies Act at such times and places as the Board shall appoint or,
if requested in writing signed by the Majority Common Shareholder, at such times and places as the Majority Common Sharehold
shall request. The Board may, whenav¢hinks fit, and shall, when required by the Companies Act or when requested by the
Majority Common Shareholder, convene general meetings other than Annual General Meetings which shall be called Special
General Meetings, at such time and place as thedBoay appoint or, if requested in writing signed by the Majority Common
Shareholder, at such time and place as the Majority Common Shareholder shall request. Except as required by the Companies A
or when requested by the Majority Common Shareholdegi8pGeneral Meetings may not be called by any person other than the
Board. Save where a greater majority is required by the Companies Act or theBgeany question proposed for consideration at
any general meeting shall be decided on by a simplerityajd votes cast.

Except in the case of the removal of auditors or Directors, anything which may be done by resolution of the Shareholders in
general meeting or by resolution of any class of Shareholders in a separate general meeting may be dan®byregiting.
Any such Resolution shall be signed by such number of Shareholders (or the holders of such class of Shares) as woettibe requi
the Resolution had been voted on at a meeting of Shareholders or, all the Shareholders, or suclotyhef thaj Shareholders as
may be provided by the Byleaws. Such resolution in writing may be signed by the Shareholder or its proxy, or in the case of a
Shareholder that is a corporation (whether or not a company within the meaning of the Compabig##\mpresentative on
behalf of such Shareholder, in as many counterparts as may be necessary.

Under our Bydaws should any person (other than EXOR or any member of the Exor Group) be a Ten Percent Shareholder,
notwithstanding any provision to the daary in these Byd.aws, the votes conferred by the Controlled Shares of such person are
hereby reduced (and shall be automatically reduced in the future) by whatever amount is necessary so that after antiasuch redu
such person shall not be a Ten Pet&hareholder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board may waive the restrictions in its
discretion and on a case by case basis.

Change in Control

Subject to the Companies Act and pursuant ourBy®s, in addition to the approval of the Board, any netsmh proposed
for consideration at any general meeting to approve the amalgamation or merger of the Company with any other company, where
incorporated, shall require the approval of a simple majority of votes cast at such meeting. A poll may beddiemeslect of
such resolution in accordance with the Byavs. Under Bermuda law, in the event of an amalgamation or a merger of a Bermuda
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Company with another, a shareholder of the Bermuda company who has not voted in favor of the amalgamationamdnie roetr
satisfied that a fair value has been offered for suooneh shar
mont hds notice of the special gener al meeting, to apprai se

Changes in Capital

Subjedt to the Companies Act, Byleaws and Amended Memorandum of Association, the Company may from time to time by
Resolution authorize the reduction of its issued Share Capital or any Share premium account in any manner.

C. Material Contracts

On October 20, 2@, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to acti@@#%of the outstanding ordinary shares of
Aurigen.The acquisition was completed on April 3, 2017.

D. Exchange Controls

Securities may be offered or sold in Bermuda only in compliance withbrthvesions of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
Investment Business Act 2003, and the Exchange Control Act 1972 and related regulations, each as amended, which regulate the
sale of securities in Bermuda. In addition, specific permission is required fradWtAepursuant to the provisions of the Exchange
Change Control Act 1972 and related regulations (Exchange Control Act), for all issuances and transfers of securitiedaof Berm
companies, other than in cases where the BMA has granted a general periissBRIA, in its policy dated June 1, 2005,
provides that where any equity securities of a Bermuda company are listed on an appointed stock exchange (the NY Skois deeme
be an appointed stock exchange under Bermuda law), general permission is givensturdltand subsequent transfer of any equity
securities of such company from and/or to a-resident of Bermuda, for as long as any equity securities of the company remain so
listed. Our common shares are not listed on the NYSE and accordingly thal gemetission will not apply to them.

The BMA has, however, granted us permission for the issue, sale and transfer of up to 20% of any security as defined in the
Exchange Control Act including (without limitation) the grant or creation of options, warcanggon, rights and depository
receipts (collectively, Securities) to and among persons who are resident of Bermuda for exchange control purposes,nehether o
the Securities are listed on an appointed stock exchange.

Under the Insurance Act, where gt the shares of the insurer nor the shares of its parent company are not traded on any
stock exchange, no person shall become a 10%, 20%, 33% or 50% shareholder controller of the insurer unless (a) he has filed a
notice in writing to the BMA that he iehds to become a controller of the insurer and (b) the BMA has, not later than 45 days
beginning on the date of service of that notice, notified him in writing that there is no objection to him becoming strohier ob
the insurer or the 45 days haslapsed without the BMA having served written notice of objection. Likewise, any person who
ceases to become a holder of at least 10%, 20%, 33% or 50% of our voting shares must notify the BMA in writing no4&ter than
days of such disposal. As descdlwerein, our Byd.aws contain restrictions on the transfer of shares that generally would have
the effect of prohibiting any shareholder, other than EXOR or any member of the Exor Group, from owning 10% or more of our
common shares.

E. Taxation
The Company and PartnerRe Bermuda are not subject to income or profits tax, withholding tax, capital gains tax or capital

transfer tax in Bermuda. See Business Overdidwxation of the Company and its Subsidiaries in Item 4 for further details.

F. Dividends and Paying Agents
Not applicable.

G. Statement by Experts
Not applicable.

H. Documents on Display

Documents that have been filed by the Company with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) can be read or
copied at t he SE @Qubaionand Advacacy lacated latrdQ0¢ Stteet,rN.EEWashington, D.C. 20549. The public
may obtain information on the operation of the public reference rooms and their copy charges by calling the SBGSBRCL
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0330. Filings with the SEC are also avaliéato the public from commercial document retrieval services, and from the website
maintained by the SEC at http://www.sec.gov.

I. Subsidiary Information

Not applicable.
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ITEM 11. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Overview

Management believes that the Company is principally exposed to five types of market related risk: interest rate risk, credit
spread risk, foreign currency risk, counterparty credit risk and equity price risk. How these risks relate to the Cochffany, an
process used to manage them, is discussed below.

The Companyédés investment philosophy distinguishes betwe
reinsurance liabilities (liability funds) and those assets that represent sharehoi@é capital funds). Liability funds are invested
in a way that generally matches them to the corresponding liabilities in both duration and currency composition tonariae a
hedge against changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

TheCompanyds investment philosophy is to reduce foreign
denominated investments. In considering the market risk of capital funds, it is important to recognize the benefitimf portfo
diversification. Although these asset classes in isolation may introduce more risk into the portfolio, market forces haveyadenden
influence each class in different ways and at different times. Consequently, the aggregate risk introduced by a pibefaio of
assets should be less than might be estimated by summing the individual risks.

Although the focus of this discussion is to identify risk exposures that impact the market value of assets alone,téns$ impor
to recognize that the risks discussecchern ar e signi ficantly mitigated to the ext
market forces to influence the economic valuation of assets and liabilities in a way that is generally offsetting.

As described above i mvestrhentstrategy pllows the use df derivaticermpestmgnts,subject to strict
limitations. The Company also imposes a high standard for the credit quality of counterparties in all derivative traasdciorns
to diversify its counterparty credit rigkposure. See Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements it8ltefnthis report for
additional information related to derivatives.

The following addresses those areas where the Company believes it has exposure to material market risk iarits operat

Interest Rate Risk

The Companyés fixed maturity portfolio and the fixed ma
held directly managed account are exposed to interest rate risk. Fluctuations in interest rates havienpatitent the market
valuation of these securities. The Company manages interest rate risk on liability funds by constructing bond portfidiogha w
economic impact of a general interest rate shift is comparable to the impact on the relatéeslidliiit Company believes that this
process of matching the duration mitigates the overall interest rate risk on an economic basis:lif@bNsiness and the
mortality Iine of the Life busi ness, sedwoepragestediclarastpaydutpadttennsat i c
For policy benefits related to annuity business, the Company estimates duration based on its commitment to annuitants. The
Company manages the exposure to interest rate volatility on capital funds by choosirtgpa drofile that it believes will
optimize the riskreward relationship.

This matching of duration insulates the Company from t h
liabilities are carried at their nominal value, and are not adjdistazhanges in interest rates, with the exception of certain policy
benefits for life and annuity contracts and deposit liabilities that are interest rate sensitive. However, substarftifiéy all
Companyds invested as s e tedyingtherfunds haldirecty managed dacaoun® are careed at &ir valuwed
which reflects such changes. As a result, an increase in interest rates will result in a decrease in the fair valua pfaha @od s
investments (including the investments undadyihe funds helddirectly managed account) and a corresponding decrease, net of
applicable taxes, in the Companyés sharehol dersd equity. A

At Decembeil, 2017, the Company held approximately 9, &illion of its total invested assets in mortgage/alsaeked
securities. These assets are exposed to prepayment risk, the adverse impact of which is more evident in a declimatg interest
environment.
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At Decembei3l, 2017, the Company estimatest titee hypothetical case of an immediate 100 basis points or 200 basis points
parallel shift in global bond curves would result in a change in the fair value of investments exposed to interestotde risk,
invested asset s an dtadeltcParnérRellLd. eas falldws Gngmilliorts gf U.&.tdollars):b

-200Basis % -100Basis % December 31, +100Basis % +200Basis %
Poaints Change Points Change 2017 Points Change Points Change

Fair value of investments
exposed to interest rate riék> $ 15,53: 1C% $ 14,82: 5% $ 14,11 $ 13,40: (5)% $ 12,69¢ (10)%

Total invested asse® $ 18,41¢ 8% $ 17,70 4% $ 16,98: $ 16,26¢ ()% $ 15,54¢ (8)%
Sharehol der s o
to PartnerRe Ltd. $ 8,18 21% $ 7,46¢ 11% $ 6,74t $ 6,027 (11)% $ 5,30¢ (21)%

(1) Includes certain other invested assets, certain cash and cash equivalents and funds holding fixed income securities.

(2) Excludes accrued interest.

(3) Includes total investments, cash and cash equivalents, the investment portfolio underlying the fudulsdtkgldnanaged
account and accrued interest.

The changes do not take into account any potential mitigating impact from the equity market, tage®oesponding
change in the economic value of the Companyds reinsumarance
invested assets, although the offset would not be reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The Company strizs to match the foreign currency exposure in its fixed income portfolio to itsecutidéncy liabilities. The
Company believes that this matching process creates a diversification benefit. Consequently, the exact market valae effect of
change in interégates will depend on which countries experience interest rate changes and the foreign currency mix of the
Company6s fixed maturity portfolio at the time of the inte

The impact of an immediate changerierest rates on the fair value of investments and on investments within the furids held
directly managed account exposed to interest rate abletek, t}
PartnerRe Ltd., in both absolutetens and as a percentage of tot al invested as
Ltd., has not changed significantly at Decentbir2017 compared to Decemisdr, 2016.

I nterest rate movements also affect the economic value
in the same way that they affect the Companybs fi xeeds matur
different from the carrying value reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheet given the Company records the carryiritg value of
outstanding debt obligations and preferred securitamess at t
fair value is based on quoted market prices, while carrying value is based on the aggregate liquidation value of 8eedNates.

3(b) to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report for further details regarding the fairdeddtie o

See also Notes 10 and 11 to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report for further details regarding debt
and preferred shares respectively as at DeceBhet017 and 2016 and related changes during the year.

Credit Spread Risk

The Companyés fixed maturity portfolio and the fixed mat
held directly managed account are exposed to credit spread risk. Fluctuations in market credit spreads have a direct impact on the
market valuation of these securities. The Company manages credit spread risk by the selection of securities within itsrfixed matu
portfolio. Changes in credit spreads directly affect the market value of certain fixed maturity securities, but do raotyhexads
in a change in the future expected cash flows associated with holding individual securities. Other factors, includipgsligpuityi
and demand, and changing risk preferences of investors, may affect market credit spreads without aimytbhkang#erlying
credit quality of the security.

As with interest rates, changes in credit spreads edmpac
at fair value, which includes changes in credit spreads. As a result, aasmanecredit spreads will result in a decrease in the fair
value of the Companyds investments (i nc lidireatlynmnaget account) sndat me

corresponding decrease, net hafrehppldiecasdl equaxgs, Ai det hea e
opposite effect.

At Decembei3l, 2017, the Company estimates that the hypothetical case of an immediate 100 basis points or 200 basis poin
parallel shift in global credit spreads would fesua change in the fair value of investments exposed to interest rate risk (as
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presented in the table above), total i nvested assiidnsof and ¢
U.S. dollars):
-200Basis % -100Basis % December 31, +100Basis % +200Basis %
Points Change Points Change 2017 Points Change Points Change

Fair value of investments
exposed to interest rate i8R $ 15,15¢ 7% $ 14,63t 4% $ 14,11t $ 13,59 (4)% $ 13,07t (7)%

Total invested asse$ $ 18,02: 6% $ 17,50 3% $ 16,98: $ 16,46: (3% $ 15,94: (6)%
Sharehol der s o6
to PartnerRe Ltd. $ 7,78¢ 15% $ 7,26¢ 8% $ 6,74t $ 6,22°¢ 8% $ 570¢ (15%

(1) Included within the fair value of investments exposed to interest rate risk is $10.1 billion of fair value of investrosets exp
to credit spreads risk. Includes certain other irtedsassets, certain cash and cash equivalents and funds holding fixed
income securities.

(2) Excludes accrued interest.

(3) Includes total investments, cash and cash equivalents, the investment portfolio underlying the fudulsdtkgldnanaged
account and accrued interest.

The changes above also do not take into account any potential mitigating impact from the taxestemtthm the
economic value of the Companyds reinsurance |liabilities, v

The impact of an immediate change in credit spreads on the overall fair value of investments and fididsdilgldhanaged
acount exposed to credit spread risk, the Companyds d,est al
a percentage of total invested assets and sharehodtder sé ec
DecembeBl, 2017 compared to Decemi3dr, 2016.

Foreign Currency Risk

Through its multinational reinsurance operations, the Company conducts business in a variety.&f womrencies, with the

principal exposures being the Euro, Canadian dollasSwvi Fr anc, Briti sh pound and Austral
currency is the U.S. dollar, foreign exchange rate fluct uec
Statements.

The Company is generally able to match itsiligbfunds against its net reinsurance liabilities both by currency and duration
to protect the Company against foreign exchange and interest rate risks. However, a natural offset does not exisefmiedl cur
For the norU.S. dollar currencies forlich the Company deems the net asset or liability exposures to be material, the Company
employs a hedging strategy utilizing foreign exchange forward contracts and other derivative financial instruments riadegpprop
to reduce exposure and more appratgty match the liability funds by currency. The Company does not hedge currencies for which
its asset or liability exposures are not material or where it is unable or impractical to do so. In such cases, the Cexposey i
to foreign currency risk. Heever, the Company does not believe that the foreign currency risks corresponding to these unhedged
positions are material, except for those related to the Cc

For the Companyds capital f und bsidiariemand buadches gnd équity secusties, then v e
Company does not typically employ hedging strategies. However, from time to time the Company does enter into net investment
hedges to offset foreign exchange volatility (see Liquidity and Capital Resduxgsency in Itenb of this report). Derivatives
are included in other invested assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet (see Note 6 to the Consolidated FinanciainStatements
18 of this report for further details).

The Companyds (¢ reandtsCorsolidatech Batances ShgebasDeceBbeP017 to foreign currency as well as
the associated foreign currency derivatives the Company has entered into to manage this exposure, was as followsdfn millions
U.S. dollars):

Euro CAD CHF GBP JPY Other Total @
Total assets $ 231¢ $141E $ 20 $ 1,50¢ $ 32 $ 97€¢ $ 6,271
Total liabilities (4,15() (507 (33€) (1,53)) (89) (1,507 (8,120
Total gross foreign currency exposure (1,83) 90€  (31¢) (22 (57) (531) (1,849
Totd derivative amount 1,83¢ (912 0 67 0 78 1,072
Net foreign currency exposure $ 8% 4Bl 45 3% (BNS$ 458 (7))
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(1) AstheU.S.dl | ar is the Companyés reporting currency, there i
excluded from this table. The U.S. dollar accounted for
exposure in this table and thetm | assets and tot al l'iabilities in Blhe Cc
2017.

The above numbers include the Companyds investment in c¢

are the Euro or Canadian dolland the foreign exchange forward contracts that the Company entered into during the year to hedge
a portion of its translation exposure in light of the significant volatility in foreign exchange markets.

AtDecembeB 1, 2017, t he Co mpeafargighsurrency®ipossré pgesentédiinche table above reflect the
unhedged net investment in its Swiss branch.

At Decembei3l, 2017, assuming all other variables remain constant and disregarding any tax effects, a change in the U.S.
dollar of 10% 0r20% relative to all of the other currencies held by the Company simultaneously would result in a change in the
Companyb6s net foreign currency exposure of $78 mil |lhangen anc
forward contacts and other derivative financial instruments.

Counterparty Credit Risk

Investments and Cash

The Company has exposure to credit risk primarily as a holder of fixed maturity securities. The Company controls this
exposure by emphasizing investment graeeliciquality in the fixed maturity securities it purchases. At Dece®bgeP017,
approximately 52% of the Companyo6s fidirgcdydnamaget account apd fyndsr t f o | i
holding fixed maturity securities) was rated AA (guesalent rating) or better.

At Decembe8 1 , 2017, approxi mately 71% o ftermihvestmemtsniipchuding fusds f i x e o
holding fixed maturity securities and excluding the fundsitdiléctly managed account) were ratedof beter and 3% were rated
below investment grade or not rated. The Company believes this high quality concentration reduces its exposure taaredit risk
fixed maturity investments to an acceptable level. At Dece@bge2017, the Company was not exposed tosignificant credit
concentration risk on its investments, excluding securities issued by the U.S. government which are rated AA+. Thgeshgle lar
corporate issuer and the top 10 corporate issuers accounted for less than 3% and less than 19%mpfahe ¢dns t ot al co
fixed maturity securities (excluding the funds he&ldectly managed account), respectively, at Decer@beR017.

The Company keeps cash and cash equivalents in several banks and ensures that there are no significant casfcentrations
credit risk in any one bank.

Funds helidirectly managed account

The funds heltidirectly managed account due to the Company is related to one cedant, Colisée Re. The Company is subject:
the credit risk of this cedant in the event of insolvency or Gol®e Re 6s fai lure to honor the va
other reason. However, the Companyds credit risk isosomewf
offset any shortfall in the payment of the funds heldibaés with amounts owed by the Company to the cedant for losses payable
and other amounts contractually due. See also Risk Factors iBltemf t hi s report for additional
exposure if Colisée Re, or its affiliates, breach or alosatisfy their obligations. In addition to exposure to Colisée Re, the
Company is also subject to the credit risk of AXA or its affiliates in the event of their insolvency or their failurertthikano
obligations under the acquisition agreements.NB&te 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 18 of this report for
further details regarding the funds Haditectly managed account.

Derivatives

To a lesser extent, the Company also has credit risk exposure as a party to foreign excharjedioinaats and other
derivative contracts. The Companyds investment st rnafTregy al
Company imposes a high standard for the credit quality of counterparties in all derivative traas@otinitigate credit risk, the
Company monitors its exposure by counterparty, aims to diversify its counterparty credit risk and ensures that coutdgerparties
these contracts are high credit quality international banks or counterparties. These aetiganterally of short duration
(approximately 90 days) and settle on a net basis, which means that the Company is exposed to the movement of one currency
against the other, as opposed to the notional amount of the contracts. At DeBgn#td7, the Comany 6s net noti on
of foreign exchange forward contracts was $2,863 million, while the net fair value of those contracts was a liabilitygi@sifio
million. See Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements inliBeof this report for aditional information related to
derivatives.
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Underwriting Operations

The Company is also exposed to credit risk in its underwriting operations, most notably in the credit/surety line. Loss
experience in these lines of business is cyclical and is affegtdt lyeneral economic environment. The Company provides its
clients in these lines of business with protection against credit deterioration, defaults or other types of finapeidbrance of
or by the underlying credits that are the subject of thé&eption provided and, accordingly, the Company is exposed to the credit
ri sk of those credits. As with all of the Companyaéndards.usi ne
In addition, the Company strives to mitigate tisks associated with these cresénsitive lines of business through the use of risk
management techniques such as risk diversification, careful monitoring of risk aggregations and accumulations and, at times,
through the use of retrocessional reinsagaprotection and the purchase of credit default swaps and total return and interest rate
swaps.

The Company is subject to the credit risk of its cedants in the event of their insolvency or their failure to honor tig¢healue
funds held balances duettoh e Company for any other reason. However, the
by a mandatory right of offset of amounts payable by the Company to a cedant against amounts due to the Companythercertain o
jurisdictions the Company is able to mitigate this risk, depending on the nature of the funds held arrangements, to the extent that th
Company has the contractual ability to offset any shortfall in the payment of the funds held balances with amounts ewed by th
Company to ceahts for losses payable and other amounts contractually due. Funds held balances for which the Company receive:
an investment return based upon either the results of a pool of assets held by the cedant or the investment retuthearned by
cedant on itsrivestment portfolio are exposed to an additional layer of credit risk. The Company is also exposed, to some extent, t
the underlying financial market risk of the pool of assets, inasmuch as the underlying policies may have guaranteed minimum
returns.

TheCompany has exposure to credit risk as it relates to I
are unable to fulfill their contractual obligations with respect to payments to the Company. In addition, in some josisiflittgo
broker fails to make payments to the insured under thehe Cor
deficiency. The Companyb6s exposure to such credit reeRisk i s

Factors in Iten8 and Business Overview in Item 4 of this report for information related to two brokers that accounted for
approximately 47% of the Company6s gr @8s2017premi ums written

The Company has exposure tedit risk as it relates to its reinsurance balances receivable and reinsurance recoverable on
paid and unpaid losses.

Reinsurance balances recei vabl e1,201bware 27285 milionnipchding batancese d a |
both currently duand accrued. The Company believes that credit risk related to these balances is mitigated by several factors,
including but not limited to, credit checks performed as part of the underwriting process and monitoring of aged receivable
balances. In additigras the majority of its reinsurance agreements permit the Company the right to offset reinsurance balances
receivable from clients against losses payable to them, the Company believes that the credit risk in this area idystbdtaetial
Provisionsare made for amounts considered potentially uncollectible and the allowance for uncollectible premiums receivable was
$5 million at DecembeBl, 2017.

The Company purchases retrocessional reinsurance and requires its reinsurers to have adequaté dingthcidihe
Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors its concentration of credit risk on an ongoing basis
Provisions are made for amounts considered potentially uncollectible. At Deceinl2€17, the balance of reinsucan
recoverable on paid and unpaid Ada and life reserves was $729 million, which is net of the allowance provided for uncollectible

reinsurance recoverables of $0 million. At Decentdr , 2017, 37% of the Companyompad ei ns
nortlife and life reserves were either due from reinsurers with-aor Aetter rating from Standa8&l Poor 6 s, and the
was collateralized. See Liquidity and Capital Resourd@sinsurance Recoverable on Paid and Unpaid Losses in It€thiS o
report for details of the Companyds reinsurance rec&®verabl

Poor éds rating.

Ot her than the items discussed above, the ceshavenot r ati on
changed materially at Decemt&%, 2017 compared to Deceml®dr, 2016.

Equity Price Risk

The Company invests a portion of its capital funds in equity securities (fair market ve#682illion, excluding funds
holding fixed income securities of $7 million) @ecembeB1, 2017. These equity investments are exposed to equity price risk,
definedas the potential for loss in market value due to a decline in equity prices. The Company believes that the effects of
diversification and the relatively small size of its investments in equities relative to total invested assets mitigetsuite &
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equity price risk. The Company estimates that its equity investment portfolio has a beta versus the S&P 500 Index of

approximately0.6lon aver age. Portfolio beta measures the response
abetaofl would be an equivalent return to the index. Given th
movement in the S&P 500 Index would result in a chasetge in

ands harehol dersé6 equity aedembellu2018bly $38 millioo ang %77 millioa, reRpectively. @his a t
change does not take into account any potential mitigating impact from the fixed maturity securities or taxes.

ITEM 12. DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN EQUITY SECURITIES
Not applicable.

PART Il

ITEM 13. DEFAULTS, DIVIDENDS ARREARAGES AND DELINQUENCIES

None.
ITEM 14. MATERIAL MODIFICATIONS TO THE RIGHTS OF SECURITY HOLDERS AND USE OF PROCEEDS

In accordance with the terms of the Merger Agreement, upon effecting the Merger, EXOR S.p.A. paid cash of $1.25 per share
for an aggregate payment of approximately $43 million to the preferred shareholders and agreed to launch an exchamge offer. O
April 1, 2016, the Company launched the exchange offer whereby participating preferred shareholders could exchange any or all
existing preferred shares for newly issued preferred shares reflecting, subject to certain exceptions contained imgthe existi
preferredshares, an extended call date of the fifth anniversary from the date of issuance and a restriction on payment of dividends
on common shares declared with respect to any fiscal quarter to an amount not exceeding 67% of net income during such fiscal
qguarteruntil December 31, 2020. The terms of the newly issued preferred shares would otherwise remain identical in all material
respects to the Companyds existing preferred sharesMayas de
1, 2016, 6,415,264 Series D, 11,753,798 Series E and 7,320,574 Series F preferred shares were exchanged for an equivalent nun
of Series G, Series H and Series | preferred shares, respectively. There was no consideration paid and no increase oftfer va
preferred shares as a result of the exchange and, as a result, the exchange was considered a modification of thang®feitted sh
no gain or loss or deemed dividend arising as a result of the exchange. As a result of the exchange offer, the&walbehthe
Series D, E and F preferred shares tendered in the exchange offéendered preferred shares not exchanged and the new Series
G, H and | preferred shares remain outstanding and will continue to trade on the NYSE until redeemed.

On Novenber 1, 2016, the Company redeemed the Series D and E preferred shares at $25 per share for an aggregate
liquidation value of $150 million. In addition, unpaid preferred dividends accrued to the redemption date totaling $%engélion
paid. In connection ith the redemption, the Company recognized a loss of $5 million related to the deferred issuance costs paid
upon issuance which were included in additional jiaidapital related to the Series D and E preferred shares. There was no
additional gain or losen redemption to recognize as the redemption price and the initial consideration received on the issue of
preferred shares were both $25 per share. The loss of $5 million was recognized as a deemed preferred dividend imiatgned ea
and in determinig the net income attributable to the PartnerRe Ltd. common shareholder.

The redemption price of all preferred shares is $25 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends without interest at any time
in part from time to time on or after the fifth annivamg from the date of issuance.

The Company may redeem the Series F preferred shares at any time or in part from time to time on or after March 1, 2018.
The Company may also redeem the Series F pr eapitaldisqaalificatiomar e s
event o or certain changes in tax | aw.

The Company may redeem each of the Series G, H and | preferred shares on or after May 1, 2021.

Dividends on the Series F and | preferred shares areumonlative and are payable quarterly. Dividends on the Series G and
H preferred shares are cumulative from the date of issuance and are payable quarterly in arrears.

In the event of liquidation of thCompany, Series F, G, H and | preferred shares rank on parity with each other but rank senior
to the common shares. The holders of the Series F, G, H and | preferred shares would receive a distribution of $25mpimeshare,
aggregate liquidation valuén addition, upon liquidation, necumulative Series F and | preferred shares would receive any
declared but unpaid dividends while the cumulative Series G and H preferred shares would receive any accrued but unpaid
dividends.
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ITEM 15. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the CEO
and CFO, asof Decembgrl , 2017, of the effectiveness of the Companyés
13a15(e) and 15dL5(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Based upon that evaluation, the CEO and CFO
concluded that, as of Decemtsr, 2017, the disclosure controls and procedures are effective such that information required to be
disclosedby the Company in reports that it files or submits pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC and is accumulated and edmmunica
to managemenincluding its principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosures.

Management 8s Report on Internal Control over Financi al Rery

Management is responsible for establishing madéhtaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Internal control
over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the preparation of financial statererntd for ex
purposes in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect material misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls manbeeqie i
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management has assessed the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of 3dc&@@b@ér In making
this assessnm, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission in Internal Contréhtegrated Framework (2013).

Based on our assessment and those criteria management believes that the Company méatiueeititernal control over
financial reporting as of Decembgt, 2017.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in the Companyds internal C O
Decenber3 1 , 2017 that have materially affected, or are reason
financial reporting.
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ITEM 16A. AUDIT COMMITT EE FINANCIAL EXPERT

The Companyds Board has determined that Mr. Patrick Thi
in accordance with the NYSE listing rules.

ITEM 16B. CODE OF ETHICS

The Board of PartnerRe has adopted the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, which applies to all directors, officers and
employees. Any specific waiver of its provisions requires the approval of the Audit CemnAitty waiver required to be publicly
disclosed will be posted on our website at www.partnerre.com within four business days of such waiver being grantedeThere we
no disclosable waivers of or amendments to the Code of Business Conduct and Etlies 201ig. Any violation to the Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics will be investigated and may result in disciplinary action, as appropriate.

ITEM 16C. PRINCIPALACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Upon acquisition of the Companyds common shares by Exor
for PartnerRe to have the same independent auditors as its new ultimate parent, EXORrS\efch 24, 2016, PartnerRe
engaged Ernst & Young Ltd. as the Companyds independent r e
31, 2016, and dismissed Deloitte Ltd. S e e |dwhHoaforther details Re gi st
regarding the change in the certifying accountant.

The Audit Committee is directly responsible for the appointment, retention, compensation and oversight of the work of the
Companyb6s independent r e g eAutitcConentdteepalsdprappooves thecandit setvicen and #amlir m. T
services to be provided, including the fees for such services, before the public accounting firm is engaged to rendécesich se
The Audit Committee may delegate the authority to gsach approval to one or more designated members of the Audit
Committee, provided that the decisions of any member to whom authority is delegated shall be presented to the full Audit
Committee at its next meeting. The Audit Committee has sole authodpprove all audit fees and terms. All services of Ernst &
Young Ltd. and their respective affiliates (collectively, EY), and previously Deloitte Ltd. and their respective affibieesively,

Deloitte), were preapproved by the Audit Committee.

During 2017, the Audit Committee had two meetings and eight
as receive update on legal, internal and external auditor, and other matters as deemed necessary. The meetings aral aaftermatio
were conducted to encourage communication among the members of the Audit Committee, management, the internal auditors and
The Audit Committee also discussed with EY the over aditl sc
Committee met with representatives from EY, both with and without management present.

The following table presents fees for professional services rendered by the independent auditors for the years ended Decerr
31, 2017 and 2016 (in U.S. dollars):

2017 2016
Audit Fee§) $ 4,949,26! $ 5,296,001
Audit-Related Fedd 82,09t 257,00(
Tax Fee® 507,00( 654,57t
All Other Fee®) d 109,36:
Total $ 5,538,36: $ 6,316,93

(1) For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, audit fees relate to professional services rendered by EY for the audit o
the Companyds annual financial st at-Eanéothersauditsewites mogidedin n t
connectiorwith statutory and regulatory filing$:or the year ended December 31, 2016, audit fees also relate to
professional services rendered by EY for the review of the financial statements included in the quarterly report on Form 10
Q for the quarterly periodreded March 31, 2016. Subsequently, the Company was determined to be a Foreign Private
Issuer and, as a result, exempt from quarterly ForrQlfllings.

(2) Auditrelated fees are fees for services performed that are reasonably related to the performaaeditthr review of the
Companyés financi al st a(l)aboeenRorsthe geartendadrDecembert3l, 2047 amditedb e d i r
fees are for services performed by EY related to employee benefit plan audits of $72,095 and agreed upcespsiattl
to one of the Company's regulated branches for $10,000. For the year ended December 31, 2016, these fees include: i) fee
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of $98,000 for services performed by EY to issue a comf
emplgee benefit plan audit and ii) fees of $159,000 paid to Deloitte Entities related to the reissuance of their consent for th
preferred share exchange offer and issue of a comfort |

(3) Tax fees relate to sengs performed by EY for annual U.S. tax preparation, compliance and filing assistance and certain
ontgoing projects (including oceall advisory).

(4) All other fees relate to services provided by EY other than the services reported in (1), (2), and (3)tebteas for 2016
represented due diligence assistance related to the Aurigen acquisition and specific procedures in relatiofidoreapro
filing related to the redomicile of the parent company from Italy to the Netherlands.

ITEM 16D. EXEMPTIONS FROM THE LISTING STANDARDS FOR AUDIT COMMITTEES

None.

ITEM 16E. PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER AND AFFILIATED PURCHASERS

None.

ITEM 16F. CHANGE I N REGI STRANT6S CERTIFYI NG ACCOUNTANT

There have been no change in certifying accounting during the year ended December 31, 2017. See Item 16C. for details of
change in certifying accountant in 2016 previously disclosed.

ITEM 16G. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to exemptions available under the NYSE listing standards, as PartnerRe is a foreign private issuer and a controlled
company with no common shares listed, we are not required to comply withtadl @frporate governance practices followed by
U.S. domestic filer companies under the NYSE listing standards, which are available at www.nyse.com. Pursuant to Section
303.A.11 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual, we are required to list the significaredifes between our corporate
governance practices and the NYSE standards applicable to listed U.S. companies that are domestic filers. Set foethisieddw is
those significant differences:

A Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee: The NYSE reqhie¢disted companies must have a
nominating/corporate governance committee composed entirely of independent directors and a committee charter detailin
the committeebs purpose and responsibiliti elerBermudalaawn an
and our ByeLaws, we are not required to have, and do not have, a nominating or corporate governance committee.

A Compensation Committee: The NYSE requires that listed companies must have a compensation committee composed
entirely ofindependnt di rectors and a committee charter detailin
performance evaluation of the committee and the rights and responsibilities of the committee with respect to retaining or
obtaining advice from an indepdent adviser. Under Bermuda law and our-Bgess, we are not required to have, and do
not have, a compensation committee.

A Majority of Independent Directors: The NYSE requires that certain listed companies (domestic filers) must have a board o
directorsof at least a majority of independent directors. Under Bermuda law and odraBse we are not required to
have, and do not have, a majority of independent directors.

ITEM 16H. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

PART IlI

ITEM 17. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

See Item 18 of this report.
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ITEM 18. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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PartnerRe Ltd.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars, except parenthetical share data)

December 31,

December 31,

2017 2016
Assets
Investments:
Fixed maturities, at fair value (amortized cost: 2017, $12,480,569; 2016, $13,386,557) $ 12,654,85 $ 13,432,50
Shortterm investments, at fair value (amortized cost: 2017, $4,394; 2016, $21,697) 4,40( 21,69'
Equities, at fair value (cost: 2017, $567,848; 2016, $28,376) 638,59¢ 38,62¢
Investments in real estate 83,09¢ o}
Other invested assets 1,385,25: 1,075,63
Total investments 14,766,21 14,568,46
Funds helddirectly managed (cost: 2017, $429,326; 2016, $510,057) 424,76! 511,32
Cash and cash equivalents 1,772,01, 1,773,32
Accrued investment income 120,80! 112,58
Reinsurance balances receivable 2,724,84. 2,492,06'
Reinsurance recoverable on paid and unpaid losses 828,80 331,70«
Funds held by reinsured companies 801,45: 685,06
Deferred acquisition costs 672,30 597,23
Deposit assets 78,54 74,27
Net tax assets 133,16 194,17(
Goodwill 456,38( 456,38
Intangible assets 160,23 107,09:
Other assets 41,23° 35,10¢
Total assets $ 22,980,76 $ 21,938,79
Liabilities
Non-life reserves $ 9,710,45 $ 8,985,433
Life and health reserves 2,490,47. 1,984,090
Unearned premiums 1,818,99 1,623,79
Other reinsurance balances payable 292,07 281,97.
Deposit liabilities 10,86¢ 15,02¢
Net tax liabilities 154,94 166,11:
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other 302,02: 849,57.
Debt related to senior notes 1,384,82. 1,273,88
Debt related to capital efficient notes 70,98¢ 70,98¢
Total liabilities 16,235,65 15,250,88
Sharehol dersd Equity
Common shares (par value $0.00000001; issued: 100,000,000 shares) o} o}
Preferred shares (par value $1.00; issued and outstanding: 28,169,062 shares; aggregate
liquidation value: $704,227) 28,16¢ 28,16¢
Additional paidin capital 2,396,53I 2,396,53
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (90,287 (74,569
Retained earnings 4,410,69: 4,337,78.
Tot al sharehol dersé equity 6,745,11. 6,687,91.
Tot al l'iabilities and sharehol dersé equi $ 2298076 $ 21,938,79

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PartnerRe Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income
(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Revenues

Gross premiums written

Net premiums written

(Increase) decrease in unearned premiums
Net premiums earned

Net investment income

Net realized and unrealized investment gains (losses)
Other income

Total revenues

Expenses

Lossesand loss expenses

Acquisition costs

Other expenses

Interest expense

Loss on redemption of debt

Amortization of intangible assets

Net foreign exchange losses (gains)

Total expenses

For the year ended

December 31, 2017

December 31, 201¢ December 31, 201

Income before taxes and interest in earnings (losses) of equity methc

investments
Income tax expense

Interest in earnings (losses) of equity method investments

Net income

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net income attributable to PartnerRe Ltd.
Preferred dividends

Loss on redemption of preferred shares

Net income attributable to PartnerRe Ltd. common shareholders

Comprehensive income
Net inmme attributable to PartnerRe Ltd.

Change in currency translation adjustment
Change in unfunded pension obligation, net of tax

Change in unrealized gains or losses on investments, net of tax

Total other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax
Comprehensive income attributable to PartnerRe Ltd.

On March 18, 2016, Exor
considered meaningful and has been excluded.

N .

V.

$ 558789 $ 535694 $ 554752
$ 511992 $ 495347 $  5,22954
(94,949 16,12¢ 39,63
5,024,98 4,969,59 5,269,17!
402,07 410,86« 449,78
232,49:; 26,26t (297,479

15,24; 15,23: 9,14¢
5,674,78) 5,421,95 5,430,62
3,840,98, 3,248,009, 3,157,42|
1,119,77: 1,186,60: 1,217,00:
348,39 471,90! 790,72:
42,50 48,60 48,98

1,56¢ 22,20 3

24, 64¢ 25,91 26,59

108,24« (77,519 9,461
5,486,10' 4,925,80 5,250,18|
188,67! 496,15( 180,43

10,35¢ 25,92 79,66t

85,70 (22,919 6,37t
264,02: 447,30¢ 107,15(
3 3 (2,769

264,02: 447,30¢ 104,38:
46,41¢ 55,04 56,73

3 4,90¢ 3

$ 217,60! $ 387,35 $ 47,64¢
$ 264,02. $ 447,30¢ $ 104,38:
(15,139 12,20: (46,05
(274) (1,909) (2,285)
(309) (1,579 (860)
(15,71) 8,71 (49,200

$ 248,30¢ $ 456,02. $ 55,18:

acquired

100% of

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PartnerRe Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Sharehol der so6
(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars)

For the year ended

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2017 2016 2015

Common shares

Balance at beginning of year $ o $ 87,237 $ 87,231
Cancellation of treasury shares o} (39,087 o}
Cancellation of outstanding common shares o} (48,15%) o}
Balance at end of year o} o} 87,23:
Preferred shares
Balance at beginning of year 28,16¢ 34,15( 34,15(
Redemption of preferred shares o} (5,987 o}
Balance at end of year 28,16¢ 28,16¢ 34,15(
Additional paid-in capital
Balance at beginning of year 2,396,53 3,982,14 3,949,66!
Stock compensation expense, net of taxes paid o} 48,73: 32,48
Reissuance of common shares o] (2,199 o]
Cancellation of treasury shares o} (1,466,36) o}
Cancellation of outstanding common shares o} 48,15t o}
Settlement of stock options and SSARs o} (75,31) o}
Redemption of preferred shares 0 (138,63f) o}
Balance at end of year 2,396,53! 2,396,53! 3,982,14
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Balance at beginning of year (74,569 (83,287 (34,087
Currency translation adjustment
Balance at beginning of year (41,76%) (53,970 (7,915
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment (15,139 6,17t (36,750
Change in designated net investment hedge o} 6,027 (9,305
Balance at end of year (56,909 (41,769 (53,970
Unfunded pension obligation
Balance at beginning of year (33,770 (31,867 (29,576
Change in unfunded pension obligation, net of tax (274 (2,909 (2,285
Balance at end of year (net of tax: 2017, $9,744; 2016, $9,512; 2015
$8,804) (34,049 (33,770 (31,867
Unrealized gain on investments
Balance at beginning of year 96¢ 2,54¢ 3,40¢
Change in unrealized losses on investments, net of tax (303 (1,579 (860)
Balance at end of year (net of tax;: 2017, 2016 and 2015: $nil) 66¢€ 96¢ 2,54¢
Balance at end of year (90,28)) (74,569 (83,287
Retained earnings
Balance at beginning of year 4.337,78 6,146,80: 6,270,81
Net income 264,02: 447 ,30¢ 107,15(
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests o) o} (2,769
Reissuance of common shares o} (17,229 (38,05
Cancellation of treasury shares o} (1,742,71) o}
Dividends on common shares (144,69) (436,43() (133,609
Dividends on preferred shares (46,416 (55,049 (56,735
Loss on redemption of preferred shares o} (4,909) o}
Balance at end of year 4,410,69 4,337,78; 6,146,80:;
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PartnerRe Ltd.

Consolidated Statements of Sharehol der so

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars)

For the year ended

December 31, December 31, December 31,

2017 2016 2015
Common shares held in treasury

Balance at beginning of year o} (3,266,55) (3,258,871
Repurchase of common shares o} 0 (59,26¢)
Reissuance of common shares o} 18,39( 51,58
Cancellation of treasury shares o} 3,248,16: o}
Balance at end of year o} o} (3,266,55)
Total shareholdersé equity attribu$ 6,74511 $ 6,687,991 $ 6,900,50
Noncontrolling interests o} o} 2,45(
Total shareholderso6 equity $ 6,745,111, $ 6,687,91. $ 6,902,95

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PartnerRe Ltd.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars)

For the year ended

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

2017 2016 2015
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 264,02. $ 447,30¢ $ 107,15(
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Amortization of net premium on investments 69,08( 96,40: 93,75¢
Amortization of intangible assets 24,64¢ 25,91¢ 26,59:
Net realized and unrealized investment (gains) losses (232,49) (26,26¢€) 297,47¢
Changes in:
Reinsurance balances, net (84,767 (95,73) (122,86f)
Reinsurance recoverable on paid and unpaid losses, net of ceded premiums [ (481,17) (46,23% 55,17
Funds held by reinsured companies and funds delectly managed 47,38: (59,069 131,71
Deferred acquisition costs (34,827 2,00( (5,789
Net tax assets and liabilities 42,33} (135,15) (105,63
Non-life and life and health reserves 571,90° 214,07: (118,97¢)
Unearned premiums 94,94¢ (16,126 (39,630)
Other net changes in operating assets and liabilities (38,190 38,19¢ (15¢)
Net cash provided by operating activities 242,87t 445,30¢ 318,81:
Cash flows from investing activities
Sales of fixed maturities 12,524,29 12,404,08 7,796,53
Redemptions of fixed maturities 572,63t 595,38: 743,74
Purchases of fixed maturities (12,465,12) (12,704,27) (8,608,28)
Sales and redemptions of shtetm investments 169,55! 148,66! 178,16t
Purchases of shetérm investments (143,859 (124,079 (200,53))
Sales of equities 16,23: 402,48: 1,184,38
Purchases of equities (275,929 (7,119 (647,53
Consideration paid to acquire Aurigen, net of cash acquired (233,23) o d
Other, net (65,757) (749,199 (151,199
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 98,82: (34,05 295,27.
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to common and preferred shareholders (191,109 (491,47) (190,339
Settlement of sharbased awards upon change in control o} (75,53) o}
Issuance of Class B common shébes 11,00( 0 o}
Repurchase of common shares o} o} (71,37¢)
Reissuance of treasury shares, net of taxes o} 10,96¢ 7,99¢
Redemption of preferred shares o} (149,52)) o}
Issuance of senior notes o} 824,00:. o}
Redemption of debt (207,13() (271,96 o}
Distributions to noncontrolling interests o} 0 (55,82()
Net cash used in financing activities (387,239 (153,52) (309,539
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash 44,22¢ (61,507 (40,919
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,31¢) 196,23: 263,62¢
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 1,773,32 1,577,09 1,313,46:
Cash and cash equivalents end of year $ 1,772,01. $ 1,773,320 $ 1,577,09
Supplemental cash flow information:
Taxes paid $ 66,22¢ $ 188,65( $ 220,33
Interest paid $ 40,98¢ $ 46,417 $ 49,25¢

(1) Class B shares are recorded as a liability on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet. See Note 15 for further details.

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PartnerRe Ltd.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization

PartnerRe Ltd. provides reinsurance on a worldwide basis through its princigbl-evoed subsidiaries, including Partner
Reinsurance Company Ltd. (PartnerRe Bermuda), Partner Reinsurance Europe SE (PartnerRe Europe), Partner Reinsurance
Company of the U.S. (PartnerRe U.S.) and Partner Reinsurance Asia Pte. Ltd. (PartnerRe Asfe)riblanreinsured include
agriculture, aviation/space, casualty, catastrophe, energy, engineering, financial risks, marine, motor, multiline,rand.ieope
and health risks include mortality, longevity, and accident and health. Reinsurancenatiaktetisk products include weather and
credit protection to financial, industrial and service companies on a worldwide basis.

PartnerRe Ltd. and it subsidiaries are collectively referred to hereinafter as PartnerRe or the Company.

The Company was incorpated in August 1993 under the laws of Bermuda. The Company commenced operations in
November 1993 upon completion of the sale of common shares and warrants pursuant to subscription agreements and an initial
public offering.

The Company completed the acdgiis of Societe Anonyme Francaise de Reassurances (SAFR, subsequently renamed
PartnerRe SA and reinsurance business transferred into PartnerRe Europe) in 1997, the acquisition of Winterthur Resin 1998, t
acquisition of PARIS RE Holdings Limited (Parig)Rn 2009 and the acquisition of Presidio Reinsurance Group, Inc. (Presidio) in
2012.

On March 18, 2016, following receipt of regulatory approvals, the Company's publicly held common shares were acquired by
Exor N.V,, a subsidiary of EXOR S.p.A.,oneaof E oped6s | eading investment companies
October 2016, Exor N.V. changed its name to EXOR Nederland N.V. In December 2016, EXOR S.p.A. merged with and into EXOI
HOLDING N.V., a newly formed entity organized in the Netheds and, in conjunction with the merger, EXOR HOLDING N.V.
changed its name to EXOR N.V. EXOR N.V. is listed on the Milan Stock Exchange.

As a result of the acquisition, PartnerRe's publicly issued common shares were cancelled and are no longethizaded on
NYSE. The Companyo6s preferred shares continue to be tradec

The Company's common shares (Class A) included in Shareholders' Equity on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016 are owned by EXOR Nederland N.V. (sed Not

On April 3, 2017, after receiving regulatory approvals, the Company completed the acquisition of 100% of the outstanding
ordinary shares of Aurigen Capital Limited (Aurigen), a North American life reinsurance company. This acquisition enables the
Company to expand its life reinsurance footprint in Canada and the U.S. with limited overlap in market coverage (see Note 7).

2. Significant Accounting Policies

T h e Co njoasaligafed Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP). The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Intercomparmaccounts and transactions have been eliminated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of tia¢ stlademments and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. While management believes that the amounts included in the Consolidatec
Financial Statements reflect its best estimates and assumptions, actual results eould diffr om t hose est i mat e:
principal estimates include:

A Nontlife reserves;

Life and health reserves;

Gross and net premiums written and net premiums earned;

Recoverability of deferred acquisition costs;

Recoverability of deferred tax assets;

Valuation of certain investments that are measured using significant unobservable inputs; and
Valuation of goodwill and intangible assets.

To o Do Do o o
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The following are the Companyds significant accounting

(a) Premiums

Gross premiums written and earned are based upon report
own estimates of premiums written and earned for which ceding company reports have not been received. The determination of
premiumestmhes requires a review of the Companyds experience w
the characteristics of each |line of business and maagiagemer
business wrien and ceded to the Company. Premium estimates are updated as new information is received from cedants and
differences between such estimates and actual amounts are recorded in the period in which the estimates are changald or the ac
amounts are deteined. Net premiums written and earned are presented net of ceded premiums, which represent the cost of
retrocessional protection purchased by the Company. Premiums are earned on a basis that is consistent with the rishkdesovered
the terms of the reimgance contracts, which is generally one to two years. For U.S. and European wind and certain other risks,
premiums are earned commensurate with the seasonality of the underlying exposure. Reinstatement premiums are recognized as
written and earned at tliene a loss event occurs, where coverage limits for the remaining life of the contract are reinstated under
predef i ned contract terms. The accrual of reinstatement pre
associated with thiess event. Unearned premiums represent the portion of premiums written which is applicable to the unexpired
risks under contracts in force.

Premiums related to individual life and annuity business are recorded over the preawing period on the undeihg
policies. Premiums on annuity and universal life contracts for which there is no significant mortality or critical Bkess ri
accounted for in a manner consistent with accounting for intbesstng financial instruments and are not reportegenues, but
rather as direct deposits to the contract. Amounts assessed against annuity and universal life policyholders are 1eoeggined a
in the period assessed.

(b) Losses and Loss Expenses

The reserves for nelife business include amounts dahined from loss reports on individual treaties (case reserves),
additional case reserves when the Companyés | oss estsi mat e
incurred but not yet reported to the Company (IBNR). Suchvesearre estimated by management based upon reports received
from ceding compani es, suppl emented by the Companyds own ¢
have not been received, and based. ofiotthlee Coxmpamty 6shatwnt he s
experience is inadequate for estimating reserves, such estimates may be determined based upon industry experience and
management 6s judgment. The esti mat e stynaybeinexcasdol, or less thanyther e v i €
amounts provided. Any adjustments are reflected in the per
operating results in future periods.

The life and health reserves have been establishestihgpon information reported by ceding companies, supplemented by
the Companyés actuarial estimates, which for | ifeméwthl ude
appropriate provision to reflect uncertainty. Futurégydenefit reserves for annuity and universal life contracts are carried at their
accumulated values. Reserves for policy claims and benefits include both mortality and critical illness claims in thef process
settlement, and claims that have been ireibut not yet reported.

The Company purchases retrocessional contracts to reduce its exposure to risk of losses on reinsurance assumed. Reinsure
recoverable on paid and unpaid losses involves actuarial estimates consistent with those used tthestalisiated liabilities
for nonlife and life and health reserves.

(c) Deferred Acquisition Costs

Acquisition costs, comprising incremental brokerage fees, commissions and excise taxes, which vary directly with, and are
related to, the acquisition ofinsurance contracts, are capitalized and charged to expense as the related premium is earned. All oth
acquisition related costs, including indirect costs, are expensed as incurred.

Acquisition costs related to individual life and annuity contracts eferced and amortized over the premipaying periods
in proportion to anticipated premium income, allowing for lapses, terminations and anticipated investment income. Acgsisition
related to universal life and single premium annuity contracts fazhwthiere is no significant mortality or critical iliness risk are
deferred and amortized over the lives of the contracts as a percentage of the estimated gross profits expected tmbdhealized
contracts.

The Company establishes a premium deficiency reserve to the extent the deferred acquisition costs are insufficient to cover
the excess of expected losses and loss expenses, settlement costs and deferred acquisition costs over the relatesnimm@atned pr
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Actual and anticipated losses and loss expenses, other costs, and investment income related to underlying premiums are
considered in determining the recover ab i-duratiorycontrdcts. daulandr e d ¢
anticipated loss experience, together with the present value of future gross premiums, the present value of future benefits, and
settlement and maintenance costs are considered in determining the recoverability of deferred acquisition costs eelated to th
Compay 6s Life business.

(d) Funds Held by Reinsured Companies (Cedants)

The Company writes certain business on a funds held basis. Under such contractual arrangements, the cedant retains the
premiums that would have otherwise been paid to the Company andrtipa@pearns interest on these funds. The Company
generally earns investment income on the funds held balances based upon a predetermined interest rate, either fixally ebntractu
the inception of the contract or based upon a recognized index (e.g. LIBlO®ever, in certain circumstances, the Company may
receive an investment return based upon either the result of a pool of assets held by the cedant, generally usetize ttwlatera
funds held balance, or the investment return earned by the ced#entire investment portfolio. In these arrangements, gross
investment returns are typically reflected in net investment income with a corresponding increase or decrease (nef)dfergprea
recorded in |l osses and | olslated StatgmenisofeOperatians. lin these arangemants ythie ComPany s
is exposed, to a limited extent, to the underlying credit risk of the pool of assets inasmuch as the underlying lifmaypliaes
guaranteed minimum returns. In such cases, an erabatitivative exists and its fair value is recorded by the Company as an
increase or decrease to the funds held balance.

(e) Deposit Assets and Liabilities

In the normal course of its operations, the Company writes certain contracts that do not maetrdnesfer provisions of
U.S. GAAP. While these contracts do not meet risk transfer provisions for accounting purposes, there is a remotethassitality
Company will suffer a loss. The Company accounts for these contracts using the deposit acowihtid, originally recording
deposit liabilities for an amount equivalent to the consideration received. The consideration to be retained by the Company,
irrespective of the experience of the contracts, is earned over the expected settlement pericahtfttts, with any unearned
portion recorded as a component of deposit liabilities. Actuarial studies are used to estimate the final liabilitiesasdentitacts
and the appropriate accretion rates to increase or decrease the liabilities osen thiethe contracts. The change for the period is
recorded in other income or loss in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Under some of these contracts, cedants retain the assets on-adlthdasis. In those cases, the Company records those
ass¢s as deposit assets and records the related income in net investment income in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

(f) Investments

The Company elects the fair value option for its fixed maturities, $&iort investments, equities and certain otheested
assets (except for those that are accounted for using the cost or equity methods of accounting). All changes in theffair valu
investments are recorded in net realized and unrealized investment gains or losses in the Consolidated St&iperatitmef
The Company defines fair value as the price received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderbynitzetsaxtin
market participants at the measurement date. The Company measures the fair value of financial instaordintsta a fair value
hi erarchy that prioritizes the information used t cognime asur e
transfers between the hierarchy levels at the beginning of the period.

Shortterm investments comige securities with a maturity greater than three months but less than one year from the date of
purchase.

Investments in real estate are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Real estate assets held for investment are
reviewed for impairment déast annually, or more frequently when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value
may not be recoverable and exceeds its estimated fair value.

Other invested assets consist primarily of investments irpablicly traded companies, pdte placement equity and fixed
maturity investments, corporate loans, derivative financial instruments and other specialty asset clagadsidNamnaded entities
in which the Company has significant influence, including an ownership of more thaar2Diéss than 50% of the voting shares,
and limited partnerships in which the Company has more than a minor interest (typically more than 3 to 5%), are accounted for
using either the equity method or the fair value option. Corporate loans are recordethefiaie value option. The remaining
other invested assets are recorded at fair value or cost depending on the nature of the assets. The valuation tecbgithees used
Company are generally commensurate with standard valuation techniques for eaclassset

Net investment income includes interest and dividend income, amortization of premiums and discounts on fixed maturities
and shorterm investments, rental income on investments in real estate as well as investment income on funds held amtil funds hel
directly managed, and is net of investment expenses and withholding taxes. Investment income is recognized when eseded. Reali
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gains or losses on the disposal of investments are determined orirg first-out basis. Investment purchases and sales
recorded on a tradgate basis.

(g) Funds Held Directly Managed

The Company elects the fair value option for substantially all of the fixed maturitiestestmiinvestments and certain other
invested assets in the segregated investment portfolialyimdethe funds heltdirectly managed account. Accordingly, all changes
in the fair value of the segregated investment portfolio underlying the funddhelttly managed account are recorded in net
realized and unrealized investment gains or lossd®ibnsolidated Statements of Operations.

(h) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are carried at fair value and include fixed income securities that, from the date of purchase, haye a maturi
of three months or less.

(i) Business Combinations

The Gmpany accounts for transactions in which it obtains control over one or more businesses using the acquisition methoc
The purchase price is allocated to identifiable assets and liabilities, including any intangible assets, based onateeirfaistim
value at the acquisition date. The estimates of fair values for assets and liabilities acquired are determined basedmarketrious
and income analyses and appraisals. Any excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquiredss recorded
goodwi | | in the Companyébés Consolidated Bal ance Sheedhase whi
price is recorded as a gain in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. All costs associated with an acquigidopet@gx
incurred.

() Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired in a business.combinatiol
The Company assesses the appropriateness of its valuation of goodwill on at least an asrarahbasifrequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If, as a result of the assessmgautythe Com
determines that the value of its goodwill is impaired, goodwill will be written down ipéhied in which the determination is
made. In 2016, the Company changed its annual impairment testing date from September 30 to December 31, primarily due to the
key inputs and assumptions used to assess the fair value of reporting units being bas€domthea ny 6 s annual bus
which is approved by the Board in November each year.

(k) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets represent the fair value adjustments related-lifen@serves, fair value of life business acquired, fair
values of nodife renewal rights and customer relationships and U.S. licenses arising from acquisitions.-Dedthitetangible
assets are amortized over their useful lives and the amortization expense is recorded in the Consolidated Statemamaf Operat
Indefinite-lived intangible assets are not subject to amortization. The carrying values of indigkdit@tangible assets are
reviewed for indicators of impairment on at least an annual basis or more frequently if events or changes in circurdgtatees in
that inpairment may exist. In 2016, the Company changed its annual impairment testing date from October 1 to December 31 to
align with the goodwill impairment testing date. Impairment is recognized if the carrying values of the intangible assets are
recoverake from their undiscounted cash flows and is measured as the difference between the carrying value and the fair value.

() Income Taxes

Certain subsidiaries and branches of the Company operate in jurisdictions where they are subject to taxationdCurrent an
deferred income taxes are charged or credited to net income or loss or, in certain cases, to accumulated other coinpmhensive
or loss, based upon enacted tax laws and rates applicable in the relevant jurisdiction in the period in which timeegsx beco
accruable or realizable. Deferred income taxes are provided for all temporary differences between the bases of abgiimssand lia
used in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and thosaesamentd i n
indicates that it is more likely than not that deferred tax assets will not be realized, a valuation allowance is resinsti¢ideag
deferred tax assets.

The Company recognizes a tax benefit relating to uncertain tax positions only wherettbe {gosore likely than not to be
sustained assuming examination by tax authorities. A liability is recognized for any tax benefit (along with any intpessilgnd
if applicable) claimed in a tax return in excess of the amount recognized in theidiretatements under U.S. GAAP. Any changes
in amounts recognized are recorded in the period in which they are determined.

(m) Translation of Foreign Currencies
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The reporting currency of the Company is the U.S. doll a
are generally their functional currencies, except for the
subsidary and branches, whose functional currency is the U.S. dollar. In translating the financial statements of those sulrsidiarie
branches whose functional currency is other than the U.S. dollar, assets and liabilities are converted into U.S. ddharsatismn
of exchange in effect at the balance sheet dates, and revenues and expenses are converted using the average foredd@sexchange
for the period. The effect of translation adjustments are reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets aganstatay
adjustment, a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss.

In recording foreign currency transactions, revenue and expense items are converted into the functional currency at the
average rates of exchange for the perfsbets and liabilities originating in currencies other than the functional currency are
translated into the functional currency at the rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet dates. The resulérghangign
gains or losses are includedriat foreign exchange gains or losses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company
also records realized and unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses on certain hedged items in net foreign exchalogsamins o
in the Consolidated Statemts of Operations (see Note 2(n)).

(n) Derivatives

The Companyds derivative instruments are recorded in th
value recognized in either net foreign exchange gains or losses or net realipedeatided investment gains or losses in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations or accumulated other comprehensive income or loss in the Consolidated Balance Sheets,
depending on the nature of the derivative instrument.

Derivatives Used in Hedging Acities

The Company utilizes derivative financial instruments as part of its overall currency risk management strategy. The Compan!
recognizes all derivative financial instruments, including embedded derivative instruments, as either assets orridlhdities i
Consolidated Balance Sheets and measures those instruments at fair value. On the date the Company enters into a derivative
contract, management designates whether the derivative is to be used as a hedge of an identified underlying exposateda desig
hedye). The accounting for gains and losses associated with changes in the fair value of a derivative and the effect on the
Consolidated Financial Statements depends on its hedge designation and whether the hedge is highly effective in achieving
offsetting clanges in the fair value of the asset or liability being hedged.

The derivatives employed by the Company to hedge currency exposure related to fixed income securities and other
reinsurance assets and liabilities are not designated as hedges. The chiaigeslie of these derivatives not designated as
hedges are recognized in Net foreign exchange gains or losses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

As part of its overall strategy to manage its level of currency exposure, from time to timentpargaises forward foreign
exchange derivatives to hedge or partially hedge the net investment in certain subsidiaries and branches whose fueotiasal cur
are not the U.S. dollar. These derivatives are designated as net investment hedges, andlgdberdianges in fair value of the
derivative and the hedged item related to foreign currency are recognized in currency translation adjustment in thegdonsolida
Balance Sheets. The Company also uses, from time to time, interest rate derivativigmte exiposure to interest rate volatility.

The Company formally documents all relationships between designated hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as it
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactionsldauimsntation, the Company
specifically identifies the asset or liability that has been designated as a hedged item and states how the hedgirtgsnstrumen
expected to hedge the risks related to the hedged item. The Company formally measures effecfiitertesignated hedging
relationships both at the hedge inception and on an ongoing basis. The Company assesses the effectiveness of itsedgsignated h
using the periodo-period dollar offset method on an individual currency basis. If the rataregat with this method is within the
range of 80% to 125%, the Company considers the hedge effective. The time value component of the designated net investment
hedges is included in the assessment of hedge effectiveness.

The Company will discontinue hedgecounting prospectively if it is determined that the derivative is no longer effective in
offsetting changes in the fair value of a hedged item. To the extent that the Company discontinues hedge accountingsreketted t
investment in subsidiariesabdr anches whose functional currencies are not
assessment, the derivative no longer qualifies as an effective hedge, the derivative will continue to be carried irflitteggdonso
Balance Sheets at its fairlua, with changes in its fair value recognized in Net foreign exchange gains or losses in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

Other Derivatives

The Companyds investment strategy all ows fions.THheR@mpange of
utilizes various derivative instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts, foreign currency option contracts, future
contracts, tebe-announced mortgageacked securities (TBAS) and credit default swaps for the purpose of mgoagirall
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currency risk, market exposures and portfolio duration, for hedging certain investments, or for enhancing investmemgeerforma
that would be all owed under the Companyds invest mdeddtfaipol i c
value as assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Changes in fair value are included in net realeadzatd un
investment gains or losses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, except changes in the fdwreddumecofrency option
contracts and foreign exchange forward contracts which are included in net foreign exchange gains or losses in thee@onsolidat
Statements of Operations. Margin balances required by counterparties, which are equal to a pert¢betagel eflue of open

futures contracts, are included in cash and cash equivalents.

The Company enters from time to time into weather and longevity related transactions that are structured as derivdttives, whi
are recorded at fair value with the chasmgefair value reported in net realized and unrealized investment gains or losses in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The Company enters from time to time into total return and interest rate swaps. Margins related to these swaps anme included
other income or loss in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and any changes in the fair value of the swaps amenatcluded
realized and unrealized investment gains or losses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

(o) Pensions

The Companyecognizes an asset or a liability in the Consolidated Balance Sheets for the funded status of its defined benefit
plans that are overfunded or underfunded, respectively, measured as the difference between the fair value of plathessets and
pension obligtion andrecognizes changes in the funded status of defined benefit plans in the year in which the changes occur as &
component of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss, net of tax.

(p) Variable Interest Entities

The Company is involved in the moal course of business with variable interest entities (VIES). An assessment is performed
as of the date the Company becomes initially involved in the VIE followed by a reassessment upon certain events selated to it
involvement in the VIE. The Companymgolidates a VIE when it is the primary beneficiary having a controlling financial interest
as a result of having the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the economic performance ofriti¢nNélE a
obligation to absorb losses, ight to receive benefits, that could potentially be significant to the VIE.

(g) Segment Reporting

Effective July 1, 2016, the Company monitors the performance of its operations in three segments: Property & Casualty
(P&C), Specialty, and Life and Healtphréviously Nonrlife, Life and Health, and Corporate and Other). Segments represent markets
that are reasonably homogeneous in terms of client types, buying patterns, underlying risk patterns or approach tcerisntanag

Since the Company does not mgedts assets by segment, net investment income is not allocated to the P&C and Specialty
segments. However, because of the intesestn s i t i ve nature of some of the Companyé6
i ncome i s consi de essnientiofithe pnafitakdlity ef the Lifé abvd Healte segment. The following items are not
considered in evaluating the results of the P&C, Specialty and Life and Health segments: net realized and unrealized investme
gains or losses, interest expense, ssedemption of debt, amortization of intangible assets, net foreign exchange gains or losses,
income tax expense or benefit and interest in earnings and losses of equity method investments. These items ardhiecluded in
Corporate and Other componewmthi ch i s comprised of the Companydés i nvest me
expenses.

(r) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2017, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued updated guidance on accounting for hedging
activities. This update expands and refines hedge accounting for both nonfinancial and financial risk components and aligns the
recognition and presentation of the effects of the hedging instrument and the hedged item in the financial statements. The
amendmentalso make certain targeted improvements to simplify the application of hedge accounting guidance and ease the
administrative burden of hedge documentation requirements and for assessing hedge effectiveness. The guidance is effective fo
annual periods bégning after December 15, 2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact
of the adoption of this guidance on its Consolidated Financial Statements and disclosures.

In April 2017, the FASB issued updated guidance oratt®unting for goodwill impairment. This update removes the second
step of the goodwill impairment test and requires entities to apply-atepejuantitative test and record the amount of goodwill
impairment as the excess of a reporting unit's carryinguatover its fair value, not to exceed the total amount of goodwiill
allocated to the reporting unit. The new guidance does not amend the optional qualitative assessment of goodwill ifipairment.
guidance is effective for annual impairment tests perfdrafeer December 15, 2019, with early adoption permitted. The Company
does not expect the adoption of this guidance to have a significant impact on its Consolidated Financial Statemerasunes.discl
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In March 2017, the FASB issued updated guidance on presentation of net periodic pension cost and net periodic
postretirement benefit cost. This update requires that an employer report the service cost component in the sameitie@stem or
as other compesation costs arising from services rendered by the employees during the period. It also requires the other
components of net periodic pension cost and net periodic postretirement benefit cost to be presented in income sepahately fro
service cost congnent. Additionally, only the service cost component is eligible for capitalization, when applicable. The guidance
is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently
evaluating the imact of the adoption of this guidance on its Consolidated Financial Statements and disclosures.

In February 2016, the FASB issued updated guidance on the accounting for leases. This update requires the recognition of
lease assets and lease liabilities ®pées for those leases classified as operating leases under previous guidance and expands
required disclosures. The guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018, with early adoption
permitted. The Company is currently evalngtihe impact of the adoption of this guidance on its Consolidated Financial
Statements and disclosures.

In August 2016, the FASB issued updated guidance on the classification of certain cash receipts and physepdate
addresses the presentatiol &lassification of certain cash receipts and cash payments in the statement of cash flows. The guidance
effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2017, with early adoption permitted. The adoption of thisfguttanear
endedDee mber 31, 2018 is not expected to have a significant

In October 2016, the FASB issued updated guidance on income taxes with respecetttitgtteansfers of assets. This update
requires recogtion of the income tax consequences of an iatréty transfer of an asset, other than inventory, when the transfer occurs.
The guidance is effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2017, with early adoption permitted. The &daigtion o
gui dance for the year ended December 31, 2018 is notncielxpec
Statements.

3. Fair Value

(a) Fair Value of Financial Instrument Assets

The fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value by maximizing the use of
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be used when
available.Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability based on market data
obtained from sources independent of the Company. Unobser
about what marketarticipants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best information available in the
circumstances. The level in the hierarchy within which a given fair value measurement falls is determined based on the lowest
level input that is sigficant to the measurement.

The Company determines the appropriate level in the hierarchy for each financial instrument that it measures at fair value.
In determining fair value, the Company uses various valuation approaches, including market, incorseaputa@aches. The
hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the observability of inputs as follows:

A Level 1 inputé Unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the
ability to access.

The@ mpanyés financi al instruments that it measures at
listed on a major exchange and exchange traded derivatives, including futures that are actively traded.

A Level 2 inputé Quoted prices in active ankets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices for identical or similar
assets or liabilities in inactive markets and significant directly or indirectly observable inputs, other than quoted
prices, used in industry accepted models.

T h e Co mpanciayiissuménts that it measures at fair value using Level 2 inputs generally include: U.S.
government issued bonds; U.S. government sponsored enterprises bonds; U.S. state, territory and municipal entities
bonds; noAJ.S. sovereign government, supaional and government related bonds; investment grade and high

yield corporate bonds; asdaticked securities; mortgatpacked securities; shetrm investments; certain common

and preferred equities; notes and loans receivable; foreign exchange foowtetts and ovehe-counter

derivatives such as foreign currency option contracts, interest rate swaps and TBAs.

A Level 3 inputd Unobservable inputs.

The Companyo6s financi al i nstruments that it measures
traded fixed maturities including U.S. state, territory and municipal bonds; special purpose financibgaesbt
bonds; unlisted or prate equities; certain other mutual fund or exchange traded fund equities; privately placed
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corporate loans, notes and loan receivables and notes securitizations included in other investaddassetsn
other derivatives, including inactively tradegather derivatives, longevity insuraragked securities and total
return swaps included in other invested assets.

The Company6s financi al i nstruments measured at fair v
underlying the fundield directly managed account (see Notes 5 and 6). At Dece3nhey 2017 and 2016, t he
financial instruments measured at fair value were classified between Levels 1, 2 and 3 as follows (in thousands ofg).S. dolla
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Quoted pricesin Significant Significant

activemarketsfor  other observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
December 31, 2017 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Fixed maturities
U.S. government and government sponsored enterp $ 0 $ 220596 $ 0 $ 2,205,96
U.S. states, territories and municipalities o} 561,50! 128,80t 690,31:
Non-U.S. sovereign government, supranational and
government related o} 1,750,771 ) 1,750,77
Corporate bonds o} 6,128,63 o} 6,128,63
Assetbacked securities o} 30,96 20,73¢ 51,70
Residential mortgagbacked securities o} 1,822,72! o} 1,822,72!
Other mortgagdvacked securities o) 4,75( o] 4,75(
Fixed maturities $ 0 $ 12,505,31 $ 149,54 $ 12,654,85
Shortterm investments $ 0o $ 4400 $ o $ 4,40(
Equities
Finance $ 11,11F $ 1$ 2192¢ $ 33,04:
Industrials 16,53¢ o} o} 16,53¢
Technology 1,99( o} 10,96: 12,95
Insurance o} 7,55¢ o} 7,55¢
Communications 3,21¢ o} 0 3,21¢
Consumer cyclical 2,17( o} o} 2,17(
Consumer noncyclical 897 o} 0 897
Other 3,49: o} o} 3,49
Mutual funds and exchange traded funds 0 0 558,73t 558,73t
Equities $ 39,41 $ 7,55¢ $ 591,62: $  638,59¢
Other invested assets
Derivative assets
Foreign exchange forward contracts $ o $ 8,55¢ $ o $ 8,55¢
Futures contracts 3,36 o} o} 3,36
Insurancdinked securities o} o} 11,98¢ 11,98¢
Total return swaps o} o} 2,50¢ 2,50¢
TBAs 0 391 0 391
Other
Corporate loans o} 0 205,33: 205,33:
Notes and loan receivables and notes securitiza o} 3,42¢ 108,56: 111,98t
Private equities o} 0 331,93. 331,93:
Derivative liabilities
Foreign exchange forward contracts o} (20,329 o} (20,329
Total return swaps o} o} (3,269 (3,269
Interest rate swaps o} (12,299 o} (12,299
TBAs 0 (597 0 (597
Other invested assets $ 3,367 $ (20,845 $ 657,04 $  639,57.

Funds helddirectly managed

U.S. government and government sponsored enterp $ o $ 161,02: $ o $ 161,02:

Non-U.S. sovereign government, supranational and

government related o} 95,81 o} 95,81

Corporate bonds o] 41,09( o} 41,09(

Shortterm investments o} 452 o} 458

Other invested assets 0 0 2,06 2,06
Funds helddirectly managed $ o $ 298,37¢ $ 2,067 $ 300,44!
Total $ 42,78 $ 12,794,81 $1,400,28 $ 14,237,87
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Quoted pricesin

Significant other

Significant

active markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
December 31, 2016 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Fixed maturities
U.S. government and government sponsored enterpr $ 0 $ 354143 $ 0 $ 354143
U.S. states, territories and municipalities o} 560,72¢ 123,82° 684,55!
Non-U.S. sovereign government, supranational and
government related ) 1,136,03 o} 1,136,03
Corporate o} 5,705,52; o} 5,705,52.
Assetbacked securities o} 24,70¢ 99,35 124,06(
Residential mortgagbacked securities o) 2,240,89 o} 2,240,89
Fixed maturities $ 0 $ 13,209,32 $ 223,17¢ $13,432,50
Shortterm investments $ o $ 21,697 $ o $ 21,697
Equities
Finance $ 97% $ 496( $ 20,93¢ $ 26,867
Technology o} o} 9,80( 9,80(
Insurance o} 1,80( o} 1,80(
Consumer noncyclical 6 o} o} 6
Mutual funds and exchange traded funds fo) fo) 153 153
Equities $ 97¢ $ 6,76 $ 30,88 $ 38,62¢
Other invested assets
Derivative assets
Foreign exchange forward contracts $ 0o $ 5,26 $ o $ 5,26%
Insurancdinked securities o} o} 10,13( 10,13(
Total return swaps o} o} 1,98¢ 1,98¢
TBAs o) 1,36¢ o} 1,36¢
Other
Notes and loan receivables and notes securitizat o} 1,50(C 141,69: 143,19:
Private equities o} o} 305,72¢ 305,72¢
Derivative liabilities
Foreign exchange forward contracts o} (7,149 o} (7,142
Insurancdinked securities o} o} (97 (97
Total return swaps o} o} (3,217) (3,217
Interest rate swaps o} (13,4079 o} (13,409
TBAs fo) (18E) o) (18E)
Other invested assets $ 0 $ (12,599 $ 456,22° $ 443,62
Funds held directly managed
U.S. government and government sponsored enterpr $ o $ 171,97 $ o $ 171,97
NontU.S. sovereign government, supranational and
government related o 104,51: o) 104,51:
Corporate bonds 0 71,36¢ o} 71,36
Shortterm investments o} 1,60z o} 1,60:
Other invested assets 0 0 4,54( 4,54(
Funds helddirectly managed $ o $ 349,45 $ 4,54C $ 353,99
Total $ 97¢ $ 13,574,63 $ 714,83. $ 14,290,44

The increase in equities at December 31, 2017 compared to December 31, 2016 was primarilyp80@ toilion
investment in two Exor managed public equity funds (see Note 19). The increase in other assets at December 31, 2017
compared to December 31, 2016 was primarily due to a $207 million investment in privately placed corporate loans.

At Decembel, 2017 and 2016, the aggregate carrying amounts of items included in Other invested assets that the

Company did not measur e

at

f ai

r

val ue

wer e

$746

investments that are accounted feing the cost method of accounting or equity method of accounting.

mi |1

i on

In addition to the investments underlying the funds hditeictly managed account held at fair value of $300 million and

$354 million at Decembedl, 2017 and 2016, respectively, the fuhdkl directly managed account also included cash and

cash equivalents, carried at fair value, of $74 million and $76 million, respectively, and accrued investment income of $3
million and $4 million, respectively. At Decemb&t, 2017 and 2016, the aggrégaarrying amounts of items included in the
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funds heldl directly managed account that the Company did not measure at fair value were $47 million and $77 million,
respectively, which primarily related to other assets and liabilities held by Colisée Rd telétie underlying business, which

are carried at cost (see Note 5).

At Decembe1, 2017 and 2016, substantially all of the accrued investment income in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
i n v e betfunds helidirecdlym@dnaget a&ccounnhfer evtich tneefairt s

relate to the
value option was elected.

Companyo6s

During the years ended DecemiBdr, 2017 and 2016, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2.

Disclosures about the fair value of financial instruments that timep@ny does not measure at fair value exclude
insurance contracts and certain other financial instruments. At Dec8hkigd17 and 2016, the fair values of financial
instrument assets recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets not described aboveaapphexi carrying values.

The reconciliations of the beginning and ending balances for all financial instruments measured at fair value using Level

3 inputs for the years ended DecemB&r 2017 and 2016, were as follows (in thousands of U.S. dollars):

Change in
Realizedand unrealized
unrealized Net investment
investment transfers gains (losses)
gains (losses, Purchases Settlements into Balance relating to
For the year ended included in and an (out of) at end of assetsheld at
December 31, 2017 netincome issuances? sales? Level 3 year end of year
Fixed maturities
U.S. states, territories and
municipalities $ 123,82 $ 5,80/ $ o $ (82%) $ 0 $ 128,80t $ 5,80¢
Assetbacked securities 3,30( 1,36( (83,279 o) 20,73¢ 1,31¢
Fixed maturities $ 223,17¢ $ 9,10¢ $ 1,36( $ (84,099 $ 0 $ 14954 % 7,12
Equities
Finance $ 2093¢ $ 99z % o $ o $ 0 $ 2192¢ % 992
Technology 1,611 o) (450 o) 10,96: 1,611
Mutual funds and exchanc
traded funds 51,47¢ 507,25( (143 o] 558,73t 51,48¢
Equities $ 30,880 $ 54,07¢ $507,25( $ (599 $ 0 $ 591,620 $ 54,08¢
Other invested assets
Derivatives, net $ $ 5977 $ 1,79: $ (5359) % o $ 1122: $ 3,231
Corporate loans (70¢)  206,70( (660) o} 205,33: (695)
Notes and loan receivable
and notes securitization 2,74¢ 2,04( (37,919 o) 108,56 6,977
Private equities 29,94 17,57 (21,31) o] 331,93 27,53¢
Other invested assets $ 456,22° $ 37,95« $ 228,10 $ (65,239 $ 0 $ 657,04 $ 37,04¢
Funds helddirectly managed $ $ (51¢) $ 49t $ (2,459 $ o $ 2,067 % (629
Total $ 714,83. $ 100,62. $ 737,21( $ (152,38) $ 6 $1,400,28 $ 97,62¢
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(1) Purchases and issuances of derivatives include issuan&2snoillion.
(2) Settlements and sales of equities include salé4 aiillion.

Change in
Realizedand unrealized
unrealized investment
investment Net (losses) gains
Balance at  (losses) gains Purchases  Settlements transfers Balance relating to
For the year ended beginning included in and and into (out of) atend of  assetsheld at
December 31, 2016 of year netincome issuances? sales? Level 3 year end of year

Fixed maturities
U.S. stats, territories and

municipalities $ 138,84 $ (14,240 $ o $ (780) $ 0 $ 12382 $ (14,24()

Assetbacked securities 369,69¢ 21 191,04¢ (461,41) o} 99,35! (4,629
Fixed maturities $ 508,54t $ (14,219 $ 191,04¢ $ (462,19) $ 0 $ 223,17 $ (18,869
Equities

Finance $ 22,76( $ 3,43t $ 0 $ (B,269) % 0 $ 2093 $ 3,211

Technology 8,207 1,14: 45( o} o} 9,80( 1,14

Communications 1,98t 20¢ o} (2,199 o} o} 55

Mutual funds and exchanc

traded funds 4,60¢ (242) o} (4,209 o} i3 14
Equities $ 37,55t % 4,54t $ 45C $ (11,667 $ o $ 3088 $ 4,42:
Other invested assets

Derivatives, net $ 5351 % (33193% 2,25¢ $ 451z $ o $ 880t $ (1,779

Notes and loan receivable

and notes securitization 125,92. 2,59¢ 71,82¢ (58,65¢) o} 141,69: 2,27¢

Annuities and residuals 8,43¢ 262 o} (8,699 o} o} o}

Private equities 71,29¢ 6,76¢  236,02: (8,35%) o} 305,72 2,827
Other invested assets $ 211,00 $ 6,311 $ 310,10¢ $ (71,19) $ 0 $456,22° % 3,33
Funds helddirectly managed $ 10,14¢ $ 1,69 $ 1,011 $ (8,31H) $ 0 $ 454 % 1,67¢
Total $ 767,25 $ (1,662 $ 502,61 $ (553,37¢) $ 0 $71483. $ (9,439

(1) There were no issuances included in the purchases and issuances amounts above.
(2) Settlements and sales of fixed maturities, equities, other invested assets and fligiettbldnanaged include sales of
$276 million, $12 million, $43 million and $8 million, respectively.
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The significant unobservable inputs used in the valuatiomaféial instruments measured at fair value using Level 3
inputs at Decembed1, 2017 and 2016 were as follows (fair value in thousands of U.S. dollars):

Range

December 31, 2017 Fair value

Valuation techniques

Unobservableinputs

(Weighted average)

Fixed maturities

U.S. states, territories ant $ 128,80t Discountedcashflow Credit spreads 0.2% 71 10.2% (4.7%)
municipalities
Assetbacked securities 20,73¢ Discounted cash flov Credit spreads 4.7% (4.7%)
Equities
Finance 21,92¢ Weighted market Netincomemultiple 16.7 (16.7)
comparables Tangiblebookvaluemultiple 2.0 (2.0)
Liquidity discount 25.0% (25.0%)
Comparable return 4.1% (4.1%)
Technology 10,96: Relported market Tangible book value multipl 100.0% (100.0%)
value
Other invested assets
Total return swaps, net (764) Discounted cash flov Credit spreads 2.4%7 30.8% (18.5%)
Insuranceinked securities 11,96: Discounted cash flov Credit spreads 1.7% (1.7%)
1 longevity swaps
Notesand loan receivable 102,90° Discounted cash flov Credit spreads 3.9% 1 39.3% (6.1%)
Notes and loan receivabli 4,26% Discounted cash flov Credit spreads 17.5% (17.5%)
Gross revenue/fair value 1.1(1.2)
Notes securitization 1,391 Discounted cash flov Credit spreads 1.5% (1.5%)
Private equity direct 3,011 Discounted cash flov Tangible book value multipl 0.8 (0.8)
and market muitiples Recoverability of intangible
assets 0% (0%)
Private equity funds 12,55¢ Reported market Net asset value, as reporte: 100.0% (100.0%)
value Market adjustments -0.7% (-0.7%)
Private equityi other 24,24. Discounted cash flov Effective yield 3.8% (3.8%)
Funds helddirectly managec
Other invested assets 2,067 Reported market Net asset value, as reportel 100.0% (100.0%)

value
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December 31, 2016

Fair value

Valuation techniques

Unobservable inputs

Range
(Weighted average)

Fixed maturities

U.S. states, territories anc $ 123,82

municipalities

Assetbacked securities
Equities

Finance

Technology

Other invested assets
Total return swaps, net

Insuranceinked securities
1 longevity swaps

Notesand loan receivable
Notes and loan receivable

Notes securitization
Private equityi direct

Private equity funds

Private equityi other
Fundsheld directly managed

Other invested assets

99,35:

20,93¢

9,80(

(1,225)
9,21¢

131,17t
8,95:

1,56¢
5,01¢

11,06

29,94¢

4,54(

Discountedcashflow

Discounted cash flov

Weighted market
comparables

Reported market
value

Discounted cash flov
Discounted cash flov

Discounted cash flov
Discounted cash flov

Discounted cash flov

Discounted cash flov
and weighted marke!
comparables

Reported market
value

Discounted cash flov

Reported market
value

Credit spreads

Credit spreads

Netincomemultiple
Tangiblebookvaluemultiple
Liquidity discount
Comparable return

Tangible book value multiple

Credit spreads
Credit spreads

Credit spreads

Credit spreads

Gross revenue/fair value
Credit spreads

Net income multiple
Tangible book value multiple

Recoverability of intangible
assets

Net asset value, as reportec
Market adjustments
Effective yield

Net asset value, as reportec
Market adjustments

1.5%i 10.5% (6.3%)

4.1%i 18.5% (14.9%

20.3 (20.3)
1.9 (1.9)
25.0% (25.0%
36.9% (36.9%

100.0% (100.0%

2.9%7 29.4% (19.3%
2.6% (2.6%)

4.2%i 24.4% (5.2%
17.5% (17.5%

1.2 (1.2)

3.3% (3.3%)

8.6 (8.6)

2.0 (2.0)

0% (0%)

100.0% (100.0%
-0.7% ¢0.7%)
5.8% (5.8%)

100.0% (100.0%
0% (0%)

The tables above do not include financial instruments that are measured using unobservable inputs (Level 3) where the

unobservable inputs were obtained from external sources and used without adjustment. These financial instruments include

mutual fund and»xhange traded funds investments (included within equities), certain private equity funds (included within
private equities), privately placed corporate loans (included within other invested assets) and certain derivatives (included

within other investedssets).

The Company

has

establ

i shed a

Val uati on

Commi ttee

whi

valuation procedures, reviewing significant changes in the fair value measurements of securities classified as Level 3 and
ensuringthat there is an appropriate independent peer analysis, on at least an annual basis, on the fair value measurements of

significant

managemertt e am. Th

securiti

items, invested asset valuation.

Changes in

es that are classifi
e Companyds Group Enterprise
air value of the

the f

December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 were as follows (in thousands of U.S. dollars):
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2017 2016 2015
Fixed maturities and shetérm investments $ 124,03 $ (90,339 $ (276,779
Equities 60,46( (14,85() (187,562
Other invested assets 28,144 11,06¢ (1,83Y)
Funds helddirectly managed (5,612 (72)) (6,327
Total $ 207,028 $ (94,839 $ (472,49)

Substantially all of the above changes in fair value are included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations under the
caption Net realized and unrealized investment gains (losses).

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating the fair value of each class of financial
instrument recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. T
techniques durinthe periods presented.

Fixed maturities

A U.S. government and government sponsored enter@riseS. government and government sponsored enterprises
securities consist primarily of bonds issued by the U.S. Treasury and corporate debt securities issuedrbgrgove
sponsored enterprises and federally owned or established corporations. These securities are generally priced by
independent pricing services. The independent pricing services may use actual transaction prices for securities that
have been activelyaded. For securities that have not been actively traded, each pricing source has its own proprietary
method to determine the fair value, which may incorporate option adjusted spreads (OAS), interest rate data and
market news. The Company generally classithese securities in Level 2.

A U.S. states, territories and municipalitied).S. states, territories and municipalities securities consist primarily of
bonds issued by U.S. states, territories and municipalities and the Federal Home Loan Mortgagaddoifiozaé
securities are generally priced by independent pricing services using the techniques described for U.S. government and
government sponsored enterprises above. The Company generally classifies these securities in Level 2. Certain of the
bonds thaare issued by municipal housing authorities and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation are not
actively traded and are priced based on internal models using unobservable inputs. Accordingly, the Company
classifies these securities in Level 3. Thangigant unobservable input used in the fair value measurement of these
U.S. states, territories and municipalities securities classified as Level 3 is credit spreads. A significant increase
(decrease) in credit spreads in isolation could result in afisegmily lower (higher) fair value measurement.

A NonU.S. sovereign government, supranational and government rélated-U.S. sovereign government,
supranational and government related securities consist primarily of bonds issuedUhg noational govements
and their agencies, ndh.S. regional governments and supranational organizations. These securities are generally
priced by independent pricing services using the techniques described for U.S. government and government sponsored
enterprises above. €HCompany generally classifies these securities in Level 2.

A Corporatéd Corporate securities consist primarily of bonds issued by U.S. and foreign corporations covering a variety
of industries and issuing countries. Corporate securities also include etaliegestment trusts, catastrophe bonds,
longevity and mortality bonds and government guarantee corporate debt. These securities are generally priced by
independent pricing services and brokers. The pricing provider incorporates information includingpceedis,
interest rate data and market news into the valuation of each security. The Company generally classifies these
securities in Level 2. When a corporate security is inactively traded or the valuation model uses unobservable inputs,
the Company dssifies the security in Level 3.

A Assetbacked securitigs Assetbacked securities primarily consist of bonds issued by U.S. and foreign corporations
that are predominantly backed by student loans, automobile loans, credit card receivables, equipmemdeases
special purpose financing. With the exception of special purpose financing securities, thelsackssksecurities are
generally priced by independent pricing services and brokers. The pricing provider applies dealer quotes and other
available trad information, prepayment speeds, yield curves and credit spreads to the valuation. The Company
generally classifies these securities in Level 2. Special purpose financing securities are generally inactively traded and
are priced based on valuation mod&déng unobservable inputs. The Company generally classifies these securities in
Level 3. The significant unobservable input used in the fair value measurement of thebadssksecurities
classified as Level 3 is credit spreads. A significant incrédeserease) in credit spreads in isolation could result in a
significantly lower (higher) fair value measurement.
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A Residential mortgagbacked securitigs Residential mortgagbacked securities primarily consist of bonds issued by
the Government National Mgrage Association, the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation, as well as private, fagency issuers. These residential mortgaagked securities are
generally priced by independent pricing services and brokéren current market trades are not available, the pricing
provider or the Company will employ proprietary models with observable inputs including other trade information,
prepayment speeds, yield curves and credit spreads. The Company generally dlassiisscurities in Level 2.

A Other mortgagebacked securitigs Other mortgagdacked securities primarily consist of commercial mortgage
backed securities. These securities are generally priced by independent pricing services and brokers. The pricing
provider applies dealer quotes and other available trade information, prepayment speeds, yield curves and credit
spreads to the valuation. The Company generally classifies these securities in Level 2.

In general, the methods employed by the independent priemmgss to determine the fair value of the securities that
have not been actively traded primarily involve thhe use c
credit spread for a comparable security that has traded recerity ¢arrent yield curve to determine a reasonable fair value.
The Company generally uses one pricing source per security and uses a pricing service ranking to consistently select the most
appropriate pricing service in instances where it receives multijpieg| on the same security. When fair values are unavailable
from these independent pricing sources, quotes are obtained directly fromdealens who are active in the corresponding
mar ket s. Most of the Company Oisingservices dr deanlertquotes. The €osnpaayrwdl pr i c e
typically not make adjustments to prices received from pricing services or dealer quotes; however, in instances where the
quoted external price for a security uses significant unobservable inputs, ther@oasilpalassify that security as Level 3. The
met hods used to develop and substantiate the unobservabl e
dependent upon the facts and circumstances surrounding the individual investmenerevbmterally transaction specific.
The Companyds inactively traded fixed maturities aise cl as
used for estimating fair value.

To validate prices, the Company compares the fair vatimates to its knowledge of the current market and will
investigate prices that it considers not to be representative of fair value. The Company also reviews an internally generated
fixed maturity price validation report which converts prices receivetiXed maturity investments from the independent
pricing sources and from brokdealers quotes and plots OAS and duration on a sector and rating basis. The OAS is calculated
using established algorithms developed by an independent risk analytics plafatar.vihe OAS on the fixed maturity price
validation report are compared for securities in a similar sector and having a similar rating, and outliers are idéntified an
investigated for price reasonableness. In addition, the Company completes quaatit@ijges to compare the performance of
each fixed maturity investment portfolio to the performance of an appropriate benchmark, with significant differenciesl identif
and investigated.

Shortterm investments

Shortterm investments are valuedinamamérmi | ar t o the Companyds fixed matu
classified in Level 2.

Equities

Equity securities include U.S. and foreign common and preferred stocks, real estate investment trusts, mutual funds and
exchange traded funds. Equities, real estate investment trusts and exchange traded funds are generally classifiegkin Level 1
the Comp@ny uses prices received from independent pricing sources based on quoted prices in active markets. Equities
classified as Level 2 are generally mutual funds invested in fixed income securities, where the net asset value «f the fund i
provided on a dailpasis, and certain common and preferred equities. Equities classified as Level 3 are generally mutual funds
invested in securities other than the common stock of publicly traded companies, where the net asset value is not provided on
daily basis, and irdively traded common stocks. The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of
inactively traded common stocks classified as Level 3 inc
judgment, from comparable selectgablicly traded companies in the same industry, in a similar region and of a similar size,
including net income multiples, tangible book value multiples, comparable returns, revenue multiples, adjusted earnings
multiples and projected return on equity oati Significant increases (decreases) in any of these inputs could result in a
significantly higher (lower) fair value measurement. Significant unobservable inputs used in measuring the fair value
measurement of inactively traded common stocks also induideidity discount. A significant increase (decrease) in the
liquidity discount could result in a significantly lower (higher) fair value measurement.

To validate prices, the Company completes quantitative analyses to compare the performance oityavclestioent
portfolio to the performance of an appropriate benchmark, with significant differences identified and investigated.
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Other invested assets

The Companyod6s exchange traded derivati ves, rfaisvaleeharas f ut
qguoted prices in active markets. The Companyédés forefgn ex
rate swaps and TBAs are generally classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy and are pricecchglénd@picing
services.

I ncluded in the Companyés Level 3 classification, in g
derivative insurancénked securities and total return swaps; corporate loans; notes and loan receivéiletea
securitizations; and private equities. For Level 3 instruments, the Company will generalbei¥e a price based on a
manager 8s or trust e e developanliniermdl disoonntetl cash flawhmedelacsneastre fair(valuie;)or

(iuse mar ket return information, adjusted if necessary an
selected publicly traded equity funds in a similar region and of a similar size. Where the Company receives prices from the
managerortsit ee, these prices are based on the manager 6s or tr

audited on an annual basis. Where the Company develops its own discounted cash flow models, the inputs will be specific to
the asset in quden, based on appropriate historical information, adjusted as necessary, and using appropriate discount rates.
The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of other invested assets classified as Level 3 include
credit spreads, gss revenue to fair value ratios, net income multiples, effective yields, tangible book value multiples and other
valuation ratios. Significant increases (decreases) in any of these inputs in isolation could result in a significattigtexer

fair value measurement. Significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of other invested assets classified
as Level 3 also include an assessment of the recoverability of intangible assets and market return information, wejghted usin

managemeiits j udgment, from comparable selected publicly trad:e
similar size. Significant increases (decreases) in these inputs in isolation could result in a significantly higheaiiorxakrg f

measue ment . As part of the Companydés modeling to deter mine
counterparty credit risk as an input to the model, howeve
rated institutionsath t he failure of any one counterparty would not h

financial statements.

To validate prices, the Company will compare them to benchmarks, where appropriate, or to the business results generally
within that asset class and specifically to those particular assets.

Funds heli@directly managed

The segregated investment portfolio underlying the fundg tetkettly managed account is comprised of fixed
maturities, shorterm investments and other invested asadtich are fair valued on a basis consistent with the methods
described above. Substantially all fixed maturities and ghamt investments within the funds hiettirectly managed account
are classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy.

The othe invested assets within the segregated investment portfolio underlying the furidfireetty managed account,
which are classified as Level 3 investments, are primarily real estate mutual fund investments carried at fair valueakFor the

estatemutda fund i nvestments, the Company receives a price bas
and further adjusts the price, if necessary, based on appropriate current information on the real estate market. A significan
increase (decrsae) t o the adjustment to the real estate fund mana

fair value measurement.

To validate prices within the segregated investment portfolio underlying the fundsdinettly managed account, the
Company utilizes the methods described above.

See Note 5 further details regarding Fundsitdiléctly managed.

(b) Fair Value of Financial Instrument Liabilities

At Decembe31, 2017 and 2016, the carrying values of financial instrument liabilities retordiee Consolidated
Balance Sheets approximate their fair values, with the exception of théelonglebt related to senior notes and capital
efficient notes (CENts). The fair value of the debt related to senior notes as of DeB&n@l7 and 2016 as calculated
based on discounted cash flow models using observable market yields and contractual cash flows based on the aggregate
principal amount outstanding. The fair value of the debt related to CENts as of DeGdmbP@t7 was calculated based on
maket data valuation models using observable inputs based on the aggregate principal amount outstanding of the intercompan
debt.

See Note 10 for further details related to the Company's debt, including the carrying values and fair values.
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AtDecembeBl, 217 and 2016, the Companyéds debt related to t he
the fair value hierarchy.

Disclosures about the fair value of financial instrument liabilities exclude insurance contracts and certain other financial
instruments.

4. Investments

(a) Net Realized and Unrealized Investment Gains (Losses)

The components of the net realized and unrealized investment gains (losses) for the years ended $le@0hiBeP016 and
2015 were as follows (in thousands of U.S. dollars):

2017 2016 2015

Net realized investment gains on fixed maturities and g¢bart investments $ 28,63 $ 96,99« $ 66,29¢
Net realized investment (losses) gains on equities (4,052 157 137,60¢
Net realized investment (losses) gains on other invested assets (3,219 5,36¢ (33,31)
Net realized investment gains on funds hdicectly managed 50¢ 1,35¢ 53¢
Net realized investment gains 21,87: 103,87: 171,12:
Change in net unrealized investment gains or losses on fixed maturities argshort

investments 124,03: (90,339 (276,779)
Change in net unrealized investment gains or losses on equities 60,46( (24,85() (187,56
Change in unrealized investment gains or losses on other invested assets 32,79( 25,48¢ 844
Change in net unrealized investment gains or losses on fundslinetdly managed (5,567 (67¢€) (6,169
Net other realized and unrealized investment gains or losses (1,09¢) 2,765 1,05:
Change in net unrealized investment gains or losses 210,62 (77,60%) (468,60
Net realized and unrealized investment gains (losses) $ 232,49: $ 26,26t $(297,479)

(b) Net Investment Income

The components of net investment income for the years ended De@&mBeA7, 2016 and 201&ere as follows (in
thousands of U.S. dollars):

2017 2016 2015
Fixed maturities $ 382,67¢ $ 395,83. $ 425,54:
Shortterm investments and cash and cash equivalents 5,36: 1,91¢ 854
Equities a2) 4,38 30,73¢
Funds held and other 29,06¢ 34,16 27,40¢
Funds helddirectly managed 7,742 9,99: 11,67¢
Investment expenses (22,766) (35,419  (46,43)
Net investment income $ 402,07: $ 410,86: $ 449,78

Other than the funds héldirectly managed account, the Company generally earns investment income on funds held by
reinsured companies based upon a predetermined interest rate, either fixed contractually at the inception of thelzasegchct or
upona recognized index (e.g., LIBOR). Interest rates ranged from 0.1% to 7.0% for the year ended D&teniliar, from 0.0%
to 5.4% for the year ended DecemBér 2016 and from 0.1% to 8.0% for the year ended DeceBih@015. See Note 5 for
additional inbrmation on the funds héldirectly managed account.

(c) Pledged and Restricted Assets

At DecembeB31, 2017 and 2016, approximately $274 million and $157 million, respectively, of cash and cash equivalents anc
approximately $3,422 million and $2,241 mihiorespectively, of securities were deposited, pledged or held in escrow accounts in
favor of ceding companies and other counterparties or government authorities to comply with reinsurance contract prdvisions a
insurance laws. The increase during ther yess a result of the inclusion of Aurigen and collateral required to secure payment for
claims related to hurricanes Harvey, Irma and Maria in 2017.
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(d) Net Payable for Securities Purchased

Included within Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other @onsolidated Balance Sheets at DecerdbeP017 and
2016 were amounts of gross receivable balances for securities sold and gross payable balances for securities purdwesed as fol
(in thousands of U.S. dollars):

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Receivable for securities sold $ 144,22: $ 52,18¢
Payable for securities purchased (181,99) (648,81))
Net payable for securities purchased $ (37,76) $ (596,629

(e) Variable Interest Entities

The Company holds variable interests in VIEs including certain limited liability companies or partnerships, trusts, fixed
maturity investments and asdmtcked securities. The holdings in these VIEs are reported withinrfiaéwtities and other invested
assets in the Companyds Consolidated Balance SheetsveinThe (
nature. The Company®ds maxi mum exposur e tthe antoont smvestadinfandr e s p e c
advanced to the VIEs, and any u-oohsolidaded dEsdnoludeniarialbfecimerestsin The Cc
catastrophe bonds within fixed maturity investments and certain other invested assets.

(f) Summarized Financial Information

The Company has an investment in an equity method investee, Almacantar Group S.A. (Almacantar) that is considered
significant in terms of the interest in earnings of this investee exceeding 10% of the consolidiateahmebefore income tax
expense of the Company as at December 31, 2017. The summarized balance sheet and income statement of Almacantar S.A. is :
follows:

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Current assets $ 906,08! $ 698,83!
Noncurrent assets $ 1,877,51 $ 1,510,63;
Current liabilities $ 553,21¢ $ 372,67
Noncurrent liabilities $ 690,93 $ 624,97(

For the year ended

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Revenues $ 130,33 $ 24,64¢
Operating profit $ 190,61 $ (47,089
Net income $ 213,24 $ (37,059

The summarized balance sheet has been included as at the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the summarizec
income statement has been included for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 as the investment in Almacantar was first
entered into dunig 2016. As a result, it is not practicable or meaningful to include summarized financial information for 2015 as
there was no ownership interest in the investee at that time. Operating profit referred to in the table above inclueesoesterfu
sales and unrealized gains on properties.

5. Funds Held Directly Managed

Foll owing Paris Reds acquisition of substantially abll of
in 2006, a subsidiary of AXA SA (AXA), Paris Re and its subsidiaries entered into an issuance agreement and a quota share
retrocession agreement to assume business written by Colisée Re from Jan2@0% to Septemb&0, 2007 as well as the-in
force business at Deceml&t, 2005. The agreements provided that the premium related to the transferred business was retained b
ColiséeRe and credited to a funds held account. The assets underlying the fuiidisréelly managed account are maintained by
Colisée Re in a segregated investment portfolio and managed by the CoRgalined and unrealized investment gains and losses
and netinvestment income related to this account inure to the benefit of the Company.

The investment portfolio underlying the funds fhieldlectly managed account measured at fair value (see Note 3(a))
decreased from $354 million at December 31, 2016 to $30@mét DecembeBl, 2017 primarily due to a commutation of a
portion of the Reserve Agreement with Colisée Re, theoffref the underlying loss reserves associated with this account and the
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